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PART I
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

In addition to historical information, this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the United
States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements are statements that do not directly relate to any historical or current
fact. When used herein, words such as "expects," "anticipates," "believes," "seeks," "estimates," "plans," "i will,” “would,” ” "

» «, |7
’

intends," “future, could,” “can,
“may,” "target," "goal" and similar words are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Examples of forward-looking statements include, but are not
limited to, statements we make concerning the financial condition and results of operations and our expectations as to our future growth, prospects,
financial outlook and business strategy, and any assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. Although such statements are based on management’s
current estimates and expectations and/or currently available competitive, financial, and economic data, forward-looking statements are inherently
uncertain, and you should not place undue reliance on such statements as actual results may differ materially. We caution the reader that there are a
variety of risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from what is contained, projected or implied by our
forward-looking statements. Such factors include, but are not limited to:

» general economic conditions, including inflation and the actions taken by monetary authorities in response to inflation, changes in interest rates
and foreign currency exchange rates, changes in capital markets and stock market volatility, instability in the banking industry, labor shortages,
or the impact of a possible recession or economic downturn or changes to monetary or fiscal policies or priorities in the U.S. and the countries
where we do business on our results, prospects and opportunities;

» competition from existing and future competitors in our target markets, as well as the possible reduction in demand for certain of our product
solutions and services, including delays in the timing of the award of projects or reduction in funding, or the abandonment of ongoing or
anticipated projects due to the financial condition of our clients and suppliers or due to governmental budget constraints or changes to
governmental budgetary priorities, or the inability of our clients to meet their payment obligations in a timely manner or at all;

» our ability to fully execute on our corporate strategy, including the impact of acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestitures, and other strategic
events resulting from evolving business strategies, including on our ability to maintain our culture and retain key personnel, customers or
suppliers, or our ability to achieve the cost-savings and synergies contemplated by our recent acquisitions within the expected time frames or to
achieve them fully and to successfully integrate acquired businesses while retaining key personnel, and our ability to invest in the tools needed
to implement our strategy;

» financial market risks that may affect us, including by affecting our access to capital, the cost of such capital and/or our funding obligations under
defined benefit pension and post retirement plans;

« legislative changes, including potential changes to the amounts provided for, under the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, as well as other
legislation and executive orders related to governmental spending, including any directive to federal agencies to reduce federal spending or the
size of the federal workforce, and changes in U.S. or foreign tax laws, including the OBBBA, statutes, rules, regulations or ordinances, including
the impact of, and changes to, tariffs and retaliatory tariffs or trade policies that may adversely impact our future financial position or results of
operations;

» increased geopolitical uncertainty and risks, including policy risks and potential civil unrest, relating to the outcome of elections across our key
markets and elevated geopolitical tension and conflicts, including the Russia-Ukraine and Israel-Hamas conflicts and the escalating tensions in
the Middle East, among others; and

» the impact of any pandemic, and any resulting economic downturn on our results, prospects and opportunities, measures or restrictions imposed
by governments and health officials in response to the pandemic, as well as the inability of governments in certain of the countries in which we
operate to effectively mitigate the financial or other impacts of any future pandemics or infectious disease outbreaks on their economies and
workforces and our operations therein.

The foregoing factors and potential future developments are inherently uncertain, unpredictable and, in many cases, beyond our control. For a
description of these and additional factors that may occur that could cause actual results to differ from our forward-looking statements, see Item 1A- Risk
Factors below. We undertake no obligation to release publicly any revisions or updates to any forward-looking statements. We encourage you to read
carefully the risk factors described herein and in other documents we file from time to time with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission
(the "SEC").
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Unless the context otherwise requires, all references herein to "Jacobs" or the "Registrant" are to Jacobs Solutions Inc. and its predecessors,
and references to the "Company", "we", "us" or "our" are to Jacobs Solutions Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. On August 29, 2022, Jacobs
Engineering Group Inc. (JEGI), the predecessor to Jacobs Solutions Inc., implemented a holding company structure, which resulted in Jacobs Solutions
Inc. becoming the parent company of, and successor issuer to, JEGI (the "Holding Company Reorganization"). For purposes of this Annual Report,
references to the "Company", "we", "us" or "our" or "our management" or "our business" at any point prior to August 29, 2022 (the "Holding Company

Implementation Date") refer to JEGI and its consolidated subsidiaries as the predecessor to Jacobs Solutions Inc.

On September 27, 2024, Jacobs Solutions Inc. ("Jacobs") completed the previously announced Reverse Morris Trust transaction pursuant to
which (i) Jacobs first transferred its Critical Mission Solutions business (“CMS”) and portions of the Divergent Solutions (“DVS”) business (referred to
herein as the Cyber & Intelligence business (“C&l”) and together with CMS referred to as the “SpinCo Business”), to Amazon Holdco Inc., a Delaware
corporation, which has been renamed Amentum Holdings, Inc. (“SpinCo”) (the “Separation”), (ii) Jacobs then effectuated a spin-off of SpinCo by
distributing 124,084,108 shares of SpinCo common stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “SpinCo Common Stock”) by way of a pro rata distribution to its
shareholders such that each holder of shares of Jacobs common stock, par value $1.00 per share (the “Jacobs Common Stock”) was entitled to receive
one share of SpinCo Common Stock for each share of Jacobs common stock held as of the record date, September 23, 2024 (the “Distribution”), and (iii)
finally, Amentum Parent Holdings LLC merged with and into SpinCo, with SpinCo surviving the merger (the “Merger” and together with the Separation
and the Distribution, the “Separation Transaction”). The surviving entity of the Transaction is now an independent public company with common stock
listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “AMTM” (“Amentum”). The financial results of the SpinCo Business are reflected in our
Consolidated Statements of Earnings as discontinued operations for all periods presented. For further information regarding separation activities that
took place in fiscal 2025, see Note 14- Discontinued Operations of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Item1. BUSINESS

Guided by our values and our brand promise — Challenging today. Reinventing tomorrow — Jacobs delivers innovative solutions to address the world’s
most complex challenges and create lasting value for clients, communities and society.

With a global team of approximately 43,000, we provide end-to-end capabilities across advanced manufacturing, cities & places, energy, environmental,
life sciences, transportation and water. Our services span advisory and consulting, feasibility and planning, through to design, program delivery and
lifecycle management — helping to create a more connected and sustainable world.

From addressing water scarcity and aging infrastructure to access to life-saving therapies and cyber resilience, we combine creativity, agility and deep
domain expertise to deliver outcomes that matter. Our integrated approach enables clients to meet urgent needs today while preparing for the
opportunities of tomorrow.

Over the past eight years, Jacobs has transformed into a science-based consulting and advisory leader, focused on delivering digitally enabled, resilient
solutions to complex sustainability, critical infrastructure and advanced manufacturing challenges. Strategic acquisitions, including a 65% stake in PA
Consulting Group Limited ("PA Consulting") in fiscal 2021, along with BlackLynx and StreetLight — have strengthened our capabilities in high-value
technology-enabled solutions.

Challenge accepted
In February 2025, we launched Challenge Accepted, our multi-year growth strategy designed to sharpen our focus and accelerate our performance.

Aligned with our long-term financial framework, this strategy positions us to drive profitable growth and deliver scalable, full lifecycle solutions across
water and environmental, life sciences and advanced manufacturing, and critical infrastructure.

Page 4



As global challenges like urbanization, infrastructure modernization, digital evolution and environmental resilience intensify, our integrated delivery model
unites the full breadth of our capabilities — from strategy through execution — across our end markets. This synergy enables us to deliver rapid, large-
scale outcomes that anticipate evolving client needs and advance a more resilient, sustainable future where technology elevates human ingenuity and
unlocks new possibilities for collaboration and problem-solving.

We harness our advanced data and digital capabilities, products and tools to help clients operate more efficiently, safely and intelligently. Through the
expertise of our people and ongoing investment in artificial intelligence (Al) and next-generation digital solutions, we empower our clients' decision-
making across the entire asset lifecycle — from capital planning and operations to cybersecurity and operational technology. Our capabilities in data
analytics, digital architecture, advisory and transformation, software development and cybersecurity enable clients to unlock the full value of their data
and digital infrastructure to improve performance, resilience and sustainability.

Through our strategic partnership with PA Consulting, we are expanding our high-end advisory services and deploying our collective strengths to help
clients adapt, innovate and transform. Together, we deliver integrated support across the full project lifecycle — from early-stage strategy to
implementation — enabling clients to tackle complex challenges, accelerate sustainable growth and shape a smarter, more resilient future.

A streamlined, focused business

Prior to the Separation Transaction, the Company's four operating segments were comprised of its two global lines of business ("LOBs"): Critical Mission
Solutions ("CMS") and People Places and Solutions ("P&PS"), its business unit Divergent Solutions ("DVS") and its majority investment in PA Consulting.
After the Separation in fiscal year 2024, we reorganized P&PS and our remaining DVS businesses into a more streamlined operating model,
Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities ("I&AF"), which enables our collective business teams to collaborate more horizontally. Our CMS LOB and portions
of DVS which were included in the Separation are now reported as discontinued operations.

Our Values in Action

Jacobs' Ethics and Code of Conduct, rooted in our values, set clear standards and support to guide decision-making and ensure we conduct our
business with integrity.

™ PlanBeyond.

At Jacobs, sustainability means delivering thoughtful solutions that meet today’s needs while enabling economies,

communities and the environment to thrive in the future. Our PlanBeyond® sustainable business approach aligns with our purpose to create a more
connected, sustainable world. This approach has strengthened client relationships, aiming to create new opportunities and embed resilience into our
global strategy. Building on this foundation, PlanBeyond 2025+ focuses on transparency, measurable outcomes and trusted delivery, guiding our path
forward with our stakeholders, including our clients, partners and people.

Driving positive impact

Operating in more than 40 countries, we view sustainability and resilience as key differentiators and drivers of impact. Demand for solutions that address
complex, interconnected challenges continues to grow across infrastructure, energy, advanced manufacturing and health. By embedding sustainability
into our solutions, we help clients’ businesses and assets remain resilient. In fiscal 2025, we launched our Evolve tool, which generates
recommendations to integrate sustainability into our projects to enhance their positive impact and resilience. Complimentary tools like Climate Risk
Manager, Kaleidoscope and Intelligent O&M assess climate risks, carbon impacts and system vulnerabilities to inform critical project decisions.

We deliver cross-cutting solutions across seven interconnected capabilities: decarbonization & greenhouse gas management; adaptation & resilience;

sustainable built environments; sustainable business; social value; nature positive; and energy transition. Together, these enable systems-level impact
for clients and communities worldwide.
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Transparency and accountability

We are committed to leading by example in our own operations — advancing a suite of strategic actions to reduce our carbon footprint. Our current
commitment, including sourcing 100% renewable electricity and our net-zero target validated by the Science Based Targets initiative, underscore our
progress across our operations and supply chain.

We have invested in technology to enhance virtual collaboration and help mitigate business travel and employee commuting carbon emissions. We also
invested in tools and technology to help our people consider when business travel is essential and make more sustainable choices when it is necessary.

As businesses worldwide experience increasing stakeholder expectations and sustainability regulatory requirements, corporate transparency and
accountability remains central. We report on our sustainability performance and corporate responsibility initiatives in accordance with globally recognized
frameworks when required by applicable regulations, or, in the absence of mandated standards, we follow widely accepted market practices.

Positively impacting tomorrow’s communities

We work globally with our clients, partners and supply chains to deliver solutions that seek to improve how people live, move and thrive, aiming to foster
health and well-being for all occupants, promoting a sustainable and thriving future.

We invest in local communities globally, collaborating with charities and not-for-profit organizations to make a positive impact and live our values.
Through Collectivelys™, our global giving and volunteering program, we empower employees to support causes aligned to our values, through paid
volunteer time, donation matching and grant nomination. In fiscal 2025, our employees mobilized support for communities, including those impacted by
natural disasters, water insecurity and conflict. For example, in 2025 a team of 10 Jacobs volunteers partnered with non-profit Bridges to Prosperity to
build a suspended bridge across Rwanda’s Gatongati River — our 17th bridge build — providing safe, year-round access to education, healthcare,
markets and other essential services for more than 8,300 people.

We also invest in the next generation through our science, technology, engineering, arts and mathematics (STEAM) education and engagement
programs promoting sustainability learning among young people and providing information to inspire future careers in STEAM.

In 2025, Jacobs sponsored the International Science and Engineering Fair — a premier global competition engaging students from more than 300
affiliated science fairs worldwide and advancing the future talent pipeline.

In fiscal 2025, we donated over $2.9 million to 2,300+ charities across 34 countries. Our employees tracked more than 7,000 volunteer hours including
nearly 4,000 STEAM volunteer hours.

Social value advisory in our client solutions

We also deliver social value strategies and services that help clients realize social value opportunities through their projects and services by embedding
and measuring social, economic and environmental benefit generation into project delivery.

Our fully owned subsidiary, Simetrica-Jacobs, specializes in social value, wellbeing research and impact evaluation — measuring and quantifying social
value and impacts to help directly inform investment decisions and delivery models. Simetrica-Jacobs deploys internationally endorsed methods set out
by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development and government-produced guidelines, including the U.K. Government’s HM Treasury
Green Book.

By combining this expertise with our infrastructure delivery, we help clients understand how they can transform local decision-making, shape inclusive
investments and create lasting social change.

We maintain agile and disciplined capital deployment

M&A and Divestitures
Consistent with our profitable growth strategy, Jacobs pursues acquisitions, divestitures, strategic investments and other transactions to maximize long-

term value by continuing to reshape our portfolio to higher value solutions and accelerating profitable growth strategy. The Company has recently made
the following acquisitions, strategic investments and divestitures:
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*  On September 27, 2024, Jacobs completed the Separation Transaction, pursuant to which it spun off its CMS and C&I businesses and then
subsequently merged those businesses with Amentum Parent Holdings LLC. Amentum, the surviving entity of the Separation Transaction, is now
an independent public company with common stock listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “AMTM”. For further information
regarding separation activities that took place in fiscal 2025, see Note 14- Discontinued Operations of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

* On March 2, 2021, Jacobs completed the strategic investment of a 65% interest in PA Consulting, a U.K.-based leading innovation and
transformation consulting firm.

Share Repurchases

During fiscal 2025, the Company repurchased $754.1 million in shares.

Shareholder Dividends
During fiscal 2025, the Company paid dividends of $0.29 per share in the first quarter and $0.32 per share in the second, third and fourth quarters.
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Operating Segments

The services we provided to our end markets in fiscal 2025 fall into the following two operating segments: 1) Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities and 2)
our majority investment in PA Consulting.

For additional information regarding our segments, including information about our financial results by segment and financial results by geography, see
Note 19- Segment Information of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities (I&AF)

In fiscal 2025, Jacobs' Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities business provided end-to-end solutions for our clients’ most complex challenges related to
energy security, environmental resilience, safe and reliable transportation, buildings and infrastructure, integrated water management and
biopharmaceutical manufacturing. In doing so, we combine deep experience in the following end markets - Critical Infrastructure, Water & Environmental
and Life Sciences & Advanced Manufacturing.

Fiscal 2025 I1&AF Revenue by End Market

28%

42%

30%

M Critical Infrastructure
Bl Water & Environmental
I Life Sciences & Advanced Manufacturing

Our core skills revolve around consulting, planning, architecture, design, engineering, infrastructure delivery services including project, program and
construction management and long-term operation of facilities. Solutions are delivered as standalone professional service engagements, comprehensive
program management partnerships, and selective progressive design-build and construction management at-risk delivery services. Increasingly, we use
data science and technology-enabled expertise to deliver positive and enduring outcomes for our clients and communities.

We serve national, state and local government clients across multiple regions — including the U.S., Europe, U.K., Middle East, and Asia Pacific — and
multinational and local private sector organizations globally.
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PA Consulting (PA)

PA Consulting, the global innovation and transformation consultancy, accelerates new growth ideas from concept, through design and development and
to commercial success, and revitalizes organizations, building leadership, culture, systems and processes to make innovation a reality. PA Consulting's
global team of about 4,000, which includes strategists, innovators, designers, consultants, digital experts, scientists, engineers and technologists work
across seven sectors: consumer and manufacturing, defense and security, energy and utilities, financial services, government, health and life sciences,
and transport to make a positive impact alongside the clients it supports, bringing ingenuity to life.

PA Consulting has a diverse mix of private and public sector clients. Private sector clients include global household names like Diageo, Microsoft, Pret A
Manger and Unilever, and start-ups like NTx, which is accelerating access to life-changing therapies. PA's work includes applying data and analytics to
improve punctuality of flights at Heathrow Airport, accelerating the energy transition with Invenergy and energyRe, creating new digital platforms for the
American College of Emergency Physicians, pioneering medtech with Hubly Surgical, accelerating clinical trials with Al for a global life sciences
consortium, and enhancing resiliency in banking with Bankomat. Public sector clients include the U.K.'s Ministry of Defence, National Highways, The
Norwegian Labour and Welfare Administration, The Danish Tax Agency and The Swedish Environmental Protection Agency.

Collectively, we also deploy the combined strengths of Jacobs' technical expertise in infrastructure, advanced manufacturing and technology with PA
Consulting's innovation and transformation expertise to unlock significant opportunities for our clients worldwide. In the U.S., we’re supporting the digital
transformation of Dallas Fort Worth International Airport and contributing to the Frederick Douglass Tunnel program — one of the nation’s largest
transportation infrastructure investments. In England, we provide engineering, technical advice and innovation services to National Highways. We're
building an Al blueprint for Hertfordshire County Council, one of England’s largest councils. We've been appointed to the U.K.’s largest government
management consultancy framework providing public sector organizations with streamlined access to advisory services. We’re also delivering technical
project management for the U.K. Department for Energy Security & Net Zero’s Carbon Capture, Usage and Storage program, a cornerstone of the U.K.’s
net-zero ambitions.

Separation of Critical Mission Solutions (CMS) and Cyber & Intelligence (C&l)

On September 27, 2024, Jacobs Solutions Inc. ("Jacobs") completed the previously announced Reverse Morris Trust transaction pursuant to which (i)
Jacobs first transferred its Critical Mission Solutions business (“CMS”) and portions of the Divergent Solutions (“DVS”) business (referred to herein as the
Cyber & Intelligence business (“C&l”) and together with CMS referred to as the “SpinCo Business”), to Amazon Holdco Inc., a Delaware corporation,
which has been renamed Amentum Holdings, Inc. (“SpinCo”) (the “Separation”), (ii) Jacobs then effectuated a spin-off of SpinCo by distributing
124,084,108 shares of SpinCo common stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “SpinCo Common Stock”), by way of a pro rata distribution to its
shareholders such that each holder of shares of Jacobs common stock, par value $1.00 per share, (the “Jacobs Common Stock”) was entitled to receive
one share of SpinCo Common Stock for each share of Jacobs common stock held as of the record date, September 23, 2024 (the “Distribution”), and (iii)
finally, Amentum Parent Holdings LLC merged with and into SpinCo, with SpinCo surviving the merger (the “Merger” and together with the Separation
and the Distribution, the “Separation Transaction”). The surviving entity of the Separation Transaction is now an independent public company with
common stock listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “AMTM” (“Amentum”).

As a result of the Separation Transaction, substantially all SpinCo Business-related assets and liabilities have been separated and distributed (the
"Disposal Group"). The Company determined that the Disposal Group should be reported as discontinued operations in accordance with ASC 205-20,
Discontinued Operations because their disposal represents a strategic shift that had a major effect on operations and financial results. As such, the
financial results of the SpinCo Business are reflected in our Consolidated Statements of Earnings as discontinued operations for all periods presented.
Additionally, current and non-current assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group were reflected as held for spin in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
September 29, 2023. Further, as the Separation Transaction closed on September 27, 2024, no amounts remained held for spin at the end of fiscal
2024.

For further information regarding separation activities that took place in fiscal 2025, see Note 14- Discontinued Operations of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Prior to the Separation Transaction, Jacobs’ Critical Mission Solutions business provided a full spectrum of solutions for clients to address evolving
challenges like digital transformation and modernization, national security and defense, space exploration, digital asset management, the clean energy
transition, and nuclear decommissioning and cleanup. Clients included government agencies, as well as private sector clients mainly in the aerospace,
automotive, motorsports, energy and telecom sectors. Prior to the Separation Transaction, the DVS business unit served as the core foundation for
developing and delivering innovative, next-generation cloud, cyber, data and digital technologies. DVS clients included government agencies and
commercial clients in the U.S. and international markets. Certain portions of the DVS business related to advising on digital strategy and transformation
and developing digital solutions that facilitate capital, operational and cybersecurity decisions for our clients across our segments and their end markets
were retained and are now part of I&AF.

Significant Customers

The following table sets forth the percentage of total revenues from continuing operations earned directly or indirectly from agencies of the U.S. federal
government for each of the last three fiscal years:

2025 2024 2023
8% 10% 9%

Given the percentage of total revenue derived directly from the U.S. federal government, the loss of U.S. federal government agencies as customers
could have a material adverse effect on the Company. In addition, any or all of our government contracts could be terminated, we could be suspended or
debarred from all government contract work, or payment of our costs could be disallowed. For more information on risks relating to our government
contracts, see ltem 1A- Risk Factors.

Contracts

While there is considerable variation in the pricing provisions of the contracts we undertake, our contracts generally fall into two broad categories: cost-
reimbursable and fixed-price. The following table sets forth the percentages of total revenues from continuing operations represented by these types of
contracts for each of the last three fiscal years:

2025 2024 2023
Cost-reimbursable 68% 69% 70%
Fixed-price, limited risk 32% 31% 26%
Fixed-price, at risk —% —% 4%

In accordance with industry practice, most of our contracts (including those with the U.S. federal government) are subject to termination at the discretion
of the client, which is discussed in greater detail in ltem 1A- Risk Factors. In such situations, our contracts typically provide for reimbursement of costs
incurred and payment of fees earned through the date of termination.

Cost-Reimbursable Contracts

Cost-reimbursable contracts generally provide for reimbursement of costs incurred plus an amount of profit. The profit element may be in the form of a
simple mark-up applied to the labor costs incurred or it may be in the form of a fee, or a combination of a mark-up and a fee. The fee element can also
take several forms, including 1) a fixed amount, 2) an amount based on a percentage of the costs incurred or 3) an incentive fee based on targets,
milestones, or performance factors defined in the contract. These contracts include a limited amount of guaranteed maximum price contracts.

Fixed-Price Contracts

Fixed-price contracts include both “lump sum bid” contracts and “negotiated fixed-price” contracts. Under lump sum bid contracts, we typically bid against
competitors based on client-furnished specifications. This type of pricing presents certain inherent risks, including the possibility of ambiguities in the
specifications received, problems with new technologies, and economic and other changes that may occur over the contract period. Additionally, it is not
unusual for lump sum bid contracts to lead to an adversarial relationship with clients, which is contrary to our relationship-based business model.
Accordingly, lump sum bid contracts are not our preferred form of contract. In contrast, under a negotiated fixed-price contract, we are selected as the
contractor first and then we negotiate a price with our client and

Page 10



frequently exists in single-responsibility arrangements where we perform some portion of the work before negotiating the total price of the project. Thus,
although both types of contracts involve a firm price for the client, the lump sum bid contract provides the greater degree of risk to us in our services
contracts as well as construction. However, because of economies that may be realized during the contract term, both negotiated fixed-price and lump
sum bid contracts may offer greater profit potential than other types of contracts. The Company carefully manages the risk inherent in these types of
contracts. In recent years, most of our fixed-price work has been either negotiated fixed-price contracts or lump sum bid contracts for design and/or
project services, rather than turnkey construction contracts which are included in the at risk type in the table above.

Competition

We compete with many companies across the world including technology, consulting and engineering firms. Typically, no single company or companies
dominate the markets in which we provide services, and often we partner with our competitors or other companies to jointly pursue projects. AECOM,
Tetra Tech, WSP, Arcadis, Bechtel, Arup, Endava, Exponent, Mott MacDonald, Stantec, Parsons, Accenture, Mace, AtkinsRealis, Altair, Montrose,
Capgemini, Fluor, Deloitte, KPMG, PwC, Bain & Company and McKinsey & Company are some of our competitors. We compete based on the following
factors, among others: technical capabilities, reputation for quality, price of services, safety record, availability of qualified personnel, and ability to timely
perform work and contract terms.

Our People and Our Culture

Our people and culture define Jacobs. Authentic leadership and a commitment to living our core values every day creates a culture of trust, respect and
empowerment across our business — enabling us to deliver the best outcomes for all our stakeholders. Guided by our employee value statement,
"Jacobs. A world where you can.", our strategy further connects our people to our purpose and helps us continuously evolve our culture to support,
empower and enable our talent to thrive.

Attracting and Growing our Talent
Jacobs’ success is dependent on our ability to hire, develop and retain exceptional talent across technical, professional, scientific and consulting
disciplines.

As of September 26, 2025, we had a workforce of approximately 43,000 people worldwide, including a contingent workforce of approximately 1,800
people. Our voluntary employee turnover rate of 8.2% reflects a strong culture and the commitment of our people. The breakdown of our employees by
region (excluding contingent workforce) is as follows:

6%
Middle East and Africa
21%

Asia Pacific
(incl. India)

49%
Americas
24%

Europe
(incl. UK)
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By fostering learning and unlocking career growth for our people, we attract and retain top talent to deliver for our clients and drive long-term growth for
Jacobs. Our employee programs, global learning resources and digital tools enable collaboration and professional development in a supportive, high-
performing workplace.

Our employee experience platform — e3: engage. excel. elevate. — enables our employees to develop through continuous feedback, priority alignment,
experience profiling and career planning.

In fiscal 2025, we introduced several enterprise-wide initiatives to enhance talent mobility, foster leadership and support long-term, purpose-driven
careers. These included responding to feedback from our employees regarding expanded learning opportunities, particularly in Al and digital skills,
through the launch of Jacobs University—our global learning and development hub designed to make training more accessible and relevant across roles
and regions. With four dedicated schools (and more planned) and access to nearly 30,000 training programs, the platform equips employees with future-
ready skills and career development resources.

To expand career mobility, we also introduced the Internal Talent Marketplace, a digital platform connecting employees with opportunities, assignments
and career pathways aligned to their goals and experience.

As we advance our digital and data solutions to help clients work more effectively and safer, we are also equipping our people with stronger digital skills
and Al capabilities. In fiscal 2025, we launched Jacobs Al Assist, our proprietary Al tool that makes our authoritative knowledge more discoverable and
usable for our employees in their daily work.

In fiscal 2025, more than 97% of employees completed all required modules in our annual “Living Our Values” training, which reinforces our core values.'

Our global graduate development program and local apprenticeships continue to provide our early career professionals with foundational skills, networks
and knowledge. In fiscal 2025, we welcomed more than 1,300 graduates, interns and apprentices to our global team.

We support agile, lifelong careers through continuous development, mentoring and diverse career paths. Employees can request mentors through our e3
mentor match program and our eight Jacobs Employee Networks (JENSs), which are open to all of our employees around the world, also offer mentoring
with leaders who support and reflect myriad perspectives, backgrounds and experiences.

Our global Hybrid Work model strengthens team collaboration and client connection, while offering flexibility — reflecting our commitment to providing an
adaptable, inclusive and empowering workplace.

Fostering Inclusion and Belonging

We continue to nurture our TogetherBeyond™ culture, our approach to living inclusion every day and fostering belonging globally. We believe inclusive
teams deliver stronger outcomes for clients, communities and one another. By embracing varied perspectives and lived experiences, we create
conditions for greater creativity, faster decision-making, and deeper connection.

In fiscal 2025, we continued to invest in leadership training, our JENs, 240+ communities of practice, and global programs that promote accessibility and
cultural awareness across project delivery, recruitment and community engagement. Open to all employees around the world, our JENs and
communities of practice provide networking and development opportunities, and play a vital role in sustaining an inclusive culture.

Training and resources support our "We live inclusion" value and include topics such as inclusion and belonging and respect in the workplace, and our
employee networks and communities of practice foster meaningful conversations and actions in support of workplace inclusion. Our people actively
contribute to attracting new talent, shaping our recruitment strategies, and enhancing our STEAM programs and accessibility practices.

1 Completion rate reflects the four modules required for all employees. A fifth module, required only for people leaders, is excluded from this metric.
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Our employee networks:

ACE Providing information, resources and networking opportunities

5 ; regarding physical, mobility and cognitive disabilities for all,
Strength in our differences. including disabled staff and staff who provide caregiving services.

Careers Network Empowering our employees across all career stages to maximize
their potential and make Jacobs the industry leader and workplace

Explore. Navigate. Inspire. of choice.

@ Enlace Celebrating the company'’s Latino talent, while fostering
@ @ Linki Lati d alli professional development, connecting people through
inking Latinos and allies. cross-cultural engagement and community involvement for all.

q p Harambee
- . . We celebrate the company's Black talent, as we cultivate leadership
Rooted in belonging, and community for all.

rising together in excellence.

OneWorld Providing an inclusive environment that actively celebrates,

L L nurtures and supports our employees and clients across all
One planet, many cultures. ethnicities and cultures.

VetNet Creating an inclusive environment for all by uniting veterans, service
members and their families through shared values and a passion for

Supporting our armed forces communities. excellence.

Women's Network Celebrating the Women of Jacobs and fostering leadership and
Working together for gender inclusion. community involvement for all.

Z, Prism Creating an inclusive environment for all, ensuring LGBTQl+
- & employees and allies feel able and empowered to bring their whole
Bring your whole self to work. selves to work.

Our commitment to living inclusion begins at the top with leadership commitment and accountability driving culture at Jacobs.

Through our “Be Seen @ Jacobs” data disclosure campaign, we invite our employees globally to confidentially and voluntarily share their demographic
information, where permitted, increasing transparency and helping us better shape the programs and benefits we offer our employees.
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As of September 26, 2025, our U.S. employees reflected the following race and ethnicity demographics (self-reported data):

70.0
60.0 [64.6%
White

50.0

40.0

30.0 0.2%
11.2% 0.42% Native

20.0 Hispanic/ 10.2% American Hawaiian / 0,
Latin Asian gl-SE/O 3.1% Indian or Other 3;? %

0.0

As of September 26, 2025, our global workforce gender demographics' (based on self-reported data) were:

Health, safety, security & environment

Since its inception in 2007, our BeyondZero® program has helped protect our people and the environment through proactive programs shaping how we
operate and how we care for one another. BeyondZero®, which began as a commitment to health and safety has evolved into a broader philosophy
encompassing psychological wellbeing, security, environmental responsibility and business resilience — and has become a cornerstone of our Culture of
Caring®™, our values and our identity.

Amid growing global complexities that test our ability to operate safely, securely and sustainably, we remain committed to proactive risk management
and to delivering high-value solutions for our people, clients and communities.

In fiscal 2025, we achieved another year of zero employee fatalities at work and a total recordable incident rate? of 0.11, compared to the North American
Industry Classification System’s most recently reported® aggregate rate of 0.60. This reflects our continued focus on protecting our people and
maintaining resilient project environments. External recognition included five Environmental Business Journal / Climate Change Business Journal®
awards for advancing environmental and climate resilience, and the Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA) Patron's Award for sustained
health and safety excellence.
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We also advanced our resilience program — enhancing emergency, crisis and continuity capabilities to support stability and performance during times of
disruption. Our enhanced Global Travel Assistance program in partnership with our provider, International SOS, helps keep our employees safe and
healthy while traveling or on assignment outside their home country.

Our wellbeing programs address the full spectrum of employee health — from physical to emotional and social to financial. These include Origin which
provides financial counseling, and Carrot, which offers free, inclusive fertility healthcare and family-forming benefits, and support for menopause, low
testosterone and more.

RethinkCare provides free parental support and neurodiversity training. In fiscal 2025, we expanded holistic wellbeing support, including our Dedicated
Workplace Support service, which compliments existing support like our Emotional Wellbeing Solutions digital portal.

Our global community of nearly 1,800 Positive Mental Health Champions — with 30% now serving as people leaders — continues to grow, providing
peer-level support, guiding colleagues toward professional options, while helping to reduce stigma and foster inclusion. Our Jacobs-developed, free
mental health check-in tool, One Million Lives, reached a significant milestone this year, with over 50,000 check-ins completed since launch.

Our BeyondZero journey is not a destination, but a mindset — driving us to protect our people, expand our impact, and partner globally to shape a safer,
more sustainable future. We remain disciplined in strengthening our collective HSSE capability, positioning Jacobs to anticipate dynamic market
demands and deliver responsible growth and lasting impact.

1Jacobs reports this data utilizing the male/female binary to enable consistent reporting over time.

2 As of October 30, 2024 and recorded in accordance with OSHA record keeping requirements, but subject to change thereafter due to possible injury/iliness classification changes. The TRIR calculation uses the US OSHA formula of
‘Number of Incidents x 200,000 / total number of hours worked in a year’. The 200,000 is the benchmark established by OSHA because it represents the total number of hours 100 employees would log in 50 weeks based on a 40-hour

work week.
3 Cited on September 26th, 2025 via U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics - Incidence rates of non-fatal occupational injuries and illnesses by industry and case types, 2023 for NAICS code 54133

Information About Our Executive Officers

The information required by Paragraph (a), and Paragraphs (c) through (g) of Item 401 of Regulation S-K (except for information required by Paragraph
(e) of that Item to the extent the required information pertains to our executive officers) and Item 405 of Regulation S-K is set forth under the caption
“Members of the Board of Directors” in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close

of our fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.

The following table presents the information required by Paragraph (b) of tem 401 of Regulation S-K.

Age Position with the Company Year Joined the Company
Robert V. Pragada 57 Chair and Chief Executive Officer 2016
Venk Nathamuni 59 Chief Financial Officer 2024
Joanne E. Caruso 65 Chief Legal and Administrative Officer 2012
Patrick X. Hill 52 President, Global Operations 1998
Shannon Miller 49 President, Strategy, Growth and Digital 1998
William B. Allen, Jr. 61 Chief Accounting Officer 2016

All of the officers listed in the preceding table serve in their respective capacities at the pleasure of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Mr. Pragada rejoined the Company in February 2016 after serving as President and Chief Executive Officer of The Brock Group since August 2014.

From March 2006 to August 2014, Mr. Pragada served in executive and senior leadership capacities with the Company. Mr. Pragada served as President
and Chief Operating Officer from November 2019 until he succeeded Steve Demetriou as Chief Executive Officer and was elected as a Director of the
Company in January 2023. In September 2024, after completion of the Separation Transaction, Mr. Pragada assumed the additional position of Chair of
the Jacobs Board of Directors.
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Mr. Nathamuni joined the Company in June 2024 as Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Nathamuni served as Chief Financial Officer at Cirrus Logic Inc. from
2022 to 2024. Prior to that, he served as Head of Corporate Finance, M&A, investor relations and IT for Arista Networks. From 2012 to October 2021, Mr.
Nathamuni served in several roles at Maxim Integrated Products, Inc. including as Vice President of M&A and corporate development and head of
investor relations. He also held a variety of positions at J.P. Morgan, Synopsys, Synplicity and QuickLogic.

Ms. Caruso joined the Company in 2012. Prior to becoming Chief Legal and Administrative Officer, Ms. Caruso was Senior Vice President, Chief
Administrative Officer, and previously held the positions of Senior Vice President, Global Human Resources and Vice President, Global Litigation. Prior
to joining the Company, Ms. Caruso was a partner in two international law firms, Howrey LLP and Baker & Hostetler LLP.

Mr. Hill joined the Company through the SKM acquisition, where he started in 1998. Mr. Hill has served in several senior leadership positions crossing
multiple sectors and operations throughout Australia, New Zealand, Asia, Europe, the Middle East and the United States. Prior to his appointment as
President of the former People & Places Solutions operating segment, Mr. Hill jointly led People & Places Solutions with day-to-day responsibilities for
Jacobs' Buildings and Infrastructure global operations outside of North America. In December 2023, Mr. Hill assumed the role of President, Global
Operations.

Ms. Miller joined the Company in 1998. During her almost 25-year career at Jacobs, Ms. Miller has had a rich and varied global journey in operations,
sales and functional roles leading cultural and digital transformation for both the Company and its markets, including technology, resources,
infrastructure, pharmaceutical and consumer products. In December 2023, Ms. Miller assumed the role as President, Strategy, Growth & Digital. Prior to
current role, Ms. Miller served as Executive Vice President and President of the former Divergent Solutions operating segment and, prior to that, she
served as Jacobs’ Chief Growth Officer and lead for Enterprise Risk Management.

Mr. Allen joined the Company as Chief Accounting Officer in October 2016 after serving as Vice President, Finance and Principal Accounting Officer at
LyondellBasell Industries, N.V. from 2013 to 2016. Prior to that, Mr. Allen was with Albemarle Corporation, where he served as Vice President, Corporate
Controller and Chief Accounting Officer from 2009 to 2013 after serving in CFO roles for their Catalysts and Fine Chemistry businesses from 2005 to
2009.

Additional Information

Jacobs was founded in 1947 and incorporated as a Delaware corporation in 1987. We are headquartered in Dallas, Texas, USA. The SEC maintains a
site on the Internet that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC.
The SEC’s website is http://www.sec.gov. You may also read and download the various reports we file with, or furnish to, the SEC free of charge from our
website at www.jacobs.com.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

We operate in a changing global environment that involves numerous known and unknown risks and uncertainties that could materially
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. The risks described below highlight some of the factors that have affected
and could affect us in the future. We may also be affected by unknown risks or risks that we currently think are immaterial. If any such events actually
occur, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Summary Risk Factors

The following is a summary of some of the risks and uncertainties that could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations. You should read this summary together with the more detailed description of each risk factor contained below.

Risks Related to Our Operations

* We engage in a highly competitive business. If we are unable to compete effectively, we could lose market share and our business and results of
operations could be negatively impacted.
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Our results of operations depend on the award of new contracts and the timing of the award of these contracts and economic conditions.
Demand for our services may be impacted by continuing inflation, high interest rates, international trade issues, including tariffs and counter
tariffs, and/or construction costs.

Project sites are inherently dangerous workplaces. Failure to maintain safe work sites exposes us to significant financial losses and reputational
harm, as well as civil and criminal liabilities.

The nature of our contracts, particularly any fixed-price contracts, subjects us to risks of cost overruns. We may experience losses if costs
increase above budgets or estimates or the project experiences delays.

Ouir failure to meet performance requirements or contractual schedules could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The contracts in our backlog may be adjusted, canceled or suspended by our clients and, therefore, our backlog is not necessarily an accurate
representation of our future revenues or earnings.

The outcome of pending and future claims and litigation could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of
operations and damage our reputation. Our services expose us to significant monetary damages or even criminal violations and our insurance
policies may not provide adequate coverage.

A reduction in the amount of available governmental funding could materially affect our results of operations.
We are dependent on third parties to complete many of our contracts.

Employee, agent or partner misconduct, or our overall failure to comply with laws or regulations, could weaken our ability to win contracts, which
could result in reduced revenues and profits.

Cybersecurity or privacy breaches, or systems and information technology interruption or failure could adversely impact our ability to operate or
expose us to contractual penalties, significant financial losses and/or reputational harm.

Our actual results could differ from the estimates and assumptions used to prepare our financial statements.

Our benefit plan expenses and obligations may fluctuate depending on various factors, including inflation, changes in levels of interest rates, and
pension plan asset performance.

Our businesses could be materially and adversely affected by events outside of our control.

Our continued success is dependent upon our ability to hire, retain, train and utilize qualified personnel while managing the risks associated with
remote and hybrid working arrangements.

Any harm to our professional reputation or relationships could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations, including by negatively impacting the amount of work awarded to us and our ability to hire and retain qualified personnel.

Our focus on new growth areas entails risks, including those associated with new relationships, clients, talent needs, capabilities, service
offerings, and maintaining our collaborative culture and core values.

If we, or our subsidiaries or companies in which we have made strategic investments, lose, or experience a significant reduction in, business
from one or a few large customers, it could have a material adverse impact on us.

Risks Related to International Operations

Our international operations are exposed to additional risks and uncertainties, including unfavorable political developments and weak foreign
economies.

Foreign exchange risks may affect our ability to realize a profit from certain projects.
Our global presence could give rise to material fluctuations in our income tax rates.
International trade issues, including tariffs and counter tariffs, may have a negative impact on our business.

Risks Related to Acquisitions, Investments, Joint Ventures and Divestitures

.

We may not achieve some or all of the expected benefits of the Separation Transaction, and could incur a significant tax liability if the terms of
the IRS private letter ruling are not satisfied.

Our use of joint ventures, partnerships and strategic investments in entities exposes us to risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside of
our control.

An impairment charge on our goodwill or intangible assets could have a material adverse impact on our financial position and results of
operations.

We may engage in acquisitions, divestments and strategic investments as part of our business strategy to accelerate our growth and we may
make minority investments as well, all of which present certain risks and uncertainties.
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Risks Related to Regulatory Compliance

» Past and future non-financial health, safety, security and environment-related laws and regulations could impose significant additional costs and
liabilities.

»  If we fail to comply with any governmental requirements, our business may be adversely affected.

*  We could be adversely affected by violations of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and similar worldwide anti-bribery laws.

» Climate change and related environmental issues, including those related to compliance with new and evolving federal, state, local and foreign
laws and regulations, could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

»  We may be unable to achieve our climate commitments and targets.

» Increasing scrutiny and changing and conflicting expectations from governmental organizations, clients, investors, suppliers and partners,
communities and our employees with respect to our practices and disclosures related to sustainability and corporate responsibility may impose
additional costs on us or expose us to new or additional risks.

Risks Related to Our Indebtedness and Credit Markets

*  We rely in part on liquidity from our credit facilities to fund our business. Restrictions in our credit facilities and other indebtedness could
adversely impact our business. Our businesses may be adversely affected by disruptions or lack of liquidity in the credit markets, including
reduced access to credit and higher costs of obtaining credit.

» Maintaining adequate bonding, letter of credit and bank guarantee capacity is necessary for us to successfully win some contracts.

»  Our variable rate indebtedness subjects us to interest rate risk, which could cause our debt service obligations to increase and our net income
and cash flows to correspondingly decrease.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock and Corporate Structure

*  Our quarterly results may fluctuate significantly, which could have a material negative effect on the price of our common stock.

*  There can be no assurance that we will pay dividends on our common stock.

» In the event we issue stock as consideration for certain acquisitions we may make, we could dilute share ownership, and if we receive stock in
connection with a divestiture, the value of stock is subject to fluctuation.

*  We are a holding company. Substantially all of our business is conducted through our subsidiaries. We depend on the performance of our
subsidiaries and their ability to make distributions to us to fund our operations.

Risks Related to Our Operations

We engage in a highly competitive business. If we are unable to compete effectively, we could lose market share and our business and results
of operations could be negatively impacted.

We face intense competition to provide technical, professional and construction management services to clients. The markets we serve are

highly competitive and we compete against a large number of regional, national and multinational companies. The extent and type of our competition
varies by industry, geographic area and project type. Our projects are frequently awarded through a competitive procurement process. We are constantly
competing for project awards based on pricing, schedule and the breadth and technical sophistication of our services. Competition can place downward
pressure on our contract prices and profit margins, which increases the risk that, among other things, we may not realize profit margins at the same rates
as we have seen in the past or may become responsible for costs or other liabilities we have not accepted in the past. If we are unable to compete
effectively, we may experience a loss of market share or reduced profitability or both, which could have a material adverse impact on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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Our results of operations depend on the award of new contracts and the timing of the award of these contracts.

Our revenues depend on new contract awards. Delays in the timing of the awards or cancellations of such projects as a result of economic
conditions, material and equipment pricing and availability or other factors could impact our long-term projected results. It is particularly difficult to predict
whether or when we will receive large-scale projects as these contracts frequently involve a lengthy and complex procurement and selection process,
which is affected by a number of factors, such as market conditions or governmental and environmental approvals. Since a significant portion of our
revenues is generated from such projects, our results of operations and cash flows can fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter depending on the
timing of our contract awards and the commencement or progress of work under awarded contracts. Furthermore, many of these contracts are subject to
financing contingencies and, as a result, we are subject to the risk that the customer will not be able to secure the necessary financing for the project.

The uncertainty of our contract award timing can also present difficulties in matching workforce size with contract needs. In some cases, we
maintain and bear the cost of a ready workforce that is larger than necessary under existing contracts in anticipation of future workforce needs for
expected contract awards. When an expected contract award is delayed or not received, we incur additional costs resulting from reductions in staff or
redundancy of facilities, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Demand for our services is impacted by economic downturns, reductions in private or government spending and times of political
uncertainty.

We provide full spectrum technical and professional solutions to clients operating in a number of sectors and industries, including programs for
various national, state and local governments, including advanced manufacturing, cities & places, energy, environmental, life sciences, transportation,
water and other general industrial and consumer businesses and sectors. These sectors and industries and the resulting demand for our services have
been, and we expect will continue to be, subject to significant fluctuations due to a variety of factors beyond our control, including economic conditions
and changes in client spending, particularly during periods of economic or political uncertainty. Consequently, our results have varied, and may continue
to vary, depending upon the demand for future projects in the markets and the locations in which we operate.

Uncertain global economic, socioeconomic and political conditions may negatively impact our clients’ ability and willingness to fund their
projects, including their ability to raise capital and pay, or timely pay, our invoices. These factors may also cause our clients to reduce their capital
expenditures, alter the mix of services purchased, seek more favorable pricing and other contract terms and otherwise slow their spending on our
services. For example, in the public sector, declines in federal funding and state and local tax revenues, as well as other economic declines, may result
in lower state and local government spending. In addition, under such conditions, many of our competitors may be more inclined to take greater or
unusual risks or accept terms and conditions in contracts that we might not deem acceptable. These conditions may reduce the demand for our services,
which may have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Additionally, uncertain economic, socioeconomic and political conditions may make it difficult for our clients, our vendors, and us to accurately
forecast and plan future business activities. We cannot predict the outcome of changing trade policies, including tariffs and counter tariffs, or other
unanticipated socioeconomic or political conditions, nor can we predict the timing, strength or duration of any economic recovery or downturn worldwide
or in our clients’ markets. In addition, our business has traditionally lagged recoveries in the general economy and, therefore, during any such period we
may not recover as quickly as the economy at large. Weak economic conditions could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Furthermore, if a significant portion of our clients or projects are concentrated in a specific geographic area or
industry, our business may be disproportionately affected by regional conflicts, negative trends or economic downturns in those specific geographic
areas or industries.

Continuing inflation and high interest rates and/or construction costs could reduce the demand for our services as well as decrease our profit
on our existing contracts, in particular with respect to our fixed-price contracts.

Continuing or renewed inflation and high interest rates and/or construction costs (including supply chain issues) could reduce the demand for our
services. In addition, we bear all of the risk of high inflation with respect to those contracts that are fixed-price. Because a significant portion of our
revenues are earned from cost-reimbursable type contracts (approximately 68% during fiscal 2025), the effects of inflation on our financial condition and
results of operations over the past few years have been generally minor. However, if we continue to experience inflationary pressures, inflation may have
a larger impact on our results of operations in the future, particularly if we expand our
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business into markets and geographic areas where fixed-price and lump-sum work is more prevalent. Therefore, continued or renewed inflation, high
interest rates and/or construction costs and supply chain challenges and/or frustrations could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Project sites are inherently dangerous workplaces. Failure to maintain safe work sites, whether by us or by our employees, contractors,
subcontractors, clients, the property owner or others working at the project site, can lead to injury, disabilities or fatalities. Such incidents
could expose Jacobs to financial loss, reputational damage and potential civil or criminal liability.

Project sites often put our employees and others in close proximity with large pieces of mechanized equipment, moving vehicles, chemical and
manufacturing processes and hazardous and highly regulated materials, in a challenging environment and often in geographically remote locations. We
may be expressly responsible for safety on some project sites, and, accordingly, we have an obligation to implement effective safety procedures at such
sites. The failure by us or others working at such sites to implement safety procedures or the implementation of ineffective procedures, or the failure to
implement and follow appropriate safety procedures, subjects our employees, contractors, subcontractors and others to the risk of injury, disability or loss
of life, and subjects us to risk that the completion or commencement of our projects may be delayed and we may be exposed to litigation or
investigations. Unsafe work sites also have the potential to increase employee turnover, increase the cost of a project to our clients and raise our
operating and insurance costs.

We are also subject to regulations dealing with occupational health, safety, security and environment ("HSSE"). Although we maintain functional
groups whose primary purpose is to ensure we implement effective HSSE work procedures throughout our organization, including project sites and
maintenance sites, the failure to comply with such regulations could subject us to fines as well as criminal and/or civil liability. In addition, despite the
work of our functional groups, we cannot guarantee the safety of our personnel or that there will be no damage to or loss of our work, equipment or
supplies.

Our HSSE performance is critical to our reputation. Many of our clients require that we meet certain HSSE criteria to be eligible to bid for
contracts and many contracts provide for automatic termination or forfeiture of some or all of our contract fees or profit in the event we fail to meet certain
measures.

For all of the foregoing reasons, if we fail to maintain adequate HSSE standards, we could suffer harm to our reputation, reduced profitability or
the loss of projects or clients, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The nature of our contracts, particularly any fixed-price contracts, subjects us to risks of cost overruns. We may experience reduced profits
or losses if costs increase above budgets or estimates or the project experiences delays.

For fiscal 2025, approximately 32% of our revenues were earned under fixed-price contracts. Both fixed-price and many cost-reimbursable
contracts require us to estimate the total cost of the project in advance of our performance. For fixed-price contracts, we may benefit from any cost-
savings, but we bear greater risk of paying some, if not all, of any cost overruns. Fixed-price contracts are established in part on proposed designs,
which may be partial or incomplete, cost and scheduling estimates that are based on a number of assumptions, including those about future economic
conditions, commodity and other materials pricing and cost and availability of labor (including the cost of any related benefits or entitlements), equipment
and materials and other exigencies. Cost overruns can occur, leading to reduced profits or, in some cases, a loss for that project for a variety of reasons,
including if the design or the estimates prove inaccurate or if circumstances change due to, among other things, unanticipated technical problems,
difficulties in obtaining permits or approvals, changes in local laws or labor conditions, weather, supply chain or other delays beyond our control, changes
in the costs of equipment or raw materials, our vendors’ or subcontractors’ inability or failure to perform, or changes in geopolitical and general economic
conditions, such as tariffs, counter tariffs and other inflationary pressures. We may present change orders and claims to our clients, subcontractors and
vendors for, among other things, additional costs exceeding the original contract price. If we fail to properly document the nature of our claims and
change orders or are otherwise unsuccessful in negotiating reasonable settlements with our clients, subcontractors and vendors, we will likely incur cost
overruns, reduced profits or, in some cases, could result in a loss for a project. These risks are exacerbated for projects with long-term durations
because there is an increased risk that the circumstances on which we based our original estimates will change in a manner that increases costs. The
occurrence of significant costs overruns could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Our failure to meet performance requirements or contractual schedules could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Many of our contracts require us to satisfy specific progress or performance milestones in order to receive payment from the customer. As a
result, we often incur significant costs for engineering, materials, components, equipment, labor or subcontractors prior to receipt of payment from a
customer, which may impact our liquidity. In some circumstances, we may incur penalties if we do not achieve project completion by a scheduled date. In
some cases, the occurrence of delays may be due to factors outside of our control, such as due to supply chain shortages, issues with subcontractor
performance and/or compliance with laws, regulations, contracts or otherwise.

Our contracts that are fundamentally cost reimbursable in nature may also present a risk to the extent the final cost on a project exceeds the
amount the customer expected or budgeted. Like fixed-price contracts, the expected cost of cost-reimbursable projects is based in part on partial design
and our estimates of the resources and time necessary to perform such contracts. A portion of the fee is often linked to these estimates and the related
final cost and schedule objectives, and if for whatever reason these objectives are not met, the project may be less profitable than we expect or even
result in losses.

The contracts in our backlog may be adjusted, canceled or suspended by our clients and, therefore, our backlog is not necessarily an
accurate representation of our future revenues or earnings.

Backlog represents estimates of the total dollar amount of revenues we expect to record in the future as a result of performing work under
contracts that have been awarded to us. As of the end of fiscal 2025, our backlog totaled approximately $23.1 billion. There is no assurance that backlog
will actually be realized as revenues in the amounts reported or, if realized, will result in profits. In accordance with industry practice, substantially all of
our contracts, including our U.S. government work, are subject to cancellation, termination, or suspension at the discretion of the client, and may be
subject to changes in the scope of services to be provided, as well as adjustments to the costs relating to the contracts. In the event of a project
cancellation, we would generally have no contractual right to the total revenue reflected in our backlog. Projects can remain in backlog for extended
periods of time because of the nature of the project and the timing of the particular services required by the project. The risk of contracts in backlog being
canceled or suspended generally increases during periods of widespread economic slowdowns or in response to changes in commaodity prices.

In some markets, there is a continuing trend toward cost-reimbursable contracts with incentive-fee arrangements. Typically, our incentive fees
are based on such things as achievement of target completion dates or target costs, overall safety performance, overall client satisfaction and other
performance criteria. If we fail to meet such targets or achieve the expected performance standards, we may receive a lower, or even zero, incentive fee
resulting in lower gross margins. Accordingly, there is no assurance that the contracts in backlog, assuming they produce the revenues currently
expected, will generate gross margins at the rates we have realized in the past.

Contracts with or funded by the U.S. federal government, other governments and their agencies pose additional risks compared to contracts
with or wholly-funded by private sector clients.

The U.S. federal government represented approximately 8% of our total revenue in fiscal 2025. Contracts with or funded by the U.S.
government, other governments and their respective agencies, which are an important source of our revenue and profit, are subject to additional risks
compared to contracts with private sector clients:

»  Some of our contracts are long-term government contracts, which are only funded on an annual basis. In addition, public-supported financing,
such as state and local municipal bonds, may be only partially raised at the beginning of a program, with additional funding normally only
committed as appropriations are made in each fiscal year. If appropriations for funding are not made in subsequent years of a multiple-year
contract, we may not be able to realize all of our anticipated revenue and profits from that project. Any changes in government capital
allocations, or any under-staffing of government departments or agencies, including resulting from layoffs within the government, or any
government shutdowns impacting our business interaction with affected departments or agencies, could result in program cancellations,
disruptions and/or stop work orders, could limit the government’s ability to effectively progress programs and make timely payments, and could
limit our ability to perform on our existing government contracts and successfully compete for new work. Governments are typically under no
obligation to maintain funding at any specific level, and funds for government programs may even be eliminated. Our government clients may
also shift its spending focus toward areas in which we do not currently provide services.
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»  Our contracts with governmental agencies and our contracts which receive government funding are subject to audit, investigations and
proceedings which could result in adjustments to reimbursable contract costs or, if we are charged with wrongdoing, possible temporary or
permanent suspension from participating in government programs, and a variety of penalties can be imposed on us including monetary damages
and criminal and civil penalties.

» Governmental agencies may modify, curtail or terminate our contracts at any time prior to their completion and, if we do not replace them, we
may suffer a decline in revenue. In addition, for some assignments, the U.S. government may attempt to “insource” the services to government
employees rather than outsource to a contractor.

*  Most government contracts are awarded through a rigorous competitive process, which may emphasize price over other qualitative factors. The
U.S. federal government has increasingly relied upon multiple-year contracts with multiple contractors that generally require those contractors to
engage in an additional competitive procurement process for each task order issued under a contract. This process may result in us facing
significant additional pricing pressure and uncertainty and incurring additional costs.

*  We may not be awarded government contracts because of existing policies designed to protect small, under-represented and/or disadvantaged
businesses.

»  Government contracts are subject to specific procurement regulations and a variety of other socio-economic requirements, which affect how we
transact business with our clients and, in some instances, impose additional costs on our business operations. For example, for contracts with
the U.S. federal government, we must comply with the Federal Acquisition Regulation, the Truth in Negotiations Act, the Cost Accounting
Standards, and numerous regulations governing environmental protection and employment practices. Government contracts also contain terms
that expose us to heightened levels of risk and potential liability than non-government contracts. This includes, for example, unlimited
indemnification obligations.

»  Some of our federal government contracts require us to have security clearances, which can be difficult and time consuming to obtain. If our
employees or our facilities are unable to obtain or retain the necessary security clearances, our clients could terminate or not renew existing
contracts or award us new contracts, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations
could be negatively impacted.

These various uncertainties, restrictions, and regulations including oversight audits by government authorities as well as profit and cost controls,
could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our services expose us to significant monetary damages or even criminal violations and our insurance policies may not provide adequate
coverage.

We provide services that are subject to professional standards and qualifications, including providing services that are based on our professional
engineering expertise, as well as our other professional credentials. These services must comply with various professional standards, duties and
obligations regulating the performance of such services. Our engineering practice, for example, involves professional judgments regarding the planning,
design, development, construction, operations and management of industrial facilities and public infrastructure projects. We also issue reports and
opinions to clients based on our professional expertise, such as issuing opinions and reports to government clients in connection with securities
offerings. While we generally seek to reject liability for consequential damages in our contracts, and although we have adopted a range of insurance, risk
management and risk avoidance programs designed to reduce potential liabilities, we may be deemed to be responsible for these professional
judgments, recommendations or opinions, including, for example, if they are later determined to be inaccurate or if a catastrophic event or other failure
occurs at one of our project sites or completed projects. Any unfavorable legal ruling against us could result in substantial monetary damages,
disqualification to perform services in the future, or even criminal violations.

Such events could result in significant professional liability, general liability or product liability and warranty or other claims against us that could
be highly publicized and have reputational harm, especially if public safety is impacted. We could also be liable to third parties, including through class
actions, even if we are not contractually bound to those third parties. These liabilities could exceed our insurance limits or the fees we generate, may not
be covered by insurance at all due to various exclusions in our coverage and could impact our ability to obtain insurance in the future. Further, even
where coverage applies, the policies have limits and deductibles or retentions or quota shares, which could result in our assumption of exposure for
certain amounts with respect to any claim asserted against us. In addition, indemnification from clients or subcontractors may not be available. An
uninsured claim, either in part or in whole, as well as any claim
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covered by insurance but subject to a policy limit, high deductible and/or retention or quota share, if successful and of a material magnitude, could have
a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The outcome of pending and future claims and litigation could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and
results of operations and damage our reputation.

We are a party to claims and litigation in the normal course of business, including litigation inherited through acquisitions. Since we engage in
engineering and construction activities for large facilities and projects where design, construction or systems failures at any such facility or project can
result in substantial injury or damage to employees or others, and expose us to substantial claims and litigation and investigations relating to, among
other things, personal injury, loss of life, business interruption, property damage, or pollution and environmental damage. We can also be exposed to
claims if we agreed that a project will achieve certain performance standards or satisfy certain technical requirements and those standards or
requirements are not met. In many of our contracts with clients, subcontractors and vendors, we agree to retain or assume specified liabilities for
damages, penalties, losses and other exposures relating to projects that could result in claims that greatly exceed the anticipated profits relating to those
contracts. In addition, while clients and subcontractors may agree to indemnify us against certain liabilities, such third parties may refuse or be unable to
pay us.

With a workforce of approximately 43,000 people globally, we are also party to labor and employment claims in the normal course of business.
Certain of these claims relate to allegations of harassment and discrimination, pay equity, denial of benefits, wage and hour violations, whistleblower
protections, concerted protected activity, and other employment protections, and may be pursued on an individual or class action basis depending on
applicable laws and regulations. Some of such claims may be insurable, while other such claims may not.

In addition, claims received from subcontractors or made by us for change orders can be the subject of lengthy negotiations, arbitration or
litigation proceedings, which could result in the investment of significant amounts of working capital pending the resolution of the relevant change orders
and claims. A failure to promptly recover on these types of claims could have a material adverse impact on our liquidity and financial results. Additionally,
irrespective of how well we document the nature of our claims and change orders, the cost to prosecute and defend claims and change orders can be
significant.

Litigation and regulatory proceedings are subject to inherent uncertainties and unfavorable rulings can and do occur. Pending or future claims
against us could result in professional liability, criminal liability, professional warranty obligations, default under our credit agreements and other liabilities
which, to the extent we are not insured against a loss or our insurer fails to provide coverage, could have a material adverse impact on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations and damage our reputation.

Unavailability or cancellation of insurance coverage could increase our overall risk exposure as well as disrupt the management of our
business operations.

We maintain insurance coverage from third-party insurers as part of our overall risk management strategy and because some of our contracts
require us to maintain specific insurance coverage limits. Catastrophic events, litigation claims, and other market factors can result in decreased
coverage limits, coverage that is more limited, increased premium costs or higher deductibles and/or retentions or quota shares. If any of our third-party
insurers fail, suddenly cancel our coverage or otherwise are unable to provide us with adequate insurance coverage, then our overall risk exposure and
our operational expenses could increase, and the management of our business operations could be disrupted. In addition, there can be no assurance
that any of our existing insurance coverage will be renewable upon the expiration of the coverage period or that future coverage will be affordable at the
required limits.

We have also elected to retain a portion of losses that may occur through the use of various deductibles, retentions, quota shares and limits
under these programs. As a result, we may be subject to future liability for which we are only partially insured, or completely uninsured.
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A reduction in the amount of available governmental funding could materially affect our results of operations.

Historically, we have benefited from both domestic and international government investment programs and bills that provide funding for our
services, such as the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, the CHIPS and Science Act and the Inflation Reduction Act. While we expect to benefit
from projects initiated as a result of such spending and stimulus bills, we may not be able to obtain the expected benefits from these bills or similar bills
in the future. In addition, the timing of funding awards under these bills is uncertain, particularly in the United States following the change in the federal
administration and subsequent reductions in government spending. A reduction in government investment in markets in which we operate could
materially affect our results of operations.

We are dependent on third parties to complete many of our contracts.

We hire third-party contractors to perform a significant amount of the work performed under our contracts. We also rely on third-party equipment
manufacturers or suppliers to provide much of the equipment and materials used for projects. If we are unable to hire qualified subcontractors or find
qualified equipment manufacturers or suppliers, our ability to successfully complete a project will be impaired. If we are not able to locate qualified third-
party subcontractors or the amount we are required to pay for subcontractors or equipment and supplies exceeds what we have estimated, especially in
a lump sum or a fixed-price contract, we may suffer losses on these contracts. If a subcontractor, supplier, or manufacturer fails to provide services,
supplies, parts or equipment as required under a contract for any reason, or fails to provide such services, supplies, parts or equipment in accordance
with applicable quality, ethical or legal standards as required by the contract or regulation, we will be required to source these services, equipment, parts
or supplies from other third parties on a delayed basis or on less favorable terms, which could impact contract profitability and/or could result in claims
against us for damages. We are subject to disputes with our subcontractors from time to time relating to, among other things, the quality and timeliness
of work performed, customer concerns about the subcontractor, or our failure to extend existing task orders or issue new task orders under a contract. In
addition, faulty workmanship, equipment or materials would likely impact the overall project, which could result in claims against us for failure to meet
required project specifications.

In an uncertain or downturn economic environment, third parties may find it difficult to obtain sufficient financing to help fund their operations.
The inability to obtain financing could adversely affect a third party’s ability to provide materials, equipment or services which could have a material
adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. In addition, a failure by a third party subcontractor, supplier or
manufacturer to comply with applicable laws, regulations, client requirements or our global compliance standards, such as fair labor standards and
prohibitions on forced labor could give rise to a range of adverse consequences, including potential civil or criminal liability and harm to our professional
reputation, and could negatively impact our business and, for work performed for government clients, could result in fines, penalties, suspension or even
debarment being imposed on us, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Employee, agent or partner misconduct, or our overall failure to comply with laws or regulations, could weaken our ability to win contracts,
which could result in reduced revenues and profits.

We are subject to the risk of misconduct, fraud, non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations, or other improper activities by one of our
employees, agents or partners, which could have a significant negative impact on our business and reputation. Such misconduct includes the failure to
comply with government procurement regulations, regulations regarding the protection of classified information, regulations prohibiting bribery and other
corrupt practices, regulations regarding the pricing of labor and other costs in government contracts, regulations on lobbying or similar activities,
regulations pertaining to the internal controls over financial and non-financial reporting, regulations pertaining to export control, environmental laws,
employee wages, pay and benefits, and any other applicable laws or regulations. For example, we provide services that may be highly sensitive or that
relate to critical national security matters; if a security breach were to occur, our ability to procure future government contracts could be severely limited.
The precautions we take to prevent and detect these activities may not be effective and we could face unknown risks or losses. Further, any negative
press reports regarding poor contract performance, employee, contractor or third-party subcontractor misconduct, information security breaches,
engagements in or perceived connections to politically or socially sensitive activities, or other aspects of our business or industry could harm our
reputation and materially impact our business. Our failure to comply with applicable laws or regulations, or acts of misconduct could result in costly
investigations and subjects us to the risk of fines and penalties, cancellation of contracts, loss of security clearance and suspension or debarment from
contracting, any of which could damage our reputation, weaken our ability to win contracts and result in reduced revenues and profits and could have a
material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Cybersecurity or privacy breaches, or systems and information technology interruption or failure could adversely impact our ability to
operate or expose us to contractual penalties, significant financial losses and/or reputational harm.

We are subject to certain risks related to cyber-attacks, other interruptions, or errors and delays in our information technology systems. In the
event we experience a cyber event that results in the theft of data or compromises operations, or we otherwise are unable to maintain or improve the
efficiency and efficacy of our systems, the operation of such systems could result in the material loss, corruption, or release of data. In addition, our
computer and communication systems and operations could be damaged or interrupted by natural disasters, force majeure events, telecommunications
failures, power loss, acts of war or terrorism, computer viruses, malicious code, physical or electronic security breaches, intentional or inadvertent user
misuse or error or similar events, cyber-attacks or disruptions. Any of these or other events could have a material adverse impact on our business,
financial condition, protection of personal data and intellectual property and results of operations, as well as those of our clients.

As a provider of information technology services operating in multiple regulated industries and geographies and a government contractor, we
and our service providers, suppliers and subcontractors collect, store, transmit and otherwise process personal, confidential, proprietary and sensitive
information, including classified information. As a result, our information technology systems, including those provided by third-party cloud providers or
other infrastructure-as-a-service providers,which have grown over time, including through acquisitions, have, and will continue to experience threats and
cyber-attacks, including unauthorized access, state-sponsored cyber attacks, computer hackers, computer viruses, malicious code, ransomware,
phishing and other security breaches, problems and system disruptions, including unauthorized access to and disclosure of our and our clients’
proprietary, classified or other protected information. We are also subject to social engineering attacks which have caused, and may also seek to cause
in the future, payments due to or from us to be misdirected to fraudulent accounts, which may not be recoverable by us.

We also face increasing risks associated with operational technology ("OT") systems, particularly in our work supporting critical infrastructure
sectors in which we operate. These risks include cyber threats targeting legacy and modernized OT environments, challenges in integrating secure
digital solutions with aging infrastructure, and the growing attack surface introduced by loT ("internet of things") and IloT ("industrial internet of things")
devices. Additionally, we must navigate evolving regulatory requirements and ensure operational continuity in the face of potential system disruptions.

While we have security measures and technology in place designed to protect our and our clients’ proprietary, classified and other protected
information, there can be no assurance that our efforts will prevent all threats to our computer systems. The U.S. federal government has continued to
raise concerns about the potential for cyber-attacks generally as a result of heightened geopolitical tension and conflicts, including the Russia-Ukraine
and Israel-Hamas conflicts and the escalating tensions in the Middle East, among others. In addition, the rapid evolution and increased adoption of

artificial intelligence technologies may intensify our cybersecurity risks (e.g., Al used to develop malicious code and sophisticated phishing attempts).
Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access or sabotage systems change frequently, cyber-attacks continue to become more
sophisticated and generally are not identified until they are launched against a target. As such, we may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to
implement adequate preventative measures. As a result, we may be required to expend significant resources to protect against the threat of system
disruptions and security breaches or to alleviate problems caused by these disruptions and breaches. Any of these events could damage our reputation,
result in significant business interruption, cause us to incur significant liability and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

We continuously evaluate the need to upgrade and/or replace our systems and network infrastructure to protect our computing environment and
information technology systems, to stay current on vendor supported products and to improve the efficiency of our systems and for other business
reasons, including due to the rapid evolution and increased adoption of artificial intelligence and machine learning technologies and especially as we
continue to operate under a hybrid working model under which employees can work and access the Company’s technology infrastructure remotely. The
implementation of new systems and information technology could adversely impact our operations by imposing substantial capital expenditures,
demands on management time and risks of delays or difficulties in transitioning to new systems. In addition, our systems implementations may not result
in productivity improvements at the levels anticipated. Systems implementation disruption and any other information technology disruption, if not
anticipated and appropriately mitigated, could have a material adverse effect on our business. Furthermore, as cybersecurity threats rapidly evolve in
sophistication and become more prevalent globally, the associated risks described above may increase. Given that the techniques used in cyberattacks
change frequently and may be difficult to detect for periods of time, we may face
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difficulties in anticipating and implementing adequate preventative measures or mitigating harms after such an attack. In addition, laws, regulations,
government guidance, and industry standards and practices in the United States and elsewhere are rapidly evolving to combat these threats. We may
face increased compliance burdens regarding such requirements with regulators and also incur additional costs for oversight and monitoring of our own
systems.

In addition, laws and regulations governing data privacy and the unauthorized disclosure of personal data, including the European Union
General Data Protection Regulation ("GDPR"), the United Kingdom Data Protection Act, the California Consumer Privacy Act, the California Privacy
Rights Act, and other emerging U.S. state and global privacy laws pose increasingly complex compliance challenges and potentially elevate costs and
may require changes to our business practices resulting from the variation of regulatory requirements and increased enforcement frequency. Failure to
comply with these laws and regulations, including related regulatory enforcement and/or private litigation resulting from a potential privacy breach, could
result in governmental investigations, significant fines and penalties, damages from private causes of action, or reputational harm. Additionally, we are
subject to laws, rules, and regulations regarding cross-border transfers of personal data, including laws relating to transfer of personal data outside the
European Economic Area. If we cannot rely on existing mechanisms for transferring personal data, we may be unable to transfer personal data of
employees and clients in those regions, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results.

We are also subject to data sovereignty requirements imposed by the U.S. government, other sovereign governments, and, in some cases, by
clients through specific contractual provisions. These requirements restrict how and where data is stored, processed, and accessed, particularly in
relation to sensitive or classified information. Compliance with these requirements often necessitates localized infrastructure, specialized data handling
protocols, and enhanced cybersecurity controls. Failure to comply with these requirements could result in contractual penalties, reputational harm, or the
loss of current and future business opportunities with affected clients, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We may not be able to protect our intellectual property or that of our clients.

Our technology and intellectual property provide us, in certain instances, with a competitive advantage. Although we seek to protect our
intellectual property through registration, enforcement, licensing, contractual arrangements, security controls and similar mechanisms, we may not be
able to successfully preserve our rights and they could lapse, expire or be invalidated, narrowed in scope, circumvented, challenged or become
obsolete. Trade secrets are generally difficult to protect. We implement technical and administrative measures to protect our confidential information and
trade secrets, including by requiring our employees and contractors be subject to confidentiality and invention assignment obligations, but such
measures may be inadequate to deter or prevent misappropriation of our confidential information or otherwise protect our intellectual property. In
addition, the laws of some foreign countries in which we operate do not protect intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws in the U.S. If we
are unable to enforce, protect and maintain our intellectual property rights or if there are any successful intellectual property challenges or infringement
proceedings against our intellectual property or us, our ability to differentiate our service offerings could be reduced. Litigation to enforce our intellectual
property against third parties, to defend against third-party claims of intellectual property infringement, or to determine or challenge the scope, validity or
enforceability of intellectual property rights, even if we ultimately prevail, could be costly and could divert our leadership’s attention away from other
aspects of our business.

We also hold licenses to third-party technology or intellectual property, which may be utilized in our business operations. If we are no longer able
to license such technology or intellectual property on commercially reasonable terms or otherwise, our business and financial performance could be
adversely affected.

We may use third-party open source software in our products. Some open source licenses, such as “copyleft” open source licenses, require end-
users who distribute software and services that include open source software to also make available all or part of such software’s source code. If our
activities were determined to be non-compliant with the terms of any applicable “copyleft” open source licenses, we may be required to publicly release
all or part of our proprietary source code for limited or no cost and our business and financial performance could be adversely affected.

If our intellectual property rights or work processes become obsolete, we may not be able to differentiate our service offerings and some of our

competitors may be able to offer more attractive services to our customers. Our competitors may independently attempt to develop or obtain access to
technologies that are similar or superior to our technologies.
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We will also need to continue to respond to and anticipate changes resulting from artificial intelligence and other similarly disruptive
technologies. If we are not successful in preserving and protecting our intellectual property rights and licenses, including trade secrets, or in staying
ahead of developing artificial intelligence technologies, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Our clients or other third parties may also provide us with their proprietary technology and intellectual property. There is a risk we may not
sufficiently protect our or their information from improper use or dissemination and, as a result, we could be subject to claims and litigation and resulting
liabilities, loss of contracts or other consequences that could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Government authorities may obtain certain information related to, or rights in or to the intellectual property in, our products or services. This may
allow government authorities to disclose such information or license such intellectual property to third parties, including our competitors, which could
have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Assertions by third parties of infringement, misappropriation or other violations by us of their intellectual property rights could result in
significant costs and substantially harm our business, financial condition and operation results.

In recent years, there has been significant litigation involving intellectual property rights in technology industries. We may face from time to time,
allegations that we or a supplier or customer have violated the rights of third parties, including patent, trademark, and other intellectual property rights. If,
with respect to any claim against us for violation of third-party intellectual property rights, we are unable to prevail in the litigation or retain or obtain
sufficient rights or develop non-infringing intellectual property or otherwise alter our business practices on a timely or cost-efficient basis, our business,
financial condition or results of operations may be adversely affected.

Any infringement, misappropriation or related claims, whether or not meritorious, are time consuming, divert technical and management
personnel, and are costly to resolve. As a result of any such dispute, we may have to develop non-infringing technology, pay damages, enter into royalty
or licensing agreements, cease utilizing products or services, or take other actions to resolve the claims. These actions, if required, may be costly or
unavailable on terms acceptable to us.

If we do not have adequate indemnification for our nuclear services, it could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The Price-Anderson Nuclear Industries Indemnity Act, commonly called the Price-Anderson Act (‘PAA”), is a U.S. federal law, which, among
other things, regulates radioactive materials and the nuclear energy industry, including liability and compensation in the event of nuclear related
incidents. The PAA provides certain protections and indemnification to nuclear energy plant operators and U.S. Department of Energy (“DoE”)
contractors. The PAA protections and indemnification apply to us as part of our services to the U.S. nuclear energy industry and DoE for new facilities,
maintenance, modification, decontamination and decommissioning of nuclear energy, weapons and research facilities.

We offer similar services in other jurisdictions outside the U.S. For those jurisdictions, varying levels of nuclear liability protection is provided by
international treaties, and/or domestic laws, such as the Nuclear Liability and Compensation Act of Canada and the Nuclear Installations Act of the
United Kingdom, insurance and/or assets of the nuclear installation operators (some of which are backed by governments) as well as under appropriate
enforceable contractual indemnifications and hold-harmless provisions. These protections and indemnifications, however, may not cover all of our liability
that could arise in the performance of these services. To the extent the PAA or other protections and indemnifications do not apply to our services, the
cost of losses associated with liability not covered by the available protections and indemnifications, or by virtue of our loss of business because of these
added costs could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our actual results could differ from the estimates and assumptions used to prepare our financial statements.

In preparing our financial statements, our leadership is required under U.S. GAAP to make estimates and assumptions as of the date of the
financial statements. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported values of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. Areas requiring significant estimates by our leadership include:
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* Recognition of contract revenue, costs, profit or losses in applying the principles of percentage of completion accounting;

» Estimated amounts for expected project losses, warranty costs, contract close-out or other costs;

* Recognition of recoveries under contract change orders or claims;

»  Collectability of billed and unbilled accounts receivable and the need and amount of any allowance for expected credit losses;
+ Estimates of other liabilities, including litigation and insurance revenues/reserves and reserves necessary for self-insured risks;
* Accruals for estimated liabilities, including litigation reserves;

» Valuation of assets acquired, and liabilities, goodwill, and intangible assets assumed, in acquisitions and ongoing assessment of impairment;
* Valuation estimates for redeemable noncontrolling interest calculations;

*  Valuation of stock-based compensation;

* The determination of liabilities under pension and other post retirement benefit programs; and

* Income tax provisions and related valuation allowances.

Our actual business and financial results could differ from our estimates of such results, which could have a material adverse impact on our
financial condition and results of operations.

Impairment of long-lived assets or restructuring activities may require us to record a significant charge to earnings.

Our long-lived assets, including our lease right-of-use assets, equity investments and others, are subject to periodic testing for impairment.
Failure to achieve sufficient levels of cash flow at the asset group level has resulted in, and could result in additional, impairment of our long-lived assets.
Further changes in the business environment could lead to changes in the scope of operations of our business. These changes, including the closure of
one or more offices, could result in restructuring and/or asset impairment charges.

Our benefit plan expenses and obligations may fluctuate depending on various factors, including inflation, changes in levels of interest rates,
changes in regulations and pension plan asset performance.

We have various employee benefit plan obligations that require us to make contributions to satisfy, over time, our underfunded benefit
obligations, which are generally determined by calculating the projected benefit obligations minus the fair value of plan assets. For example, as of
September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024, our defined benefit pension and post retirement benefit plans were underfunded by $41.5 million and
$82.2 million, respectively, not including U.S. multiemployer pension plans. See Note 13- Pension and Other Post Retirement Benefit Plans in the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional disclosure. We may have to contribute
additional cash to meet any underfunded benefit obligations associated with retirement and post retirement benefit plans we manage or for which we
have contribution or funding obligations (e.g., multiemployer pension plans). If we are required to contribute a significant amount of the deficit for
underfunded benefit plans, our cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

Additionally, we provide health care and other benefits to our employees. In recent years, costs for health care have increased more rapidly than
general inflation in the U.S. economy. If this trend in health care costs continues, our cost to provide such benefits could increase, which could have a
material adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

We are also a participating employer in various Multi-Employer Pension Plans ("MEPPs") associated with some of the work we perform on a
union basis, which MEPPs are managed by third party trusts and over which we have no control, including as to how the MEPPs are managed or
financial investment decisions are made. If any of these MEPPs is underfunded, we could face the imposition of underfunded liability or withdrawal
liability at a materially adverse level.

We also continue to monitor changes in global pension regulations, as the complexity of pension laws in the jurisdictions where we sponsor
plans can present financial risks in the event of non-compliance.
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Our businesses could be materially and adversely affected by events outside of our control.

Extraordinary or force majeure events beyond our control, such as natural or human caused disasters and geopolitical volatility and conflicts,
could negatively impact our ability to operate. As an example, from time to time we face unexpected severe weather conditions that may result in
weather-related delays that are not always reimbursable under a fixed-price contract; evacuation of personnel and curtailment of services; increased
labor and material costs in areas resulting from weather-related damage and subsequent increased demand for labor and materials for repairing and
rebuilding; inability to deliver materials, equipment and personnel to work locations in accordance with contract schedules; and loss of productivity.

When making contract proposals, we rely heavily on our estimates of costs and timing to complete the associated projects, as well as
assumptions regarding technical issues. However, we may remain obligated to perform our services after any natural or human caused event, unless a
force majeure clause or other contractual provision provides us with relief from our contractual obligations. Our profitability may be adversely affected
when we incur contract costs that we cannot bill to our customers. If we are not able to react quickly to such events, or if a high concentration of our
projects is in a specific geographic region that suffers from a natural or human caused catastrophe, our operations may be significantly affected, which
could have a material adverse impact on our operations. In addition, if we cannot complete our contracts on time, we may be subject to potential liability
claims by our clients which may reduce our profits.

Our continued success is dependent upon our ability to hire, retain, and utilize qualified personnel.

The success of our business is dependent upon our ability to hire, retain and utilize qualified personnel, including engineers, architects,
designers, craft personnel and corporate leadership professionals who have the required experience and expertise at a reasonable cost. The market for
these and other personnel is competitive. From time to time, it may be difficult to attract and retain qualified individuals with the expertise, and in the
timeframe, demanded by our clients, or to replace such personnel when needed in a timely manner. In certain geographic areas, for example, we may
not be able to satisfy the demand for our services because of our inability to successfully hire and retain qualified personnel. Furthermore, some of our
personnel hold government granted clearance that may be required to obtain government projects. If we were to lose some or all of these personnel,
they would be difficult to replace. Loss of the services of, or failure to recruit, qualified technical and leadership personnel could limit our ability to
successfully complete existing projects and compete for new projects.

In addition, in the event that any of our key personnel retire or otherwise leave the Company, we need to have appropriate succession plans in
place and to successfully implement such plans, which requires devoting time and resources toward identifying and integrating new personnel into
leadership roles and other key positions. If we cannot attract and retain qualified personnel or effectively implement appropriate succession plans, it
could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Remote and hybrid working arrangements may increase our costs and adversely impact our culture and our ability to effectively recruit, retain
and train our personnel.

Many of our employees have been working remotely since the COVID-19 pandemic. Remote working arrangements require that we continue to
adopt techniques and tools to effectively train and integrate new hires and preserve our culture. Failure to effectively train our employees could create
challenges for us in maintaining high levels of employee awareness of, and compliance with, our internal procedures and external regulatory compliance
requirements, in addition to increasing our recruiting, training and supervisory costs, while failure to preserve our culture for any reason could harm our
future success, including our ability to recruit new talent in the marketplace and retain existing personnel, innovate and operate effectively and execute
on our business strategy. Conversely, our new hybrid working policy, which requires certain employees to work in an assigned office or client site for a
minimum number of days each week, requires that we adopt techniques to effectively communicate and demonstrate the benefits of in-person

collaboration, team building and execution and individual and team learning and professional development. Failure to adequately communicate and
demonstrate the benefits of our hybrid working policy and obtain employee buy-in could similarly harm our future success, including our ability to recruit
new talent in the marketplace and retain existing personnel, innovate and operate effectively and execute on our business strategy.
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Negotiations with labor unions and possible work actions could disrupt operations and increase labor costs and operating expenses.

A certain portion of our work force has entered into, and additional portions may in the future enter into, collective bargaining agreements, which
on occasion may require renegotiation. The outcome of future negotiations relating to union representation or collective bargaining agreements may not
be favorable to the Company in that they may increase our operating expenses and lower our net income as a result of higher wages or benefit
expenses. In addition, negotiations with unions diverts management attention and could disrupt operations, which may adversely affect our results of
operations. If we are unable to negotiate acceptable collective bargaining agreements, we may have to address union-related work actions, including
work slowdowns, lockouts and strikes. Depending on the nature, type and duration of any work action, these actions could have a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our professional reputation and relationships are critical to our business, and any harm to our reputation or relationships could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our professional reputation is critical to maintaining strong relationships with our customers, suppliers, employees, investors, and the
communities in which we operate. Adverse publicity or negative public perception of our company, whether actual or perceived, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

* Reputational harm may arise from a variety of sources, including, but not limited to:

*  Project performance issues, such as schedule delays, work stoppages, cost overruns or failure to meet project specifications or professional
standards;

» Health, safety, or security incidents at work sites involving our employees, contractors, subcontractors, clients or others;
»  Cybersecurity or data protection failures, including breaches of confidential or proprietary information;

* Mismanagement of emerging technologies, including artificial intelligence;

»  Compliance lapses, including those related to domestic and foreign government laws, regulations and policies;

»  Environmental incidents, such as the contamination of, or damage to, natural resources or the environment, caused by us or our contractors,
subcontractors, agents or partners;

» Changing and evolving values and perceptions regarding climate change and sustainability, including any perceived shortcomings in our
climate- or sustainability-related practices or policies;

* Engagements in or perceived connections to politically or socially sensitive activities;

*  Misconduct, fraud or other improper conduct or other acts resulting in reputational damage by our employees, contractors, subcontractors,
agents, partners or anyone performing on behalf of the company; and

» Disputes with our partners or clients or negative outcomes of pending or future claims and litigation.

The speed and reach of digital communications and social media increase the likelihood that negative information, whether accurate or not,
could spread quickly and be difficult to remediate. Damage to our reputation may affect customer and government agency decisions in awarding
contracts, as many of our public-sector and large private-sector customers place high importance on past performance, safety records, and community
impact. Reputational harm may also negatively influence employee morale, talent retention, and recruitment, while increasing regulatory oversight and/or
compliance costs, or result in more restrictive contract terms. In addition, a loss of investor, lender, or community confidence could increase our cost of
capital, limit our access to future business opportunities and diminish shareholder value. Any such reputational damage, whether arising from a single
event or a series of issues, could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
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Our focus on new growth areas for our business entails risks, including those associated with new relationships, clients, talent needs,
capabilities, service and product offerings, and maintaining our collaborative culture and core values.

We are focused on growing our presence in our addressable markets by: expanding our relationships with existing clients, suppliers,
subcontractors and partners across our full value chain, developing new clients by leveraging our core competencies, further developing our existing
capabilities and service offerings, creating new capabilities and solutions offerings to address our clients' emerging needs, and undertaking business
development efforts focused on identifying near-term developments and long-term trends that may pose significant challenges for our clients, and
identifying potential corporate acquisitions that could strengthen or enhance our service offerings. These efforts entail inherent risks associated with
innovation and competition from other participants in those areas, potential failure to help our clients respond to the challenges they face, our ability to
manage risk exposure and comply with uncertain evolving legal standards applicable to certain of our offerings, including those in the cybersecurity area
and related to PFAS services offered to our clients, and, with respect to potential international growth, risks associated with operating in foreign
jurisdictions, such as compliance with applicable foreign and U.S. laws and regulations that may impose different and, occasionally, conflicting or
contradictory requirements, and the economic, legal, and political conditions in the foreign jurisdictions in which we operate. As we work to develop new
capabilities, service and product offerings and relationships with existing and potential clients, suppliers, subcontractors and partners across our full
value chain, these efforts could harm our results of operations due to, among other things, a diversion of our focus and resources and actual costs,
opportunity costs of pursuing these opportunities in lieu of others and a failure to reach a profitable return on our investments in new technologies,
capabilities, and businesses, including expenses on research and development investments, and these efforts could ultimately be unsuccessful.

The needs of our customers change and evolve regularly. Our success depends upon our ability to identify emerging technological trends;
develop or acquire technologically advanced, innovative, and cost-effective products and services; and market these products and services to our
customers. For example, one of our business strategies is to invest in, develop and promote innovative climate response technologies and solutions in

order to meet the demands of our public and private sector clients. A misalignment between the technologies and solutions we identify to invest in,
develop and promote and our clients’ needs may adversely impact our results of operations and reputation. Although we have strategies to mitigate this
risk, we cannot assure you that we will identify the most effective technologies and solutions to invest in, promote or develop. Additionally, as we diversify
and expand our product offerings, there is also an increased risk that one or more of our product offerings could fail to meet specifications in a particular
application or could be perceived by our customers to contain defects, which could result in our being liable for damages and losses that arise from such
products. Products with defects, or which are otherwise incompatible with intended end uses, may also result in us having to recall such products, or
provide additional services under the product warranty, which may impact our profitability. A failure of our products and solutions to meet specifications
may materially adversely affect our business, results of operations, or financial condition.

Our success also depends on our continued access to suppliers, subcontractors and partners, who provide us with important technologies,
components and talent. The possibility exists that our competitors might develop new capabilities or service offerings that might cause our existing
capabilities and service offerings to become obsolete. If we fail in our new capabilities development efforts or our capabilities or services fail to achieve
market acceptance more rapidly than our competitors, our ability to procure new contracts could be negatively impacted, which would negatively impact
our results of operations and financial condition.

In addition, with the growth of our U.S. and international operations, we provide client services and undertake business development efforts in
numerous and disparate geographic locations, both domestically and internationally. Our ability to effectively serve our clients is dependent upon our
ability to successfully leverage our operating model across all of these and any future locations, maintain effective management controls over all of our
locations to ensure, among other things, compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations, and instill our core values in all of our personnel and
partners at each of these and any future locations. Any inability to ensure any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our business and
results of operations.
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Fluctuations in commodity prices may affect our customers’ investment decisions and therefore subject us to risks of cancellation, delays in
existing work, or changes in the timing and funding of new awards.

Commodity prices can affect our customers in a number of ways. For example, for those customers that produce commodity products such as
oil, gas, batteries or fertilizers, fluctuations in price can have a direct effect on their profitability and cash flow and, therefore, their willingness to continue
to invest or make new capital investments. Furthermore, declines in commodity prices can negatively impact our business in regions whose economies
are substantially dependent on commodity prices, such as the Middle East. To the extent commodity prices decline or fluctuate and our customers defer
new investments or cancel or delay existing projects, the demand for our services could decrease, which may have a material adverse impact on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Commodity prices can also strongly affect the costs of projects. Rising commodity prices can negatively impact the potential returns on
investments that are planned, as well as those in progress, and result in customers deferring new investments or canceling or delaying existing projects.
Cancellations and delays have affected our past results and may do so in the future in significant and unpredictable ways and could have a material
adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

If we, or any of our subsidiaries or companies in which we have made strategic investments, lose, or experience a significant reduction in,
business from one or a few large customers, it could have a material adverse impact on us.

Afew clients have in the past, and may in the future, account for a significant portion of our revenue and/or backlog, or the revenue and/or

backlog for our subsidiaries or companies in which we have made strategic investments, in any one year or over a period of several consecutive years.
For example, in fiscal 2025, 2024 and 2023, approximately 8%, 10% and 9%, respectively, of our revenue was earned directly or indirectly from agencies
of the U.S. federal government. Although we have long-standing relationships with many of our significant clients, our clients may unilaterally reduce,
delay or cancel their contracts at any time. If we, or any of our subsidiaries or companies in which we have made strategic investments, lose, or
experience a significant reduction in business from a significant client could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and
results of operations.

We may use artificial intelligence, machine learning, data science and similar technologies in our business, and challenges with properly
managing such technologies could result in reputational harm, competitive harm, and legal liability, and adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

As part of our broader digital transformation strategy, we are integrating artificial intelligence machine learning, data science and similar
technologies (collectively, “Al”) to improve operational efficiency, enhance service delivery, and support data-driven decision-making across our core
markets, including advisory services, infrastructure, environmental services, and defense. Al is being leveraged to optimize project workflows, automate
repetitive tasks, and strengthen predictive analytics. These capabilities are expected to contribute to long-term value creation and competitive
differentiation. However, the adoption of Al also introduces new regulatory compliance and cybersecurity considerations, including increased exposure to
data breaches, adversarial attacks on Al models, and vulnerabilities in third-party Al platforms. While we believe that we have implemented robust
cybersecurity controls, including threat detection, secure model development practices, and governance frameworks to responsibly and securely deploy
Al technologies, we cannot be certain that such efforts will be successful.

As with many developing technologies, Al presents risks and challenges that could affect its further development, adoption, and use, and
therefore our business. Al algorithms may be flawed or biased. Datasets used to train or develop Al systems may be insufficient, of inferior quality, or

contain biased information. Additionally, the laws and regulations concerning the use of Al continue to evolve. There is increasing divergence globally

among Al regulations, which will require us to navigate different obligations in different geographies. If the use or integration of Al systems, or the outputs
generated by such systems, were determined to be non-compliant (e.g., in relation to intellectual property or data privacy rights), this may result in
liability, including legal liability, or adversely affect our business, reputation, brand, financial condition and results of operations. It is possible that
emerging regulations may limit or block the use of Al in our business and solutions or otherwise impose other restrictions that may affect or impair the
usability or efficiency of our business or services for an extended period of time or indefinitely. Our competitors or other third parties may incorporate Al
into their product development, product offerings, technology and infrastructure products more quickly or more successfully than us, which could impair
our ability to compete effectively and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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We maintain our cash at financial institutions, often in balances that exceed federally insured limits.

The majority of our cash is held in accounts at U.S. banking institutions that we believe are of high quality. Cash held in depository accounts may
at times exceed the $250,000 Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limits. If such banking institutions were to fail, we could lose all or a
portion of those amounts held in excess of such insurance limitations. Any material loss that we may experience in the future could have a material
adverse effect on our financial position and could materially impact our ability to pay our operational expenses or make other payments. Banking
institution failures, or changes in legislation and regulation, may adversely impact other entities that would, in turn, impact us. If our clients, suppliers,
insurers, joint venture partners, sureties, or other parties with whom we do business are affected by issues in the banking industry it may have an
adverse impact on our operational and financial performance.

Risks Related to International Operations

Our international operations are exposed to additional risks and uncertainties, including unfavorable political developments and weak foreign
economies.

For fiscal 2025, approximately 38% of our revenue was earned from clients outside the U.S. Our business is dependent on the continued
success of our international operations, and we expect our international operations to continue to account for a significant portion of our total revenues.
Our international operations are subject to a variety of risks, including:

* Recessions and other economic crises in other regions, such as Europe, Asia or other specific foreign economies and the impact on our costs of
doing business in those countries;

» Difficulties in staffing and managing foreign personnel and operations, including challenges related to logistics, communications and professional
licensure and work permits of our international workforce;

» Unexpected changes in foreign government policies, regulatory requirements and procurement practices, including policies adopted by countries
that may champion or otherwise favor domestic companies and technologies over foreign competitors;

« Potential non-compliance with a wide variety of laws and regulations, including anti-corruption, export control and anti-boycott laws and similar
non-U.S. laws and regulations;

« Potential non-compliance with regulations and evolving industry standards regarding consumer protection and data use and security, including
the General Data Protection Regulation approved by the European Union and the Data Protection Act approved by the United Kingdom;

« Lack of developed legal systems to enforce contractual rights;

»  Expropriation and nationalization of our assets in a foreign country;

» Renegotiation or nullification of our existing contracts;

»  The adoption of new, and the expansion of existing, trade or other restrictions;

» Embargoes, duties, tariffs or other trade restrictions, including sanctions;

»  Geopolitical developments that impact our or our clients’ ability to operate in a foreign country;
» Changes in labor conditions;

« Acts of war, aggression between nations, civil unrest, force majeure, and terrorism;

» The ability to finance efficiently our foreign operations;

* Social, political, and economic instability;

* Changes to tax policy;

»  Currency exchange rate fluctuations;

» Limitations on the ability to repatriate foreign earnings; and

» U.S. government policy changes in relation to the foreign countries in which we operate.

The lack of a well-developed legal system in some of these countries may make it difficult to enforce our contractual rights. In addition, military
action, geopolitical shifts or continued unrest, particularly in Ukraine and the Middle East, could disrupt our operations in the region and elsewhere and
may also impact the supply or pricing of ail, increase our security costs and cost of compliance with local laws, and present risks to our reputation.
Additionally, recent events, including changes in U.S. trade policies and responsive changes in policy by foreign jurisdictions and similar geopolitical
tensions and conflicts, including the Russia-Ukraine and Israel-Hamas conflicts, escalating tensions in the Middle East, increasing tensions between the
U.S. and China and uncertainty in the E.U., Asia and elsewhere, have increased levels of
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political and economic unpredictability globally, and may increase the volatility of global financial markets and the global and regional economies.

In addition, our globally connected talent force collaborates to deliver solutions for clients, agnostic of geography. This relies upon client
procurement models that are open to global professional service provision. Increased nationalization and heightened “buy-local” policies and regulations
could reduce the effectiveness and competitive differentiation enabled by our global delivery model and compound the existing talent shortage in key
geographies. To the extent our international operations are affected by unexpected or adverse economic, political and other conditions, our business,
financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.

Changes in domestic and foreign governmental laws, regulations and policies, changes in statutory tax rates and laws, and
unanticipated outcomes with respect to tax audits could adversely affect our business, profitability and reputation.

Our domestic and international sales and operations are subject to risks associated with changes in laws, regulations and policies (including
environmental and employment requirements, export/import laws, tax policies, integrated financial/non-financial reporting requirements, such as the
Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive and the Corporate Sustainability Due Diligence Directive in the European Union and other similar legal
requirements). Failure to comply with any of the foregoing laws, regulations and policies could result in civil and criminal, monetary and non-monetary
penalties, as well as damage to our reputation. In addition, our costs of complying with new and evolving regulatory reporting requirements and current
or future laws, including environmental protection, employment, data security, data privacy and health and safety laws, may exceed our estimates. While
these risks or the impact of these risks are difficult to predict, any one or more of them could adversely affect our business, results of operations and
reputation.

We are subject to taxation in a number of jurisdictions. Accordingly, our effective tax rate is impacted by changes in the mix among earnings in
countries with differing statutory tax rates. A material change in the statutory tax rate or interpretation of local law in a jurisdiction in which we have
significant operations could adversely impact our effective tax rate and impact our financial results.

Our tax returns are subject to audit and taxing authorities could challenge our operating structure, taxable presence, application of treaty benefits
or transfer pricing policies. If changes in statutory tax rates or laws or audits result in assessments different from amounts estimated, our business,
results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected. In addition, changes in tax laws could have an adverse effect on our customers,
resulting in lower demand for our products and services.

Foreign exchange risks may affect our ability to realize a profit from certain projects.

We are a global professional services company, with our international operations accounting for approximately 38% of our annual revenue in
fiscal 2025. Fluctuations in exchange rates for foreign currencies to the U.S. dollar could impact the earnings and cash flows we receive from projects in
non-U.S. markets, negatively impact our competitiveness in those markets or otherwise adversely impact our business results, reported financial
condition and the U.S. dollar value of our backlog. Our reported financial condition and results of operations are exposed to the effects (both positive and
negative) that fluctuating exchange rates have on the process of translating the financial statements of our international operations, which are
denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, into the U.S. dollar.

In addition, fluctuations in exchange rates may increase our supply costs (as measured in U.S. dollars) in international markets. While we
generally attempt to denominate our contracts in the currencies of our expenditures, we do enter into contracts that expose us to currency risk,
particularly to the extent contract revenue is denominated in a currency different than the contract costs. We may attempt to minimize our exposure from
currency risks by obtaining escalation provisions for projects in inflationary economies or entering into derivative (hedging) instruments, when there is
currency risk exposure that is not naturally mitigated via our contracts. These actions, however, may not always eliminate currency risk exposure. The
governments of certain countries have or may in the future impose restrictive exchange controls on local currencies and it may not be possible for us to
engage in effective hedging transactions to mitigate the risks associated with fluctuations in a particular currency. We may also be exposed to limitations
on our ability to reinvest earnings from operations in one country to fund the financing requirements of our operations in other countries.
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Our global presence could give rise to material fluctuations in our income tax rates.

We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining our worldwide
provision for income taxes. In the ordinary course of our business, there are many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. We are regularly under audit by tax authorities. Although we believe that our tax estimates and tax positions are reasonable, they could be
materially affected by many factors including the final outcome of tax audits and related litigation, the introduction of new tax accounting standards,
legislation, regulations and related interpretations, our global mix of earnings, the realizability of deferred tax assets and changes in uncertain tax
positions. An increase or decrease in our effective tax rate, or an ultimate determination that the Company owes more taxes than the amounts previously
accrued, could have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

We work in international locations where there are high security and compliance risks, which could result in harm to our employees or
unanticipated costs.

Some of our services are performed in high-risk locations, where the country or location is subject to political, social or economic risks, or war,
terrorism or civil unrest. In those locations where we have employees or operations, we may expend significant efforts and incur substantial security
costs to maintain the safety of our personnel and to ensure that our personnel comply with all applicable laws and regulations. Despite these activities, in
these locations, we cannot always guarantee the safety of our personnel or the lawfulness of their actions. Acts of terrorism, threats of armed conflicts,
violence in the workplace, kidnapping and ransom, and human rights violations, including unethical sourcing, in or around various areas in which we
operate could limit or disrupt markets and our operations, including disruptions resulting from the evacuation of personnel or the cancellation of
contracts, and in some instances, cause damage to our reputation. The loss of key employees or contractors, whether as a result of injury, death,
attrition or termination, may adversely impact our business operations.

International trade issues, including tariffs and counter tariffs, if continued, may have a negative impact on our business generally.

Over the past year, there have been notable developments in international trade from the imposition of tariffs and counter tariffs in the United
States, and in other countries in which we or our customers and suppliers operate. Increases in protectionist measures such as tariffs or import or export
licensing requirements, whether imposed by the United States or such other countries, may adversely impact our business by causing a slowdown in
global trade and a decrease in government or corporate spending.

These measures may also have the effect of heightening many of the other risks applicable to our business, including risks relating to:

» the impact of inflation and high interest rates and/or construction costs, particularly on any fixed-price contract, which we may not be able to fully
mitigate,

» our failure to meet performance requirements or contractual schedules, including as a result of supply chain disruptions,

» areduction in the amount of available governmental funding,

» our international operations, including risks of facing backlash from potential customers as a result of being headquartered in the United States,
and

* our indebtedness and credit markets.

While tariffs on goods and other trade measures have not yet had a significant impact on our business or results of operations, we are
monitoring and evaluating any potential impacts that the imposition of tariffs and other trade measures may have on our business, and implementing
ways in which we, or our clients, may mitigate the potential impact of such tariffs and other trade measures on our business and future demand for our
services by our clients. There is no assurance that we will be successful in mitigating such impacts. Additionally, we cannot fully predict the further
developments that could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Risks Related to Acquisitions, Investments, Joint Ventures and Divestitures

We may not achieve some or all of the expected benefits of the Separation Transaction.

On September 27, 2024, we completed the separation of our Critical Mission Services business and a portion of our Divergent Solutions
business (the “Separated Business”) in the Separation Transaction. In addition, during fiscal 2025, we disposed of our remaining stake in AMTM, and
concluded providing most of the transitional services we were requested to provide in connection with the transaction. Although we believe that the
Separation Transaction will enhance our long-term value by allowing us to dedicate financial and human capital resources to pursue appropriate growth
opportunities and execute our strategic plan, we may not be able to achieve some or all of the anticipated benefits from the separation of our
businesses, and the Separation Transaction may adversely affect our business. The Separation Transaction resulted in two independent, publicly traded
companies. We are now a smaller, less diversified and more narrowly focused business than before the Separation Transaction, which makes us more
vulnerable to changing market and economic conditions. Additionally, the loss of scale from the Separated Business could negatively impact our results
of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Additionally, any contractual arrangements between us and the Separated Business will be on an arm's length basis rather than intercompany
arrangements, and therefore may be less favorable to us, may not efficiently mitigate dis-synergies arising from the Separation Transaction, and may be
inadequate to provide for the ongoing operation and growth of our business, preserve continuity for clients, deliver key capabilities or otherwise provide
for continued cooperation in relevant business areas. If we fail to achieve some or all of the benefits that we expect to achieve as a result of the
Separation Transaction, or do not achieve them in the time we expect, our results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely
affected.

Amentum may fail to perform under various transaction agreements that were executed as part of the Separation Transaction.

In connection with the Separation Transaction, we and Amentum entered into various transaction agreements, including a transition services
agreement and project services agreement. The obligations under the transition services agreement have been largely concluded. However, the project
services agreement provides for the performance of certain services by us or Amentum for our benefit of the other party on certain ongoing client
projects. We rely on Amentum to satisfy its performance obligations under these agreements. If Amentum is unable or unwilling to satisfy its obligations
under these agreements, including indemnification obligations, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

The Separation Transaction could result in a significant tax liability if the terms of the IRS private letter ruling are not satisfied.

In connection with the Separation Transaction, we received a private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) stating that the
distribution qualified for tax-free treatment under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). Notwithstanding the IRS private letter
ruling and the opinions of tax advisors received prior to the distribution, if the IRS determines that factual representations or assumptions made in the
IRS private letter ruling request are untrue or incomplete in any material respect or if undertakings made to the IRS in connection with the IRS private
letter ruling request are or have been violated, then we will not be able to rely on the IRS private letter ruling and the potential resulting tax liability to us
and our shareholders could be substantial.

In general, if the distribution and certain related transactions were determined not to qualify as transactions described in Sections 355 and
368(a)(1)(D) of the Code at a point in the future, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, each of our shareholders who received Amentum common stock
in the distribution would be treated as receiving a taxable distribution, and we generally would recognize taxable gain with respect to the transfer of
Amentum common stock in the distribution, which could result in a significant tax to us. Additionally, if one or more persons acquire a 50% or greater
interest (measured by vote or value) in the stock of Jacobs or Amentum, directly or indirectly, as part of a plan or series of related transactions that
includes the distribution, then, even if the distribution otherwise qualifies as a transaction described in Section 355 of the Code, the distribution may
result in a tax liability to us (but not to our shareholders). For purposes of Section 355(e) of the Code, any acquisitions of Jacobs or Amentum stock,
directly or indirectly, within the period beginning two years before the distribution and ending two years after the distribution are generally presumed to be
part of such a plan, although we may, depending on the facts and circumstances, be able to rebut that presumption.
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Our use of joint ventures, partnerships and strategic investments in entities exposes us to risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside
of our control.

As is common in our industry, we perform certain contracts as a member of joint ventures, partnerships, and similar arrangements. This situation
exposes us to a number of risks, including the risk that our partners may be unable to fulfill their obligations to us or our clients.

Further, we have limited ability to control the actions of our joint venture partners, including with respect to nonperformance, default, bankruptcy
or legal or regulatory compliance. Our partners may be unable or unwilling to provide the required levels of financial support to the partnerships. If these
circumstances occur, we may be liable for claims and losses attributable to the partner by operation of law or contract. These circumstances could also
lead to disputes and litigation with our partners or clients, all of which could have a material adverse impact on our reputation, business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We depend on the management effectiveness of our joint venture partners. Differences in views among the joint venture participants may result
in delayed decisions or in failures to agree on major issues, which could materially affect the business and operations of these ventures. In addition, in
many of the countries in which we engage in joint ventures, it may be difficult to enforce our contractual rights under the applicable joint venture
agreement. If we are not able to enforce our contractual rights, we may not be able to realize the benefits of the joint venture or we may be subject to
additional liabilities.

We participate in joint ventures and similar arrangements in which we are not the controlling partner. In these cases, we have limited control over
the actions of the joint venture. These joint ventures may not be subject to the same requirements regarding internal controls and internal control over
financial reporting that we follow. To the extent the controlling partner makes decisions that negatively impact the joint venture or internal control
problems arise within the joint venture, it could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The failure by a joint venture partner to comply with applicable laws, regulations or client requirements could negatively impact our business and,
for government clients, could result in fines, penalties, suspension or even debarment being imposed on us, which could have a material adverse impact
on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

An impairment charge on our goodwill or intangible assets could have a material adverse impact on our financial position and results of
operations.

Because we have grown in part through acquisitions, goodwill and intangible assets represent a substantial portion of our assets. As of
September 26, 2025, we had $4.78 billion of goodwill, representing 42.5% of our total assets of $11.3 billion. Under U.S. GAAP, we are required to test
goodwill carried in our Consolidated Balance Sheets for possible impairment on an annual basis, and whenever events occur, or circumstances change,
that indicate impairments could exist, based upon a fair value approach. We also assess the recoverability of the unamortized balance of our intangible
assets when indications of impairment are present based on expected future probability and undiscounted expected cash flows and their contribution to
our overall operations. We have chosen to perform our annual impairment reviews of goodwill at the beginning of the fiscal fourth quarter.

If our market capitalization drops significantly below the amount of net equity recorded on our balance sheet, it might indicate a decline in our fair
value and would require us to further evaluate whether our goodwill has been impaired. If the fair value of our reporting units is less than their carrying
value, we could be required to record an impairment charge. The amount of any impairment could be significant and could have a material adverse
impact on our financial position and results of operations for the period in which the charge is taken.

We may engage in mergers, acquisitions, strategic investments or divestitures as part of our business strategy to accelerate our growth.
These transactions present certain risks and uncertainties.

We may engage in mergers, acquisitions, strategic investments, or divestitures (“M&A Activity”) as part of our business strategy to accelerate our
growth. We have engaged in M&A activity both as a purchaser, including our acquisitions of CH2M, BlackLynx and StreetLight and our strategic
investment in PA Consulting, as well as a seller, including the sale of the ECR (as defined below) business to Worley (as defined below) and the
Separation Transaction. Our future M&A Activity may differ from those historically associated with our operations. These transactions, as well as
transactions we may engage in in the future, present a number of risks, including:
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Assumption of risks and liabilities of an acquired business, including those that were not accurately identified or quantified during the due
diligence process and/or that were unknown at the time the transaction was negotiated, such as if the target company failed to comply with
U.S. federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations and/or contractual requirements with clients;

Failure to realize anticipated benefits, such as cost savings, synergies, business opportunities and growth opportunities within the
anticipated timeframe or at all, including due to insufficient profit generation to offset liabilities assumed and expenses associated with the
acquired business or strategic investment and the loss of key customers or suppliers, including as a result of any actual or perceived
conflicts of interest;

Difficulties or delays in obtaining regulatory approvals, licenses and permits;

Difficulties relating to combining previously separate entities into a single, integrated, and efficient business, including the inability to
adequately bridge possible differences in cultures, business practices and management philosophies and difficulties retaining and
assimilating key personnel, benefits, services and systems of an acquired business;

For strategic investments in which we do not acquire 100% of the target company, the other equity holders may have various governance
rights and other minority protections, including consent rights over certain actions taken by the company, and these may result in additional
costs, including from continuing to operate the target company on a standalone basis;

The effects of diverting leadership’s attention from day-to-day operations to matters involving the integration of target companies and/or new
and sometimes geographically dispersed operations;

Potentially substantial transaction costs associated with business combinations, strategic investments and/or divestitures and the possible
incurrence of substantial indebtedness to finance the transaction;

Potentially insufficient profit generation to offset liabilities assumed and expenses associated with the acquired business or strategic
investment;

Potential impairment resulting from the post-closing deterioration in the target company's business or the overpayment for an acquisition or
investment, including due to the failure of our valuation methodologies to accurately capture the value of the target company's business;
Increased burdens on our staff and on our administrative, internal control and operating systems, which may hinder our legal and regulatory
compliance activities;

Increased financial and accounting challenges and complexities in areas such as tax planning, treasury management, financial and non-
financial (e.g., climate-related) reporting and internal controls;

Potential post-closing financial arrangements, such as purchase price adjustments, earn-out obligations and indemnification obligations,
which may have unpredictable results and include post-closing restrictions that may impact the Company's ability to integrate an acquired
business or pursue growth opportunities;

The potential for litigation relating to the transaction, including claims for damages or indemnification by any counterparty, including potential
disputes relating to post-closing covenants or payment obligations; and

The risks discussed in this Item 1A. Risk Factors may be magnified by the activities of any acquired business prior to the acquisition.

While we may obtain indemnification rights from the sellers of acquired businesses and/or insurance that could mitigate certain of these risks,
such rights may be difficult to enforce, the losses may exceed any dedicated escrow funds and the indemnitors may not have the ability to financially
support the indemnity, or the insurance coverage may be unavailable or insufficient to cover all losses.

If our leadership is unable to successfully integrate acquired companies or implement our growth strategy with respect to acquisitions and/or
strategic investments, our operating results could be harmed. Moreover, we cannot assure that we will continue to successfully expand or that growth or
expansion will result in profitability.

In addition, there is no assurance that we will continue to locate suitable acquisition or investment targets or that we will be able to consummate
any such transactions on terms and conditions acceptable to us. Existing cash balances and cash flow from operations, together with borrowing capacity
under our credit facilities, may be insufficient to make acquisitions and/or strategic investments. Future acquisitions and/or strategic investments may
require us to obtain additional equity or debt financing, which may not be available on attractive terms, or at all. Acquisitions and/or strategic investments
may also bring us into businesses we have not previously conducted and expose us to additional business risks that are different than those we have
traditionally experienced.
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In addition, we may periodically divest or plan to divest businesses, including businesses that are no longer a part of our ongoing strategic plan.
Divesting businesses involves risks and uncertainties, such as the difficulty separating assets related to such businesses from the businesses we retain,
employee distraction, and the need to obtain regulatory approvals and other third-party consents, which could potentially disrupt customer and vendor
relationships. These Divestitures may require a significant investment of our time and resources and may disrupt our business, distract our management
from other responsibilities and may result in losses on disposal or continued financial involvement in the divested business, including through
indemnification, guarantee or other financial arrangements, for a period of time following the divestment, which could adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations. When we determine that we would like to divest a business, we may not be able to divest that business on
attractive terms or at all. Because of these challenges, as well as market conditions or other factors, anticipated divestitures may take longer or be
costlier or generate fewer benefits than expected and may not be completed at all. If we are unable to complete the divestitures or to successfully
transition divested businesses, our business and financial results could be negatively impacted.

Acquisitions, strategic investments and divestitures create various business risks and uncertainties during the pendency of the transaction.

Consummation of any acquisition, merger, strategic investment or divestiture is subject to the satisfaction of customary conditions, including one
or more of the following: (i) due diligence and its associated time and cost commitments, (ii) board and shareholder approval, (iii) regulatory approvals,
(iv) the absence of any legal restraint that would prevent the consummation of the transaction, (v) the absence of material adverse conditions which can
prevent the consummation of the transaction, and (vi) compliance with covenants and the accuracy of representations and warranties contained in the
transaction agreement, among others. One or more of these conditions may not be fulfilled and, accordingly, the transaction may not be consummated or
may be significantly delayed. In such case, our ongoing business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially adversely affected, and
the market price of our common stock may decline, particularly to the extent that the market price reflects a market assumption that the transaction will
be consummated or will be consummated within a particular timeframe.

Furthermore, most transactions require the Company to incur substantial expense associated with closing and if the transaction is not
consummated, we will incur these expenses without realizing the expected benefits. The pursuit of the transaction will also require management
attention and use of internal resources that would otherwise be focused on general business operations. In addition, customers’ uncertainty about the
effect of the transaction may have an adverse effect on the ability to win customer contracts or could cause existing clients to seek to change existing
business relationships. Employee morale due to the uncertainties associated with the transaction could also be negatively affected. Any of the foregoing,
or other risks arising in connection with a failure or delay in consummating a transaction, including the diversion of management attention or loss of other
opportunities during the pendency of the transaction, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may make minority investments that subject us to risks and uncertainties outside of our control.

From time to time, the Company may make minority investments in the equity securities of companies that we do not control. Minority
investments inherently involve a lesser degree of control over business operations, thereby potentially increasing the financial, legal, operational and/or
compliance risks associated with the minority investment.

To the extent we hold only a minority equity interest in a company, we may lack affirmative control rights, which may diminish our ability to
influence the company’s affairs in a manner intended to enhance the value of our investment in the company. We could incur losses if the majority
stakeholders or the management of the company takes risks or otherwise acts in a manner that does not serve our interests. In addition, we could be
subject to reputational harm if the company in which the investment is made makes business, financial or management decisions with which we do not
agree. These circumstances could also lead to disputes and litigation with management or employees of the company in which the investment is made,
or its other stockholders.

In most cases, the companies in which we make investments will have indebtedness or equity securities or may be permitted to incur
indebtedness or to issue equity securities, which rank senior to our investment. We also may make investments in early-stage companies that depend on
venture funding and are not profitable. In the event of insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, reorganization or bankruptcy of a company in which an
investment is made, holders of debt instruments and securities ranking senior to our investment would typically be entitled to receive payment in full
before distributions could be made in respect of our investment.
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We may also enter into separate commercial arrangements with these companies, whether before, concurrently with, or after making a minority
investment. In certain cases, the commercial arrangement may be a driving factor behind our investment. We cannot assure you that that the
commercial arrangement will further our business strategy as we expected. We may not realize all the economic benefits expected from the commercial
agreement or realize the expected return on our investments.

Risks Related to Regulatory Compliance

Past and future non-financial health, safety, security and environment-related laws and regulations could impose significant additional costs
and liabilities.

We are subject to a variety of HSSE-related laws and regulations governing, among other things, discharges to air and water, the handling,
storage and disposal of hazardous or waste materials and the remediation of contamination associated with the releases of hazardous substances,
government security standards and human health and safety. These laws and regulations and the risk of attendant litigation can cause significant delays
to a project and add significantly to its cost. Violations of these regulations could subject us and our management to civil and criminal penalties and other
liabilities.

Various U.S. federal, state, local and foreign environmental laws and regulations may impose liability for property damage and costs of
investigation and cleanup of hazardous or toxic substances on property currently or previously owned by us or arising out of our waste management or
environmental remediation activities. These laws may impose responsibility and liability without regard to knowledge of or causation of the presence of
contaminants. The liability under these laws may be joint and several. We have potential liabilities associated with our past waste management and other
activities and with our current and prior ownership of various properties. The discovery of additional contaminants or the imposition of unforeseen clean-
up obligations at these or other sites could have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

HSSE laws and regulations and policies are reviewed periodically, and any changes thereto could affect us in substantial and unpredictable
ways. Such changes could, for example, relax or repeal laws and regulations relating to the environment, which could result in a decline in the demand
for our environmental services and, in turn, could negatively impact our revenue. Changes in the environmental laws and regulations, remediation
obligations, enforcement actions, stricter interpretations of existing requirements, future discovery of contamination or claims for damages to persons,
property, natural resources or the environment could result in material costs and liabilities that we currently do not anticipate. Failure to comply with any
HSSE laws or regulations, whether actual or alleged, exposes us to fines, penalties or potential litigation liabilities, including costs, settlements and
judgments, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

If we fail to comply with any governmental requirements, our business may be adversely affected.

We are subject to U.S. federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations that affect our business, including data privacy and security,
employment and labor relations, immigration, taxation, anti-corruption, anti-bribery, import-export controls, trade restrictions, internal and disclosure
control obligations, securities regulation and anti-competition. For example, our global operations require importing and exporting goods and technology
across international borders which requires compliance with all export and import laws and regulations. Although we have policies and procedures to
comply with U.S. and foreign international trade laws, the violation of such laws could subject the Company and its employees to civil or criminal
penalties, including substantial monetary fines, or other adverse actions including denial of import or export privileges or debarment from participation in
U.S. government contracts, and could damage our reputation and our ability to do business.

In addition, we and many of our clients operate in highly regulated environments, which requires us or our clients to obtain, and to comply with,
federal, state and local government permits and approvals. These permits or approvals are subject to denial, revocation or modification under various
circumstances. Failure to obtain or comply with, or the loss or modification of, the conditions of permits or approvals subjects us to the risk of penalties or
other liabilities, could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and result of operations.
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We could be adversely affected by violations of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and similar worldwide anti-bribery laws.

The U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”), the U.K. Bribery Act of 2010, and similar anti-bribery laws in other jurisdictions generally
prohibit companies and their intermediaries from making improper payments for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. Our policies mandate
compliance with these anti-bribery laws, including the requirements to maintain accurate information and internal controls. We operate in many parts of
the world that have experienced governmental corruption to some degree and in certain circumstances; strict compliance with anti-bribery laws may
conflict with local customs and practices. Despite our training and compliance programs, there is no assurance that our internal control policies and
procedures will protect us from acts committed by our employees or agents. If we are found to be liable for FCPA or other violations (either due to our
own acts or our inadvertence, or due to the acts or inadvertence of others), we could suffer from civil and criminal penalties or other sanctions in multiple
jurisdictions, including contract cancellations or debarment and loss of reputation, any of which could have a material adverse impact on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Climate change and related environmental issues could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Climate change related events, such as increased frequency and severity of storms, floods, wildfires, droughts, hurricanes, freezing conditions,
and other natural disasters, may have both immediate and long-term impacts on our business, financial condition and results of operations. While we
seek to mitigate our business risks associated with climate change, we recognize that there are inherent climate related risks regardless of where we
conduct our business. For example, a catastrophic natural disaster could negatively impact any of our office locations and the locations of our customers.
Access to clean water and reliable energy in the communities where we conduct our business is critical to our operations. Accordingly, a natural disaster
has the potential to disrupt our and our customers’ businesses and may cause us to experience work stoppages, project delays, financial losses and
additional costs to resume operations, including increased insurance costs or loss of coverage, legal liability and reputational losses.

Further, the risks caused by climate change span across the full spectrum of the markets we serve. Our end-to-end services span advanced
manufacturing, cities & places, energy, environmental, life sciences, transportation and water. The direct physical risks that climate change poses to
infrastructure through chronic environmental changes, such as rising sea levels and temperatures, and acute events, such as hurricanes, droughts and
wildfires, is common to each of these markets. Infrastructure owners could face increased costs to maintain their assets, which could result in reduced
profitability and fewer resources for strategic investment. These types of physical risks could in turn lead to transitional risks (i.e., the degree to which
society responds to the threat of climate change), such as market and technology shifts, including decreased demand for our services and solutions,
reputational risks, such as how our values and practices regarding a low carbon transition are viewed by external and internal stakeholders, and policy
and legal risks, such as the extent to which low carbon transitions are driven by the governments of the jurisdictions in which we operate around the
globe, all of which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our business operations are subject to various and changing federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations that could result in costs
or sanctions that adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Evolving regulatory and disclosure standards around sustainability objectives and reporting could impose additional compliance obligations on
us that could adversely impact our business and results of operations. We seek to comply with applicable international and domestic regulations and
client demands regarding public disclosure of our sustainability practices. As new laws, regulations and similar initiatives and programs continue to be
adopted and implemented, we will be required to comply with such laws or regulations or potentially face negative consequences, such as market
access limitations, enforcement actions, civil suits or sanctions and fines. If new laws or regulations are more stringent than current legal or regulatory
requirements, we may experience increased compliance burdens and costs to meet such obligations. At the same time, an increasing number of
regulators, lawmakers and other stakeholders have expressed or pursued contrary views, legislation and investment expectations with respect to
sustainability-related ambitions and disclosures, including the enactment or proposal of “anti-ESG” legislation, regulation or policies, which may expose
us to additional legal, financial or reputational risks based on our ambitions and disclosures.
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Governmental policies designed to address the effects of climate change, or inversely, eliminating the focus on the effects of climate change,
could increase the costs of projects for our clients or eliminate some or all government funding for a project, which, in some cases, could prevent a
project from going forward, thereby potentially reducing the need for our services, which would in turn have a material adverse impact on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. Further, climate legislation enacted to address the effects of climate change across all geographies poses a
similar risk to us and our clients as we operate globally. However, further policy changes and climate legislation could also increase the overall demand
for our services as our clients and partners work to comply with such policies, such as by decarbonizing their industries, transitioning from fossil fuels to
renewable energy sources and developing integrated and sustainable solutions, which could have a positive impact on our business. We cannot predict
when or whether any of these various proposals may be enacted or what their effect will be on us or on our customers.

We may also incur additional expenses as a result of U.S. and international regulators requiring additional disclosures regarding greenhouse gas
("GHG") emissions, and broader sustainability-related disclosures than we currently include in our Annual Sustainability Report or in other reports,
documents and filings that are required to comply with global regulations. Compliance with the various laws and regulation that we are subject to and the
associated potential cost, is further complicated by the fact that the countries and regions in which we operate are following different approaches to the
regulation of both climate change and these broader matters. Complying, or failing to comply, with existing or future federal, state, local, and foreign
legislation and regulations applicable to our sustainability efforts and reporting, which may conflict with one another, could cause us to incur additional
compliance and operational costs or actions and suffer reputational harm, which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

We may be unable to achieve our climate commitments and targets.

At Jacobs, we have established various climate commitments and targets, including our goal to source 100% renewable electricity and our net-
zero target validated by the Science Based Targets initiative to reach net zero for our value chain by 2040. The achievement of our climate commitments
and targets is subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside of our control. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to:
our ability to execute our operational strategies and achieve our goals within the currently projected costs and the expected timeframes; the availability
and cost of alternative fuels, global electrical charging infrastructure, off-site renewable energy and other materials and components; unforeseen design,
operational and technological difficulties; the outcome of research efforts and future technology developments, including the ability to scale projects and
technologies on a commercially competitive basis such as carbon sequestration and/or other related processes; compliance with, and changes or
additions to, global and regional regulations, taxes, charges, mandates or requirements relating to GHG emissions, carbon costs or climate-related
goals; labor-related regulations and requirements that restrict or prohibit our ability to impose requirements on third-party contractors; adapting products
to customer preferences and customer acceptance of sustainable supply chain solutions; the actions of competitors and competitive pressures and an
acquisition of or merger with another company that has not adopted similar carbon goals or whose progress toward reaching its carbon goals is not as
advanced as ours. Accordingly, there is no assurance that we will be able to successfully execute our operational strategies and achieve our climate
commitments and targets, which could damage our reputation and our relationships with our customers and other stakeholders, negatively affecting our
business and results of operations.

Increasing scrutiny and changing and conflicting expectations from governmental organizations, clients, investors, suppliers and partners,
communities and our employees with respect to our practices and disclosures related to sustainability and corporate responsibility may impose
additional costs on us or expose us to new or additional risks that could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

There is increasing scrutiny from governmental organizations, clients, investors, suppliers, partners, communities, employees and other
stakeholders on companies’ practices and disclosures related to sustainability and corporate responsibility, including with respect to climate change and
carbon emissions, human rights, ethics, supply chain management and human capital management. If our practices and disclosures related to
sustainability and corporate responsibility do not meet evolving rules and regulations or stakeholder expectations and standards (or if we are viewed
negatively based on positions we do or do not take or work we do or do not perform or cannot publicly disclose for certain clients and industries), then
our reputation and our ability to attract and/or retain new clients and leading experts, employees and other professionals could be negatively impacted,
as could our attractiveness as an investment, service provider, employer, or business partner, and further, could lead to lawsuits, penalties or market
access restrictions. Similarly, any failure or perceived failure in our efforts to achieve our current or future sustainability and corporate responsibility-
related goals, targets, and objectives, or to advance our related initiatives, including by failing to satisfy
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various reporting standards within the timelines expected by stakeholders or at all, could also result in similar negative impacts.

Public statements with respect to sustainability and corporate responsibility-related matters also are becoming increasingly subject to heightened
scrutiny from public and governmental authorities for being misleading or overstating certain capabilities or commitments (e.g. "greenwashing" or "Al-
washing"). We are aware that non-governmental organizations and other private actors have filed lawsuits against companies under various securities
and consumer protection laws alleging that certain statements, goals or standards made by issuers were misleading, false or otherwise deceptive,
including those related to sustainability, corporate responsibility and use of emerging technologies. An inability to implement our policies and practices
related to sustainability and corporate responsibility and maintain compliance with laws and regulations, or a perception among stakeholders that our
sustainability and corporate responsibility disclosures and goals are insufficient, that our goals are unattainable or that there is a misalignment between
our stated commitments and our actual practices, could harm our reputation and competitive position and negatively impact our business and results of
operations.

We also provide information to our investors on our practices, policies and other matters related to sustainability and corporate responsibility and
submit such information to organizations that evaluate companies on their approach to such matters. If we receive unfavorable ratings from these
organizations, or if we fail to submit information to such organizations regarding our practices and policies, it may result in negative reactions from our
investors, clients and/or other stakeholders, the diversion of investment or other projects to other companies, and difficulty in hiring skilled employees,
which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to Our Indebtedness and Credit Markets

We rely in part on liquidity from our credit facilities to fund our business. Restrictions in our credit facilities and other indebtedness could
adversely affect our business.

We are currently a borrower under several credit facilities and our subsidiary, Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., has issued notes pursuant to an
indenture with respect to which Jacobs has provided a guarantee. These facilities and indenture contain customary covenants restricting, among other
things, our ability to incur certain liens and indebtedness. We are also subject to certain financial covenants in our credit facilities, including maintenance
of a maximum consolidated leverage ratio. A breach of any covenant or our inability to comply with the required financial ratios could result in a default
under one or more of our credit facilities or indentures and limit our ability to do further borrowing. Further, our borrowing rate is also affected by our
consolidated leverage ratio and any material increase in our leverage ratio could increase our borrowing rate. We cannot assure you that we will be able
to maintain compliance with these covenants in the future and, if we fail to do so, we may be prohibited from undertaking actions that are necessary or
desirable to maintain or expand our business. Additionally, if it becomes necessary to refinance these borrowings on less favorable terms, or if we are
unable to refinance at all, our results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected by increased costs and rates.

Our business may be adversely affected by disruptions or lack of liquidity in the credit markets, including reduced access to credit and higher
costs of obtaining credit.

We depend on the availability of credit to grow our business and to help fund business acquisitions. Instability in the credit markets in the U.S. or
abroad, and continued inflation and rising interest rates could cause the availability of credit to be relatively difficult or expensive to obtain on
commercially reasonable terms or in sufficient amounts. This situation could make it more difficult or more expensive for us to access funds, refinance
our existing indebtedness, enter into agreements for new indebtedness, or obtain funding through the issuance of securities or such additional capital
may not be available on terms acceptable to us, or at all.

We also routinely enter into contracts with counterparties including vendors, suppliers and subcontractors that may be negatively impacted by
events in the credit markets. Disruptions of the credit or capital markets could also adversely affect our clients’ ability to finance projects and could result
in contract cancellations or suspensions, project delays and payment delays or defaults by our clients. In addition, clients may be unable to fund new
projects, may choose to make fewer capital expenditures or otherwise slow their spending on our services or to seek contract terms more favorable to
them. These circumstances could also lead to disputes and litigation with our partners or clients, which could have a material adverse impact on our
reputation, business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Furthermore, our cash balances and short-term investments are maintained in accounts held by major banks and financial institutions located
primarily in North America, Europe, South America, Australia and Asia. Some of our accounts hold deposits in amounts that exceed available insurance.
In addition, we are subject to the risk that the counterparties to our credit agreements may go bankrupt if they suffer catastrophic demand on their
liquidity that will prevent them from fulfilling their contractual obligations to us. Although none of our lenders or the financial institutions in which we hold
our cash and investments have gone into bankruptcy or forced receivership, or have been seized by their governments, there is a risk that such events
may occur in the future. If any such events were to occur, we would be at risk of not being able to access cash, which may result in a temporary liquidity
crisis that could impede our ability to fund our operations, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Maintaining adequate bonding, letter of credit and bank guarantee capacity is necessary for us to successfully bid on and win some
contracts.

In line with industry practice, we are often required to provide performance or payment bonds, letters of credit and/or bank guarantees at the
request of our customers. These instruments indemnify or compensate the customer should we fail to perform our obligations under the contract. If a
bond, a letter of credit or a bank guarantee is required for a particular project and we are unable to obtain the required financial support, we may not be
able to pursue that project. Historically, we have had adequate credit capacity and access to these financial instruments to satisfy our customers’
requirements. The issuance and availability of these financial instruments, however, is dependent upon number of factors, including the surety’s or
bank’s willingness to provide the support, our credit standing and the availability of credit in general. In the event of a change in our credit rating or a
tightening of the credit market, it may be difficult to find sureties or banks who will provide required levels of financial support, or it may only be available
at significant additional cost. There can be no assurance that our bonding or bank capacity will continue to be available to us on reasonable terms. In
addition, future projects may require us to obtain bonding or letters of credit that extend beyond the terms of our surety and banking agreements or
exceed our financial wherewithal. Our inability to obtain adequate bonding, letters of credit and bank guarantees when required could have a material
adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our variable rate indebtedness subjects us to interest rate risk, which could cause our debt service obligations to increase and our net
income and cash flows to correspondingly decrease.

Borrowings under our credit facilities are at variable rates of interest and expose us to interest rate risk. In the past year, inflation and other
factors have resulted in an increase in interest rates generally, which has impacted our borrowing costs. Even though interest rates have decreased in
recent months, if interest rates were to increase, our debt service obligations on the variable rate indebtedness referred to above would increase even if
the principal amount borrowed remained the same, and our net income and cash flows will correspondingly decrease. We are also currently party to, and
in the future, we may enter into additional, interest rate swaps that involve the exchange of floating for fixed rate interest payments, in order to reduce
interest rate volatility. However, we may not maintain interest rate swaps with respect to all of our variable rate indebtedness, and any swaps we enter
into may not fully mitigate our interest rate risk.

In addition, our credit facilities reference the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) as the primary benchmark rate for our U.S. Dollar
variable rate indebtedness. SOFR is a relatively new reference rate and with a limited history, and changes in SOFR have, on occasion, been more
volatile than changes in other benchmark or market rates. Our indebtedness in other currencies is also subject to various benchmarks that can be
difficult to predict. As a result, the amount of interest we may pay on our variable rate indebtedness is difficult to predict. We have also included
sustainability-linked key performance indicators ("KPIs") in our credit facilities and certain of our senior notes, with KPI targets that include improving
gender diversity and, in the case of the senior notes, reducing GHG emissions. Failure to achieve such targets could result in an interest rate step up on
the debt, which would cause an increase in our debt payment obligations and could negatively impact our reputation.
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock and Corporate Structure

Our quatrterly results may fluctuate significantly, which could have a material negative effect on the price of our common stock.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate significantly or fall below the expectations of securities analysts, which could have a material
adverse impact on the price of our common stock. Fluctuations are caused by a number of factors, including:

* Legal proceedings, disputes and/or government investigations;

*  Fluctuations in the spending patterns of our government and commercial customers;

* The number and significance of projects executed during a quarter;

* Unanticipated changes in contract performance, particularly with contracts that have funding limits;

* The timing of resolving change orders, requests for equitable adjustments, and other contract adjustments;

* Delays incurred in connection with a project;

+ Changes in prices of commodities or other supplies;

» Changes in foreign currency exchange rates;

*  Weather conditions that delay work at project sites;

*  The timing of expenses incurred in connection with acquisitions or other corporate initiatives;

* The decision by the Board of Directors to begin or cease paying a dividend, and the expectation that if the Company pays dividends, it will
declare dividends at the same or higher levels in the future;

» Natural disasters or other crises;

«  Staff levels and utilization rates;

+ Changes in prices of services offered by our competitors; and
*  General economic and political conditions.

There can be no assurance that we will pay dividends on our common stock.

Our Board of Directors initiated a quarterly cash dividend program in fiscal 2017 under which we have paid, and intend to continue paying,
regular quarterly dividends. The declaration, amount and timing of such dividends are subject to capital availability and determinations by our Board of
Directors that cash dividends are in the best interest of our shareholders and are in compliance with all respective laws and applicable agreements. Our
ability to pay dividends will depend upon, among other factors, our cash balances and potential future capital requirements for strategic transactions,
including acquisitions, debt service requirements, results of operations, financial condition and other factors that our Board of Directors may deem
relevant. A reduction in or elimination of our dividend payments and/or our dividend program could have a material negative effect on our stock price.

In the event we issue stock as consideration for certain acquisitions we may make, we could dilute share ownership, and if we receive stock
in connection with a divestiture, the value of stock is subject to fluctuation.

One method of acquiring companies or otherwise funding our corporate activities is through the issuance of additional equity securities. If we
issue additional equity securities, such issuances could have the effect of diluting our earnings per share as well as our existing shareholders’ individual
ownership percentages in the Company.

In addition, if we receive stock or other equity securities in connection with a sale or divestiture of a business, the value of such stock will
fluctuate and/or be subject to trading restrictions. Stock price changes may result from, among other things, changes in the business, operations or
prospects of the issuer prior to or following the transaction, litigation or regulatory considerations, general business, market, industry or economic
conditions, the ability to sell all or a portion of the stock based on current market conditions, and other factors both within and beyond our control. In
addition, if the stock received is valued in a currency other than U.S. dollars, the value of such stock will also fluctuate based on foreign currency rates.
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Delaware law and our charter documents may impede or discourage a takeover or change of control.

We are a Delaware corporation. Certain anti-takeover provisions of the Delaware general corporation law impose restrictions on the ability of
others to acquire control of us. In addition, certain provisions of our charter documents may impede or discourage a takeover. For example:

*  Only our Board of Directors can fill vacancies on the board;
*  There are various restrictions on the ability of a shareholder to nominate a director for election; and
»  Our Board of Directors can authorize the issuance of preferred shares.

These types of provisions, as well as our ability to adopt a shareholder rights agreement in the future, could make it more difficult for a third party
to acquire control of us, even if the acquisition would be beneficial to our shareholders. Accordingly, shareholders may be limited in the ability to obtain a
premium for their shares.

We are a holding company. Substantially all of our business is conducted through our subsidiaries. We depend on the performance of our
subsidiaries and their ability to make distributions to us to fund our operations.

We are a holding company. Substantially all of our business is conducted through our subsidiaries, which are separate and distinct legal entities.
Therefore, we are reliant on the operations of our subsidiaries to fund (whether by dividend, distribution or loan) holding company operations, including
our ability to pay dividends and service any indebtedness of the holding company. In addition, we cannot assure you that the agreements governing the
existing and future indebtedness of our subsidiaries will permit our subsidiaries to provide us with sufficient dividends, distributions or loans to fund
payments of dividends or other obligations of the holding company. In addition, any payment of dividends, distributions or loans to us by our subsidiaries
could be subject to restrictions on dividends or repatriation of earnings under applicable local law and monetary transfer restrictions in the jurisdictions in
which our subsidiaries operate. Furthermore, payments to us by our subsidiaries will be contingent upon our subsidiaries’ earnings.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

Item 1C. CYBERSECURITY

We maintain a cybersecurity program, designed to proactively identify, assess, manage, mitigate, and respond to cybersecurity threats. Our
Cybersecurity Organization develops, implements, and maintains this program, which is governed by our global cybersecurity policy. The underlying
controls of the cybersecurity program are based on recognized best practices and standards for cybersecurity and information technology and is aligned
with the National Institute of Standards and Technology (“NIST”) Cybersecurity Framework (“CSF”) and the International Organization for Standardization
(“1ISO”) 27001 Information Security Management System Requirements. Cybersecurity is an important and integrated part of our enterprise risk
management program that identifies, monitors and mitigates business, operational and legal risks. Our cybersecurity risk management process is
integrated into our overall risk management process, and shares common methodologies, reporting channels and governance processes that apply
across the risk management process to other legal, compliance, strategic, operational and financial risk areas.

We regularly assess the threat landscape and take a holistic view of cybersecurity risks, with a layered cybersecurity strategy based on
prevention, detection and mitigation. Our cybersecurity program maintains assessment protocols for proactively evaluating potential cybersecurity
impacts and risks, supported by incident response procedures. We employ systematic processes to manage cybersecurity risks, including through
cybersecurity audits, network interconnectivity reviews, system access controls and monitoring, and data backup and recovery. Our cloud environments
undergo continuous assessment, with firewall and backup systems designed to support operational resilience. We employ a Zero Trust Security
framework that requires identity verification for network access, complemented by regular system assessments and monitoring. Our security controls
include identity management programs, data loss prevention protocols, and threat detection capabilities. Our controls undergo regular review and
updates based on threat intelligence, ensuring adaptability to emerging threats. Similarly, our incident response program is regularly tested and updated
to address emerging threat landscapes. To ensure organization-wide security awareness, cybersecurity training is mandatory and provided to all
employees annually. Cybersecurity awareness is also included across other training programs, including our annual "Living our Values" training modules
and our privacy training programs.
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Third-party risk management is a critical component of our cybersecurity strategy. We maintain oversight of service providers through proactive
monitoring, leveraging a cybersecurity questionnaire and security and privacy addenda to our contracts where applicable. We evaluate third party
providers to ensure they maintain effective security management programs, compliance with information handling and asset management protocols, and
provide prompt notification of any known or suspected cybersecurity incidents.

To validate our security posture, we engage independent external firms to conduct regular penetration testing, security audits, and cybersecurity
consulting. We maintain ISO/IEC 27001 certification for our global enterprise. We also maintain a Cybersecurity Maturity Model Certification (CMMC) L2
certification for our U.S. Federal operations, and Cyber Essentials (CE) Plus certification for our U.K. operations. Additionally, our IT General Controls
(ITGCs) undergo annual testing through Sarbanes-Oxley (SOX) audits, which examine security controls relating to system changes, access
management, system configurations, and data backup processes.

Our Board of Directors has ultimate oversight of cybersecurity and information security risk, which it manages as part of our enterprise risk
management program. The Board is assisted by the Audit Committee,,as it pertains to cybersecurity threats to the integrity of the Company's financial
systems and compliance with cybersecurity related disclosures, and the Sustainability and Risk Committee, as it pertains to cybersecurity as a part of the
Company's enterprise risk, which oversee our cybersecurity risk exposures, review management’s mitigation efforts, and report their findings to the
Board. Throughout the year, our senior executives, including our Chief Information Security Officer ("CISO"), provide regular briefings to the full Board,
the Audit Committee and the Sustainability and Risk Committee. These updates cover technology trends, regulatory developments, disclosure
requirements, legal issues, policies and practices, threat environment assessments, and ongoing security measures to prevent, detect, and respond to
critical threats. The Board and its committees regularly engage in discussions with senior executives regarding cybersecurity and information security
risks. As part of our cybersecurity governance, we also maintain a Cybersecurity Steering Committee chaired by our CISO and comprised of executive
management, operational leaders, and cross-functional teams. Generally, this committee meets quarterly, or more frequently as needed, to review,
assess and direct decisions related to cybersecurity and information systems matters.

Our cybersecurity program is led by our CISO, who reports to our Chief Information Officer ("CIO"). Our CISO oversees prevention, detection,
mitigation, and remediation efforts through regular communication and reporting from information security professionals, many of whom have decades of
experience and hold certifications such as a Certified Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP) or Certified Information Security Manager
(CISM). These efforts are supported by advanced technological tools, specialized software and engagement with external consultants. Our CISO has
extensive experience assessing and managing cybersecurity programs and cybersecurity risk and holds the following credentials: Certified Information
Systems Security Professional (CISSP), a Certified Ethical Hacker (CEH), FINRA Licensed (with a Series 99), and an Oracle Cloud Certified
Professional (OCP). Our CISO and CIO regularly provide reports to the Board, the Audit Committee and the Sustainability and Risk Committee on our
cybersecurity posture, key initiatives and ongoing efforts to prevent, detect, mitigate, and remediate cyber incidents. In the event of a cybersecurity
incident, we follow established incident response procedures, which includes protocols for timely notification to senior management as well as the Board
of Directors, with ongoing updates provided until the issue is remediated, as appropriate.

Our operations are subject to cybersecurity risks, including unauthorized access, system failures, and breaches that could originate from both
internal networks and through third-party suppliers and service providers. While we have not experienced a material impact on our business strategy,
results of operations and/or financial condition from cybersecurity threats or prior incidents, such events have the potential to have a material adverse
effect on such aspects of our business. Realization of these risks could damage or disrupt access to our information systems or networks, compromise
confidential or protected information, destroy or corrupt data or otherwise interfere with our operations. We continuously monitor our networks for
unauthorized access attempts and maintain a range of defensive measures. However, the evolving and sophisticated nature of cyber threats means we
cannot guarantee prevention of all potential incidents that could materially impact our business operations, financial condition, or strategic objectives. In
addition, even if we effectively defend our own systems, we rely on third-party providers of products, services and networks, with whom we share data
and services, and who may themselves be unable to prevent or mitigate cyberattacks.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

Our properties consist primarily of office space within general, commercial office buildings located in major cities primarily in the following
countries: United States; United Kingdom; Australia; India; Canada; Poland and United Arab Emirates. We also lease smaller offices located in certain
other countries. Such space is used for operations (providing
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technical and professional services), sales and administration. The total amount of space leased by us for all of our operations is approximately 5.3
million square feet. We continue to evaluate our real estate needs in connection with changes in the Company's use of leased space and as part of our
overall strategic organizational changes.
Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information required by this Item 3 is included in Note 18- Contractual Guarantees, Litigation, Investigations and Insurance of Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE

None.
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PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol "J".

Shareholders

According to the records of our transfer agent, there were 2,097 shareholders of record as of November 10, 2025.

Dividend Policy

Our Board of Directors initiated a quarterly cash dividend program in fiscal 2017 under which we have paid, and intend to continue paying,
regular quarterly dividends. The declaration, amount and timing of such dividends are subject to capital availability and determinations by our Board of
Directors that cash dividends are in the best interest of our stockholders and are in compliance with all respective laws and applicable agreements. Our
ability to pay dividends will depend upon, among other factors, our cash balances and potential future capital requirements for strategic transactions,
including acquisitions, debt service requirements, results of operations, financial condition and other factors that our Board of Directors may deem
relevant.

Share Repurchases

On January 25, 2023, the Company's Board of Directors authorized an incremental share repurchase program of up to $1.0 billion of the
Company's common stock, which would expire on January 25, 2026 (the "2023 Repurchase Authorization"). By the end of the second fiscal quarter of
2025, the Company had repurchased the full amount of common stock authorized under the 2023 Repurchase Authorization.

On January 30, 2025, the Company's Board of Directors authorized an incremental share repurchase program of up to $1.5 billion of the
Company's common stock, to expire on January 30, 2028 (the "2025 Repurchase Authorization"). At September 26, 2025, the Company had $1.22
billion remaining under the 2025 Repurchase Authorization

An aggregate summary of repurchases of the Company’s common stock made during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2025:

Total Number of

Shares Purchased Approximate Dollar Value of
Total Number of under the 2025 Shares that May Yet Be
Shares Average Price Per Repurchase Purchased Under the 2025
Period Purchased Share (1) Authorization Repurchase Authorization
June 28, 2025 - July 25, 2025 193,115 $136.04 193,115 $1,292,895,183
July 26, 2025 - August 22, 2025 219,595 $145.93 219,595 $1,260,850,768
August 23, 2025 - September 26, 2025 283,819 $149.97 283,819 $1,218,285,330

(1) Includes commissions paid and excise tax due under the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 and calculated at the average price per share.

Our share repurchase programs do not obligate the Company to purchase any shares. Share repurchases may be executed through various
means including, without limitation, accelerated share repurchases, open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions, purchases pursuant to a
Rule 10b5-1 plan or otherwise. The authorization for the share repurchase programs may be terminated, increased or decreased by the Company’s
Board of Directors in its discretion at any time. The timing, amount and manner of share repurchases may depend upon market conditions and economic
circumstances, availability of investment opportunities, the availability and costs of financing, currency fluctuations, the market price of the Company's
common stock, other uses of capital and other factors.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

None.
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Performance Graph

The following graph and table show the changes over the five-year period ended September 26, 2025 in the value of $100 as of the close of
market on October 2, 2020 in (1) the common stock of Jacobs Solutions Inc., (2) the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index and (3) the Standard & Poor's
1500 IT Consulting & Other Services Index.

The values of each investment are based on share price appreciation, with reinvestment of all dividends, provided any were paid. The
investments are assumed to have occurred at the beginning of the period presented. The stock performance included in this graph is not necessarily
indicative of future stock price performance.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Jacobs Solutions Inc., the S&P 500 Index
and the S&P Composite 1500 IT Consulting & Other Services Index
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*$100 invested on 9/30/20 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending September 30

Copyright© 2025 Standard & Poor's, a division of S&P Global. All rights reserved.

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Jacobs Solutions Inc. 100.00 144.06 119.23 151.21 176.75 206.34
S&P 500 100.00 130.01 109.89 133.65 182.23 214.30
S&P 1500 IT Consulting & Other Services 100.00 135.56 110.48 131.00 172.95 163.37

Item 6. [Reserved]

Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

In order to better understand the changes that occur to key elements of our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows, a reader of
this Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) should be aware of the critical accounting
policies we apply in preparing our consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements contained in this report were prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of our consolidated
financial statements and the financial statements of any business performing long-term professional services, engineering and construction-type
contracts requires management to make certain estimates and judgments that affect both the entity’s results of operations and the carrying values of its
assets and liabilities. Although our significant accounting policies are described in Note 2- Significant Accounting Policies of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the following discussion is intended to highlight and describe those
accounting policies that are especially critical to the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Accounting for Contracts

The Company recognizes engineering, procurement, and construction contract revenue over time, as performance obligations are satisfied, due
to the continuous transfer of control to the customer in accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Contracts that include
engineering, procurement and construction services are generally accounted for as a single deliverable (a single performance obligation). In some
instances, the Company’s services associated with a construction activity are limited only to specific tasks such as customer support, consulting or
supervisory services. In these instances, the services are typically identified as separate performance obligations.

The Company recognizes revenue using the percentage-of-completion method, based primarily on contract costs incurred to date compared to
total estimated contract costs. Estimated contract costs include the Company’s latest estimates using judgments with respect to labor hours and costs,
materials, and subcontractor costs. The percentage-of-completion method (an input method) is the most representative depiction of the Company’s
performance because it directly measures the value of the services transferred to the customer. Subcontractor materials, labor and equipment and, in
certain cases, customer-furnished materials and labor and equipment are included in revenue and cost of revenue when management believes that the
company is acting as a principal rather than as an agent (e.g., the Company integrates the materials, labor and equipment into the deliverables promised
to the customer or is otherwise primarily responsible for fulfilment and acceptability of the materials, labor and/or equipment). Under the typical payment
terms of our engineering, procurement and construction contracts, amounts are billed as work progresses in accordance with agreed-upon contractual
terms at periodic intervals (e.g., biweekly or monthly) and customer payments are typically due within 30 to 60 days of billing, depending on the contract.

For service contracts, the Company recognizes revenue over time using the cost-to-cost percentage-of-completion method. In some instances
where the Company is standing ready to provide services, the Company recognizes revenue ratably over the service period. When the Company has
operations and maintenance or secondment contracts that do not contain variable consideration or have significant timing differences between cash
payment and performance, the practical expedient method is applied for revenue recognition. Under the typical payment terms of our service contracts,
amounts are billed as work progresses in accordance with agreed-upon contractual terms, and customer payments are typically due within 30 to 60 days
of billing, depending on the contract.

Direct cost of contracts include all costs incurred in connection with and directly for the benefit of client contracts, including depreciation and
amortization relating to assets used in providing the services required by the related projects. The level of direct cost of contracts may fluctuate between
reporting periods due to a variety of factors, including the amount of pass-through costs we incur during a period. On those projects where we are acting
as principal for subcontract labor or third-party materials and equipment, we reflect the amounts of such items in both revenues and costs (and we refer
to such costs as “pass-through costs”).
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Accounting for Pension Plans

The accounting for pension plans requires the use of assumptions and estimates in order to calculate periodic pension cost and the value of the
plans’ assets and liabilities. These assumptions include discount rates, investment returns, and projected salary increases, among others. The actuarial
assumptions used in determining the funded status of the respective plans are provided in Note 13- Pension and Other Post Retirement Benefit Plans of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The expected rates of return on plan assets ranged from 4.6% to 7.8% for fiscal 2025 and range from 4.0% to 8.2% for fiscal 2026. We believe
the range of rates selected for fiscal 2026 reflects the long-term returns expected on the plans’ assets, considering recent market conditions, projected
rates of inflation, the diversification of the plans’ assets, and the expected real rates of market returns. The discount rates used to compute plan liabilities
ranged from 3.4% 7.0% in fiscal 2025 and range from 3.2% to 6.0% in fiscal 2026. These assumptions represent the Company’s best estimate of the
rates at which its pension obligations could be effectively settled.

Changes in the actuarial assumptions often have a material effect on the values assigned to plan assets and liabilities, and the associated
pension expense. For example, if the discount rate used to value the net pension benefit obligation (‘PBO”) at September 26, 2025 was lower or higher
by 1.0%, the PBO would have been higher or lower, respectively, at that date by approximately $139.1 million for non-U.S. plans, and by approximately
$19.5 million for U.S. plans. If the expected return on plan assets was lower or higher by 1.0%, the net periodic pension cost for fiscal 2025 would be
higher or lower, respectively, by approximately $13.1 million for non-U.S. plans, and by approximately $2.7 million for U.S. plans. Differences between
actuarial assumptions and actual performance (i.e., actuarial gains and losses) that are not recognized as a component of net periodic pension cost in
the period in which such differences arise are recorded to accumulated other comprehensive loss and are recognized as part of net periodic pension
cost in future periods in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Management monitors trends in the marketplace within which our pension plans operate in an effort
to assure the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions used.

Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests

In connection with the PA Consulting investment in March 2021, the Company recorded redeemable noncontrolling interests, representing the
interest holders' initial 35% equity interest in the form of preferred and common shares of PA Consulting. The preferred shares are entitled to a
cumulative annual compounding 12% dividend based on the outstanding preferred share subscription price. These noncontrolling interest holders have
certain option rights to put the preferred and common share interests back to the Company at a value based on the fair value of PA Consulting (the
redemption values). The primary inputs and assumptions impacting the fair value of PA Consulting include projections of revenue and earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization and discount rates applied thereto. Additionally, the Company has an option to call the interests for certain
individual shareholders in certain circumstances. Because the interests are redeemable at the option of the holders and not solely within the control of
the Company, the Company has classified the interests in redeemable noncontrolling interests in the mezzanine section of its Consolidated Balance
Sheet at their redemption values. The optional redemption features may become exercisable no earlier than five years from the March 2, 2021 closing
date, or upon the occurrence of certain other events.

The Company has deemed these interests probable of becoming redeemable in the future and requiring their measurement at the greater of (i)
the redemption amount that would be paid if settlement occurred at the balance sheet date, or (ii) the historical value resulting from the original
acquisition date fair value plus the impact of any earnings or loss attribution amounts, including dividends. The fair value of the PA Consulting
redeemable noncontrolling interest is determined using a combination of the income and market approaches. Under the income approach, fair value is
determined by using the projected discounted cash flows of PA Consulting. Under the market approach, the fair value is determined by reference to
guideline companies that are reasonably comparable to PA Consulting, with the fair value estimated based on those companies' valuation multiples of
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.

Litigation, Investigations, and Insurance

In the normal course of business, we make contractual commitments, and on occasion we are a party in litigation or arbitration proceedings. The
litigation in which we are involved primarily includes personal injury claims, professional liability claims, and breach of contract claims. We are also
routinely subject to investigations and audits.
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We maintain insurance coverage for most insurable aspects of our business and operations. Our insurance programs have varying coverage
limits depending upon the type of insurance and include certain conditions and exclusions which insurance companies may raise in response to any
claim that the Company brings. We have also elected to retain a portion of certain losses, claims and liabilities that occur through the use of various
deductibles, limits, and retentions under our insurance programs and utilize a number of internal financing mechanisms for these self-insurance
arrangements including the operation of certain captive insurance entities. As a result, we may be subject to a future liability for which we are only
partially insured or completely uninsured. We intend to mitigate any such future liability by continuing to exercise prudent business judgment in
negotiating the terms and conditions of the contracts which the Company enters with its clients. Our insurers are also subject to business risk and, as a
result, one or more of them may be unable to fulfill their insurance obligations due to insolvency or otherwise.

Our Consolidated Balance Sheets include amounts representing our probable estimated liability relating to such claims, litigation, audits, and
investigations. Our estimates of probable liabilities require us to make assumptions related to potential losses regarding our determination of amounts
considered probable and estimable.

The Company believes, after consultation with counsel, that such litigation, U.S. government contract-related audits, investigations and claims,

and income tax audits and investigations should not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements, beyond amounts currently
accrued.
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JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
For the Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023
(In thousands, except per share information)

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023

Revenues $ 12,029,783 $ 11,500,941 §$ 10,851,420
Direct cost of contracts (9,044,849) (8,668,185) (8,140,560)
Gross profit 2,984,934 2,832,756 2,710,860
Selling, general and administrative expenses (2,121,300) (2,140,320) (2,034,376)
Operating Profit 863,634 692,436 676,484
Other Income (Expense):
Interest income 35,804 34,454 24,975
Interest expense (145,788) (169,058) (168,085)
Loss on extinguishment of debt (20,510) — —
Miscellaneous (expense) income, net (189,663) 219,454 (12,399)
Total other (expense) income, net (320,157) 84,850 (155,509)
Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Taxes 543,477 777,286 520,975
Income Tax Expense for Continuing Operations (215,555) (131,493) (101,336)
Net Earnings of the Group from Continuing Operations 327,922 645,793 419,639
Net (Loss) Earnings of the Group from Discontinued Operations, net of
tax (23,966) 206,850 300,017
Net Earnings of the Group 303,956 852,643 719,656
Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests from Continuing
Operations (3,443) (17,990) (18,900)
Net Earnings Attributable to Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests (11,177) (14,999) (21,614)
Net Earnings Attributable to Jacobs from Continuing Operations 313,302 612,804 379,125
Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests from Discontinued
Operations — (13,561) (13,365)
Net (Loss) Earnings Attributable to Jacobs from Discontinued
Operations (23,966) 193,289 286,652
Net Earnings Attributable to Jacobs $ 289,336 $ 806,093 § 665,777

Net Earnings Per Share:

Basic Net Earnings from Continuing Operations Per Share $ 259 $ 481 $ 3.06
Basic Net (Loss) Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share  $ (0.20) $ 154 $ 2.26
Basic Earnings Per Share $ 239 $ 635 $ 5.32
Diluted Net Earnings from Continuing Operations Per Share $ 258 $ 479 $ 3.05
Diluted Net (Loss) Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share $ (0.20) $ 154 $ 2.25
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 238 § 632 § 5.30

Note: Earnings per share amounts may not add due to rounding.
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2025 Overview

Net earnings attributable to the Company from continuing operations for fiscal 2025 were $313.3 million (or $2.58 per diluted share), a decrease
of $299.5 million, or 48.9%, from $612.8 million (or $4.79 per diluted share) for the prior year. Our reported net earnings for the current year were
favorably impacted by higher gross profit of $152.2 million compared to the prior year, primarily driven by stronger performance in our Infrastructure &
Advanced Facilities ("I&AF") operating segment, specifically in the Advanced Facilities, Europe and Asia, Pacific and Middle East ("APME") businesses,
as well as growth in our PA Consulting operating segment, as discussed below in the Segment Financial Information section. While current year results
reflected higher year-over-year underlying gross profit, the Company’s results from continuing operations for fiscal 2025 were unfavorably impacted by
an increase in miscellaneous expense of $409.1 million primarily as a result of $227.3 million in mark-to-market losses relating to our investment in
Amentum stock in connection with the Separation Transaction compared to $186.9 million in gains relating to the same investment in the prior year.
Fiscal 2025 comparative results were also unfavorably impacted by a prior year realized gain of $35.2 million from settlement of interest rate swaps in
fiscal 2024 and $20.5 million in discounts and expenses recorded to Loss on extinguishment of debt associated with our Equity-for-Debt Transaction on
March 13, 2025, where the Company exchanged shares of our investment in Amentum Holdings, Inc. for a principal amount of term loans under the
2021 Term Loan Facility, which term loans were immediately extinguished (see Note 9- Borrowings and Note 14- Discontinued Operations). These
unfavorable impacts were partly offset by an increase in TSA-related income and a decrease in interest expense included in miscellaneous expense as
well as a decrease in pre-tax Restructuring and other charges and transaction costs of $104.6 million reported in Selling, general & administrative
("SG&A") expenses compared to the fiscal 2024 period, primarily associated with the Separation Transaction (mainly professional services and
employee separation costs), which are discussed in Note 16- Restructuring and Other Charges.

Income taxes were higher in the current year by $84.1 million primarily due to $51.2 million in tax expense from higher year-over-year pre-tax
book income after excluding the permanent book-tax difference for the mark-to-market and other related transactions associated with our investment in
Amentum stock. Further, our income tax expense was unfavorably impacted by a prior year discrete income tax benefit of $61.6 million related to the
election to treat an Australian subsidiary as a corporation versus a partnership for U.S. tax purposes, which resulted in the derecognition of a deferred
tax liability in fiscal year 2024. The overall higher income tax expense was partially offset by a return-to-provision income tax benefit of $16.2 million
mainly attributable to additional research and development credits claimed on the U.S. federal tax return.

Net (loss) earnings attributable to Jacobs from discontinued operations for fiscal 2025 were $(24.0) million (or $(0.20) per diluted share), a
decrease of $217.3 million, or 112.4%, from $193.3 million (or $1.54 per diluted share) compared to the prior year. The change year-over-year was
primarily driven by prior year operating results of the SpinCo Business which were divested on September 27, 2024 and therefore are no longer in
Company's financial results in fiscal year 2025. In addition, the Company has accrued approximately $(30.8) million during the year ended
September 26, 2025 as an indemnity reserve in respect of an ongoing non-U.S. tax matter related to an entity that was part of the separated SpinCo
Business as described in Note 14- Discontinued Operations.

Backlog at September 26, 2025 was $23.1 billion, up $1.2 billion, from $21.8 billion in the prior year. New prospects and new sales remain
strong, and the Company continues to have a positive outlook for many of the industry groups and sectors in which our clients operate.

Results of Operations

Fiscal 2025 Compared to Fiscal 2024

Revenues for the year ended September 26, 2025 were $12.03 billion, an increase of $0.53 billion, or 4.6%, from $11.50 billion for the prior year.
The increase in revenues was mainly driven by the Company's I&AF business, as well as year over year revenue growth in our PA Consulting business.
The I&AF segment benefited primarily from stronger performance in its Advanced Facilities and APME business operations. Our revenues for fiscal 2025
were favorably impacted by foreign currency translation of $62.4 million in our international businesses, as compared to $77.0 million in the last fiscal
year.
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Gross profit for the year ended September 26, 2025 was $2.98 billion, an increase of $152.2 million, or 5.4%, from $2.83 billion for the prior year,
with gross profit margins of 24.8% and 24.6% for the respective periods. The Company's increase in gross profit was mainly attributable to higher
revenues as mentioned above, with favorable margin impacts from year over year project mix.

See Segment Financial Information discussion for further information on the Company’s results of operations at the operating segment level.

Selling, general & administrative expenses for the year ended September 26, 2025 were $2.12 billion, a decrease of $19.0 million, or 0.9%, from
$2.14 billion for the prior year. SG&A expenses were impacted by a decrease of $104.6 million in Restructuring and other charges associated with the
Separation Transaction, mainly comprised of professional services, compared to the prior year. This was partially offset by an increase in incentives of
$36.5 million, primarily related to PA consulting, expenses associated with the TSA with Amentum of $26.0 million, an increase of $9.9 million in
expenses associated with IT related software licensing and other costs, as well as year-over-year increases in other personnel costs and other
department spend for the fiscal year 2025. Lastly, SG&A expenses were impacted by unfavorable foreign exchange impacts of $10.8 million for the year
ended September 26, 2025 as compared to $2.1 million in fiscal 2024.

Net interest expense for the year ended September 26, 2025 was $110.0 million, a decrease of $24.6 million from $134.6 million for the prior
year. The decrease in net interest expense for the fiscal year 2025 was primarily due to a decrease in interest expense driven by lower outstanding debt
balances throughout the fiscal year, as proceeds associated with the Separation Transaction were used for the repayment of debt at the end fiscal 2024
as well as in the current year.

Loss on extinguishment of debt was $20.5 million in fiscal 2025, which includes discounts and expenses associated with the Equity-for-Debt
Transaction executed on March 13, 2025, where the Company exchanged shares of our investment in Amentum Holdings, Inc. for a principal amount of
term loans under the 2021 Term Loan Facility, which term loans were immediately extinguished. See Note 9- Borrowings and Note 14- Discontinued
Operations.

Miscellaneous (expense) income, net for the year ended September 26, 2025 was expense of $(189.7) million, an increase of $409.1 million
compared to income of $219.5 million in the prior year. The increase in expense from fiscal 2024 was primarily due to $(227.3) million in mark-to-market
losses associated with our investment in Amentum stock in connection with the Separation Transaction as compared to $186.9 million in gains relating to
the same investment in the prior year and a prior year $35.2 million realized gain on interest rate swaps settled during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024.
These unfavorable items were partially offset by $40.5 million in TSA-related income associated with the Separation Transaction as discussed in Note
14- Discontinued Operations.

Net (loss) earnings attributable to Jacobs from discontinued operations for fiscal 2025 were $(24.0) million (or $(0.20) per diluted share), a
decrease of $217.3 million, or 112.4%, from $193.3 million (or $1.54 per diluted share) in the prior year, primarily driven by prior year operating results of
the SpinCo Business which were divested on September 27, 2024 and therefore are no longer in Company's financial results in fiscal year 2025. See
Note 14- Discontinued Operations.

Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests from continuing operations for the year ended September 26, 2025 were $3.4 million, as
compared to $18.0 million for the corresponding period last year. The change in noncontrolling interest for fiscal year 2025 primarily resulted from the
impact of an unfavorable interim ruling against a consolidated joint venture in which the Company holds a 50% interest, in connection with a long running
project, upon which the Company recorded a reserve against related accounts receivable (the “Consolidated JV Matter”) during the second fiscal quarter
of 2025.

Net earnings attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interests for the year ended September 26, 2025 were $11.2 million, compared to $15.0
million in the corresponding prior period. The year over year changes were primarily due to an increase in the Company's noncontrolling share of
expense associated with equity-based incentive grants as discussed in Note 15- PA Consulting Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests, partly offset by
favorable underlying net earnings results in our PA Consulting investment compared to the prior year period.
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Fiscal 2024 Compared to Fiscal 2023

Revenues for the year ended September 27, 2024 were $11.50 billion, an increase of $0.65 billion, or 6.0%, from $10.85 billion from fiscal 2023.
The increase in revenues was due mainly to improved performance in our I&AF business, as well as higher revenues year over year in our PA
Consulting business. The I&AF segment benefited primarily from stronger performance in its Advanced Facilities and international business operations.
Our revenues for fiscal 2024 were favorably impacted by foreign currency translation of $77.0 million in our international businesses, as compared to an
unfavorable impact of $175.3 million for the corresponding period last fiscal year.

Gross profit for the year ended September 27, 2024 was $2.83 billion, up $121.9 million, or 4.5%, from $2.71 billion for fiscal 2023. The
Company's increase in gross profit was mainly attributable to higher revenues as mentioned above, with slight margin impacts from year over year mix
and personnel cost impacts. Our gross profit margins were approximately 24.6% and 25.0% for the years ended September 27, 2024 and
September 29, 2023, respectively. Overall project mix impacts in our portfolios, personnel costs and utilization trends primarily in PA Consulting had
mostly offsetting impacts on our overall margin trends year over year.

See Segment Financial Information discussion for further information on the Company'’s results of operations at the operating segment level.

Selling, general & administrative expenses for the year ended September 27, 2024 were $2.14 billion, an increase of $105.9 million, or 5.2%,
from $2.03 billion for fiscal 2023. Fiscal 2024 results were impacted by Restructuring and other charges of $163.4 million in separation activities (mainly
professional services and employee separation costs) relating to the Separation Transaction in comparison to prior period costs of $61.1 million. Further
our SG&A expenses were impacted by slight increases in other department spend and personnel costs. Lastly, SG&A expenses were impacted by
unfavorable foreign exchange impacts of $2.1 million for the year ended September 27, 2024 as compared to favorable impacts of $58.9 million for fiscal
2023.

Net interest expense for the year ended September 27, 2024 was $134.6 million, a decrease of $8.5 million from $143.1 million for fiscal 2023.
The decrease in net interest expense for the fiscal year 2024 was due primarily to the Company's higher levels of cash and lower overall levels of
outstanding debt compared to the last fiscal year.

Miscellaneous income (expense), net for the year ended September 27, 2024 was income of $219.5 million, favorable by $231.9 million as
compared to $(12.4) million for the prior period. The increase in income from fiscal 2023 was due primarily to $186.9 million in mark-to-market gains
associated with our investment in Amentum stock in connection with the Separation Transaction and a $35.2 million realized gain on interest rate swaps
settled during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024.

Net earnings attributable to Jacobs from discontinued operations for fiscal 2024 were $193.3 million (or $1.54 per diluted share), a decrease of
$93.4 million, or 32.6%, from $286.7 million (or $2.25 per diluted share) for the corresponding prior year period. Included in the current year results from
discontinued operations is $98.3 million in costs related to the Separation Transaction and approximately $18 million in pre-tax non-cash charges
associated with one-time inventory write downs.

Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests including redeemable noncontrolling interests for the year ended September 27, 2024 of

$33.0 million and $40.5 million for the corresponding period last year. The year over year changes were primarily due to lower net earnings results in our
PA Consulting investment compared to the prior year periods.
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The following table reconciles total income tax expense on continuing operations using the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate to the
consolidated income tax expense on continuing operations shown in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the years ended
September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (dollars in thousands):

For the Years Ended

September 26, September 27, September 29,
2025 % 2024 % 2023 %

Statutory amount $ 114,130 210% $ 163,230 21.0% $ 109,405 21.0%
State taxes, net of the federal benefit 15,852 29% 21,615 28 % 13,938 27 %
Exclusion of tax on non-controlling interests (880) (0.2)% (5,230) (0.7)% (5,461) (1.0)%
Foreign:

Difference in tax rates of foreign operations 11,458 21 % 17,891 2.3% 4,583 0.9 %

Expense/(Benefit) from foreign valuation

allowance change 415 0.1% (27,780) (3.6)% (1,305) (0.3)%

U.S. tax cost of foreign operations 76,014 14.0 % 72,887 9.4 % 68,662 13.2 %

Derecognition of deferred tax liabilities related

to investment in Australian partnership — — % (61,614) (7.9)% — — %

Other Includable Income 1,344 0.2% 25,952 3.3% — — %

Tax differential on foreign earnings 89,231 16.4 % 27,336 35% 71,940 13.8 %

Foreign tax credits (48,885) (9.0)% (33,402) (4.3)% (36,180) (6.9)%
Tax Rate Change 98 — % (147) — % (9,913) (1.9)%
Valuation allowance 988 0.2 % 12,339 1.6 % (7,169) (1.4)%
Uncertain tax positions 11,153 21% (1,153) (0.1)% (38,844) (7.5)%
Other items:

Disallowed officer compensation 5,157 0.9 % 5,394 0.7 % 7,081 1.4 %

Research and Development Credit (35,637) (6.6)% (17,110) (2.2)% (2,133) (0.4)%

Non-Deductible Incentive Compensation 18,376 3.4 % 3,296 0.4 % 162 — %

Transaction Costs 675 0.1% 8,500 1.1 % 4 — %

Non-taxable mark-to-market Adjustment for

Amentum investment 51,989 9.6 % (39,255) (5.1)% — — %

Other items — net (6,692) (1.2)% (13,920) (1.8)% (1,494) (0.3)%

Total other items 33,868 6.2 % (53,095) (6.8)% 3,620 0.7 %

Income taxes from continuing operations $ 215,555 39.7% $ 131,493 16.9% $ 101,336 19.5 %

Note: Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
Restructuring_and Other Charges

During fiscal 2023, the Company implemented restructuring initiatives relating to the Separation Transaction. The Company incurred
approximately $28.2 million, $42.0 million and $17.5 million in the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023,
respectively, in pre-tax cash charges in connection with these initiatives. These actions, which are expected to be substantially completed before the end
of calendar year 2025, are expected to result in estimated gross annualized pre-tax cash savings of approximately $165 million to $200 million. We will
likely incur additional charges under this program through calendar year 2025, which are expected to result in additional savings in future periods.

During third quarter fiscal 2023, the Company approved a plan to improve business processes and cost structures of our PA Consulting
investment by reorganizing senior management and reducing headcount. In connection with these initiatives, which are substantially completed, the
Company incurred approximately $1.9 million, $6.4 million and $14.3 million in the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and
September 29, 2023, respectively, in pre-tax
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cash charges. These activities are expected to result in estimated gross annualized pre-tax cash savings of approximately $50 million to $65 million.

Refer to Note 16— Restructuring and Other Charges for further information regarding restructuring and integration initiatives.
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Segment Financial Information

The following tables present total revenues, direct cost of contracts, selling, general and administrative expenses and segment operating profit
from continuing operations for each reportable segment (in thousands) and includes a reconciliation of segment operating profit to total U.S. GAAP
operating profit by including certain corporate-level expenses, Restructuring and other charges (as defined in Note 16- Restructuring and Other Charges)
and transaction and integration costs (in thousands) for the years ended:

September 26, 2025

Infrastructure &

Advanced Facilities PA Consulting Total
Revenues from External Customers (") $ 10,764,206 $ 1,265,577 $ 12,029,783
Direct cost of contracts (8,228,935) (815,914) (9,044,849)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (1,631,723) (171,164) (1,802,887)
Segment Operating Profit (M $ 903,548 $ 278,499 $ 1,182,047
Restructuring, Transaction and Other Charges (162,896)
Amortization of Intangible Assets (155,517)
Total U.S. GAAP Operating Profit $ 863,634
Total Other (Expense) Income, net ® (320,157)
Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Taxes $ 543,477
1) I&AF revenue and operating profit for the year ended September 26, 2025 were impacted by a reserve in connection with an unfavorable interim ruling against a

consolidated joint venture in which the Company holds a 50% interest (the "Consolidated JV Matter"), with the noncontrolling partner’s share included in
noncontrolling interests in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the respective period.

2) The year ended September 26, 2025 included $58.8 million in restructuring and other charges related to the Separation Transaction (primarily professional
services and employee separation costs), as well as $75.3 million in charges for certain subsidiary level compensation based agreements. The year ended
September 26, 2025 included approximately $26.0 million in charges associated with the Company's TSA with Amentum.

(©) The year ended September 26, 2025 included $227.3 million in mark-to-market losses and other related charges associated with our investment in Amentum
stock in connection with the Separation Transaction, as well as $40.5 million in income associated with the Company's TSA with Amentum (see Note 14-
Discontinued Operations). The year ended September 26, 2025 included $20.5 million in discounts and expenses associated with the Equity-for-Debt Transaction
(see Note 9- Borrowings and Note 14- Discontinued Operations).

September 27, 2024

Infrastructure &

Advanced Facilities PA Consulting Total

Revenues from External Customers $ 10,323,255 $ 1,177,686 $ 11,500,941
Direct cost of contracts (7,915,256) (752,929) (8,668,185)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (1,609,624) (185,507) (1,795,131)
Segment Operating Profit $ 798,375 $ 239,250 $ 1,037,625

Restructuring, Transaction and Other Charges (") (192,522)

Amortization of Intangible Assets (152,667)
Total U.S. GAAP Operating Profit $ 692,436

Total Other (Expense) Income, net @ 84,850
Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Taxes $ 777,286

(1) The year ended September 27, 2024 included $163.4 million in restructuring and other charges related to the Separation Transaction (primarily

professional services and employee separation costs) and $6.4 million in restructuring and other charges related to the Company's investment in
PA Consulting (primarily employee separation costs), as well as certain subsidiary level compensation based agreements.

2) The year ended September 27, 2024 included $186.9 million in mark-to-market gains associated with our investment in Amentum stock in
g(())rzlgection with the Separation Transaction and a $35.2 million realized gain on interest rate swaps settled during the fourth quarter of fiscal
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September 29, 2023

Infrastructure &

Advanced Facilities PA Consulting Total
Revenues from External Customers $ 9,693,276 $ 1,158,144 $ 10,851,420
Direct cost of contracts (7,395,838) (744,722) (8,140,560)
Selling, general and administrative expenses () (1,563,836) (176,419) (1,740,255)
Segment Operating Profit $ 733,602 $ 237,003 $ 970,605
Restructuring, Transaction and Other Charges @ (146,891)
Amortization of Intangible Assets (147,230)
Total U.S. GAAP Operating Profit $ 676,484
Total Other (Expense) Income, net (155,509)
Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Taxes $ 520,975
1) In fiscal 2023, I&AF SG&A included approximately $15.0 million in net favorable impacts from cost reductions compared to the prior year period,

which were associated mainly with net favorable impacts during first quarter from changes in employee benefit programs of $41.0 million offset
by approximately $26.0 million in higher spend in company tecgnology platforms and other personnel and corporate cost increases.

2) The year ended September 29, 2023 included $61.1 million in restructuring and other charges related to the Separation Transaction (primarily
professional services and employee separation costs) and $14.3 million, in restructuring and other charges related to the Company's investment
in PA Consulting (primarily employee separation costs), as well as certain subsidiary level compensation based agreements. Additionally, in
fiscal year 2023, there were $46.7 million in charges associated mainly with real estate impairments.
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In evaluating the Company’s performance by operating segment, the chief operating decision maker ("CODM") reviews various metrics and
statistical data for Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities and PA Consulting. For more information, please refer to Note 19- Segment Information. In
addition, the Company attributes each segment's specific incentive compensation plan costs to the segments. The methods for recognizing revenue,
incentive fees, project losses and change orders are consistent among the segments.

Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities
For the Years Ended

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Revenue $ 10,764,206 $ 10,323,255 $ 9,693,276
Operating Profit $ 903,548 $ 798,375 $ 733,602

Fiscal 2025 vs. 2024

Revenues for the Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities ("I&AF") segment for the year ended September 26, 2025 were $10.76 billion, up $0.44
billion, or 4.3%, from $10.32 billion for the prior year. The increase in revenues for the year ended September 26, 2025 was driven primarily from
stronger performance in its Advanced Facilities and APME business operations. This was partly offset by a reserve recorded in second quarter fiscal
2025 associated with an unfavorable interim ruling against a consolidated joint venture in which the Company holds a 50% interest, with the
noncontrolling partner’s share included in noncontrolling interests in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the year ended
September 26, 2025. Foreign currency translation had a favorable impact of $24.4 million on our international business for the year ended
September 26, 2025, compared to $37.5 million in favorable impacts in the prior year.

Operating profit for the I&AF segment for the year ended September 26, 2025 was $903.5 million, an increase of $105.2 million, or 13.2%, from
$798.4 million for the comparative period in fiscal 2024. Higher operating profit for the year ended September 26, 2025 was a result of higher year over
year segment revenues mentioned above, along with increased margin quality associated with favorable impacts from project mix. Higher operating
profit for the year ended September 26, 2025 compared to prior year was partially offset by a reserve recorded in second quarter fiscal 2025 associated
with an unfavorable interim ruling against a consolidated joint venture in which the Company holds a 50% interest, with the noncontrolling partner's
share included in noncontrolling interests in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the year ended September 26, 2025. Impacts on
operating profit from favorable foreign currency translation were approximately $3.1 million for the year ended September 26, 2025, compared to
$11.5 million in favorable impacts in the prior year.

Fiscal 2024 vs. 2023

Revenues for the I&AF segment for the year ended September 27, 2024 were $10.32 billion, up $0.63 billion, or 6.5%, from $9.69 billion for the
prior year. The increase in revenue was broad based across most I&AF businesses, particularly due to stronger performance in its Advanced Facilities
and Europe business operations as compared to the prior year period. Foreign currency translation had a favorable impact of $37.5 million on our
international business for the year ended September 27, 2024, compared to $124.2 million in unfavorable impacts in fiscal 2023.

Operating profit for the I&AF segment for the year ended September 27, 2024 was $798.4 million, an increase of $64.8 million, or 8.8%, from
$733.6 million for fiscal 2023. The year-over-year increase in operating profit was driven primarily by the revenue growth mentioned above with an
unfavorable comparative impact of a one-time net favorable $41 million relating mainly to changes in employee benefits programs during first quarter
2023, partly offset by year over year favorable department spending. Impacts on operating profit from favorable foreign currency translation were
approximately $11.5 million for the year ended September 27, 2024, compared to $4.3 million in unfavorable impacts in the prior year.

PA Consulting
For the Years Ended

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Revenue $ 1,265,577 $ 1,177,686 $ 1,158,144
Operating Profit $ 278,499 $ 239,250 $ 237,003
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Fiscal 2025 vs. 2024

Revenues for the PA Consulting segment for the year ended September 26, 2025 were $1.27 billion, up $87.9 million, or 7.5%, from $1.18 billion
for the prior year. The increase in revenue was due primarily to growth in PA Consulting's public services businesses (through the defence and security,
public services and health and life sciences sectors). Foreign currency translation had a $38.1 million favorable impact on revenues in our international
businesses for the year ended September 26, 2025, compared to a favorable impact of $39.5 million for the prior year.

Operating profit for the segment for the year ended September 26, 2025 was $278.5 million, an increase of $39.2 million, or 16.4%, from
$239.3 million, for the prior year. The year over year increases were mainly attributable to improved revenues as mentioned above, combined with
favorable impacts from reduced costs.

Fiscal 2024 vs. 2023

Revenues for the PA Consulting segment for the year ended September 27, 2024 were $1.18 billion, up $19.5 million, or 1.7%, from $1.16 billion
for fiscal 2023. The increase in revenue was due primarily to growth in PA Consulting's public services businesses. Foreign currency translation had a
$39.5 million favorable impact on revenues in our international businesses for the year ended September 27, 2024, compared to an unfavorable impact
of $51.1 million for fiscal 2023.

Operating profit for the segment for the year ended September 27, 2024 was $239.3 million, an increase of $2.2 million, or 0.9%, from $237.0
million, for fiscal 2023. Operating profit trends showed consistent levels year over year overall.

Backlog Information

Backlog represents revenue we expect to realize in the future for work to be completed by our consolidated subsidiaries and our proportionate
share of work to be performed by unconsolidated joint ventures. Because of variations in the nature, size, expected duration, funding commitments, and
the scope of services required by our contracts, the amount and timing of when backlog will be recognized as revenues includes significant estimates
and can vary greatly between individual contracts.

Consistent with industry practice, substantially all of our contracts are subject to cancellation or termination at the option of the client, including
our U.S. government work. While management uses all information available to determine backlog, at any given time our backlog is subject to changes
in the scope of services to be provided as well as increases or decreases in costs relating to the contracts included therein. Backlog is not necessarily an
indicator of future revenues.

Because certain contracts (e.g., contracts relating to large Engineering, Procurement & Construction projects as well as national government
programs) can cause large increases to backlog in the fiscal period in which we recognize the award, and because many of our contracts require us to
provide services that span over several fiscal quarters (and sometimes over fiscal years), we have presented our backlog on a year-over-year basis,
rather than on a sequential, quarter-over-quarter basis.

Please refer to Item 1A- Risk Factors, above, for a discussion of other factors that may cause backlog to ultimately convert into revenues at
different amounts.

The following table summarizes our backlog for the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (in
millions):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities $ 22,649 $ 21,472 $ 17,526
PA Consulting 415 378 311
Total $ 23,064 $ 21,850 $ 17,837
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The increase in backlog in Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities in the year ended September 26, 2025 was predominantly driven by growth
across Water, Environmental, Energy and Cities & Places end markets.

The increase in backlog in PA Consulting was primarily driven by organic year-over-year growth of the business including securing larger
programs of work.

Backlog relating to work to be performed either directly or indirectly for the U.S. federal government and its agencies totaled approximately
$2.2 billion (or 9.5% of total backlog), $2.4 billion (or 11.1% of total backlog) and $2.6 billion (or 14.7% of total backlog) at September 26, 2025,
September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023, respectively. Most of our federal government contracts require that services be provided beyond one
year. In general, these contracts must be funded annually (i.e., the amounts to be spent under the contract must be appropriated by the U.S. Congress
to the procuring agency, and then the agency must allot these sums to the specific contracts).

We estimate that approximately $6.77 billion, or 29.3%, of total backlog at September 26, 2025 will be realized as revenues within the next fiscal
year.

Consolidated backlog differs from the Company’s remaining performance obligations as defined by ASC 606 primarily because of contract
change orders or new wins not yet processed and our national government contracts where our policy is to generally include in backlog the contract
award, whether funded or unfunded excluding certain option periods while our remaining performance obligations represent a measure of the total dollar
value of work to be performed on contracts awarded and in progress. Additionally, the Company does not include our proportionate share of backlog
related to unconsolidated joint ventures in our remaining performance obligations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At September 26, 2025, our principal sources of liquidity consisted of $1.24 billion in cash and cash equivalents and $1.85 billion of available
borrowing capacity under our $2.25 billion revolving credit agreement (the "Revolving Credit Facility"). See Note 9- Borrowings for more information. We
finance much of our operations and growth through cash generated by our operations.

Cash and cash equivalents at September 26, 2025 were $1.24 billion, representing an increase of $90.7 million from $1.14 billion at
September 27, 2024, the reasons for which are described below. The following table presents selected consolidated cash flow information of the
Company for the respective periods shown (including discontinued operations of our separated SpinCo Business, see Note 14- Discontinued Operations
for more information):
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(In thousands)

September 26, 2025

September 27, 2024

Net cash provided by operating activities 686,704 $ 1,054,673
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Additions to property and equipment (79,232) (121,114)

Disposals of property and equipment and other assets 2,332 6,187

Capital contributions to equity investees, net of return of capital distributions 1,609 1,737
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired — (14,000)
Net cash used for investing activities (75,291) (127,190)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 2,458,201 4,606,697
Repayments of long-term borrowings (1,471,800) (3,370,355)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings — 5,345
Repayments of short-term borrowings (656,981) (866,761)
Debt issuance costs (92) (34,331)
Proceeds from issuances of common stock 34,712 47,503
Common stock repurchases (754,130) (402,668)
Taxes paid on vested restricted stock (27,450) (41,720)
Cash dividends to shareholders (153,027) (142,779)
Net dividends associated with noncontrolling interests (14,205) (21,678)
Repurchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests (10,449) (55,344)
Proceeds from issuances of redeemable noncontrolling interests — 19,761
Cash impact from distribution of SpinCo Business 70,000 (495,307)
Net cash used for financing activities (525,221) (751,637)

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes 3,693 41,640
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash 89,885 217,486
Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash, at the Beginning of the Period 1,146,931 929,445
1,236,816 $ 1,146,931

Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash, at the End of the Period $

Our net cash flow provided by operations of $686.7 million during fiscal 2025 was unfavorable by $368.0 million in comparison to the cash flow
provided by operations of $1.05 billion for the corresponding prior year (which included discontinued operations of the separated SpinCo Business). On a
continuing operations basis, our cash from operations was unfavorable by $139.0 million, with this decline largely due to higher uses of cash for net
working capital, namely accounts receivables, as well as a year-over-year increase in cash income tax payments, offset by an improvement in accounts
payable timing, lower year-over-year cash payments related to restructuring and other charges and a year-over-year improvement in net earnings from
continuing operations after adjustments to reconcile net earnings from continuing operations to net cash flows provided by operations.

Our net cash used for investing activities for fiscal 2025 was $75.3 million, compared to $127.2 million in the prior year, with this change due
primarily to a decrease in property and equipment spend in the current year and no current year acquisitions.

Our net cash used for financing activities for the fiscal year ended September 26, 2025 of $525.2 million resulted mainly from $754.1 million in
share repurchases and $153.0 million in cash dividends to shareholders. This was offset by $329.4 million in net proceeds from borrowings, and the
receipt of $70.0 million associated with the final settlement of the post-closing working capital adjustment from the distribution of the SpinCo Business;
see Note 14- Discontinued Operations for more details. Cash used for financing activities in the prior year was $751.6 million primarily due to a $495.3
million direct decrease in reported cash on hand as a result of our prior year SpinCo Business deconsolidation, $402.7 million of cash used for share
repurchases and $142.8 million in dividends to shareholders. These uses of cash were offset by $374.9 million in net proceeds from borrowings.

At September 26, 2025, the Company had approximately $237.5 million in cash and cash equivalents held in the U.S. and $997.9 million held
outside of the U.S. (primarily in the U.K., the Eurozone, Australia, India, Canada, and the Middle East region), which is used primarily for funding
operations in those regions. Other than the tax cost of repatriating funds to the U.S. (see Note 7- Income Taxes of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K), there are no material impediments to repatriating these funds to the U.S.
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The Company had $217.0 million in letters of credit outstanding at September 26, 2025. Of this amount, $0.3 million was issued under the
Revolving Credit Facility and $216.7 million was issued under separate, committed and uncommitted letter-of-credit facilities.

On March 27, 2025, the Company, as guarantor, and JEGI, as borrower, entered into a term loan agreement (the “2025 Term Loan Facility”) with
Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent and sole lead arranger, and the lenders party thereto. Under the 2025 Term Loan Facility, JEGI borrowed
a $200.0 million term loan and £410.0 million term loan for a term of two-years from the date of initial funding, maturing on March 26, 2027. The
proceeds from the 2025 Term Loan Facility were used to repay the outstanding 2021 Term Loan Facility principal equal to $120.0 million and
£410.2 million, or $531.6 million, and was otherwise used for general corporate purposes. See Note 9- Borrowings.

Long-term debt as of September 26, 2025 increased by $887.9 million compared to September 27, 2024 primarily due to the Company entering
into the 2025 Term Loan Facility for a combined amount of $750.3 million (see Note 9- Borrowings), and an increased draw on the revolving credit facility
of $255.0 million to fund share buybacks and dividends, partly offset by the termination of the 2021 Term Loan - USD portion.

Short-term debt as of September 26, 2025 decreased by $875.8 million compared to September 27, 2024 primarily due to the Equity-for-Debt
Transaction, pursuant to which the company extinguished $311.5 million under the GBP 2021 Term Loan, in exchange for its approximately 19.5 million
shares in Amentum, and the entry to the 2025 Term Loan Facility, the proceeds of which were used to extinguish the remaining $531.6 million under the
GBP 2021 term loan contract. For more information please refer to Note- 9 Borrowings and Note 14- Discontinued Operations for additional details.

In connection with the Separation Transaction, during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2024, Jacobs received a cash payment of approximately
$911 million from SpinCo which was subsequently used for the repayment of debt, which was inclusive of the outstanding short term 2020 Term Loan
Facility totaling $834.9 million.

In connection with the Post-Closing Additional Merger Consideration relating to the Separation Transaction, the Company became entitled to
receive approximately 7.3 million Amentum shares from the 9.7 million shares held in escrow. On April 30, 2025, the Jacobs' Board of Directors
determined to distribute the 7.3 million shares of Amentum's stock and declared an in kind dividend payable to Jacobs' shareholders of record as of May
16, 2025 which was distributed on a pro rata basis on May 30, 2025. Please refer to Note 14- Discontinued Operations for additional details.

On April 10, 2025, the Company collected $70.0 million in receivables related to the final settlement of the post-closing working capital
adjustment from the distribution of the SpinCo Business. The cash was utilized to pay down amounts owed under the Company's Revolving Credit
Facility on the same day. Please refer to Note 14- Discontinued Operations for additional details.

On February 6, 2023, the Company refinanced its Revolving Credit Facility, and on February 16, 2023, the Company issued $500 million in
bonds. On August 18, 2023, the Company issued $600 million in bonds. See Note 9- Borrowings for further discussion relating to the terms of the 5.90%
Bonds, the 6.35% Bonds, the Revolving Credit Facility following the issuances and refinancing.

Certain employees and nonemployees of PA Consulting are eligible to receive equity-based incentive grants since the March 2, 2021 original
investment date. As of September 26, 2025, there was approximately $142.1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the remaining
60% of fair value of such grants anticipated to vest upon a liquidity event, as defined in the applicable agreements. This cost is expected to be
recognized in Selling, general and administrative expenses when such a liquidity event is considered probable, which could occur in 2026. Please refer
to Note 15- PA Consulting Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests for additional details.

We believe we have adequate liquidity and capital resources to fund our projected cash requirements for acquisitions, including any potential
transaction relating to PA Consulting, and financing activities such as debt servicing, share buybacks and dividends for the next twelve months based on
the liquidity provided by our cash and cash equivalents on hand, our borrowing capacity and our continuing cash from operations.

We were in compliance with all of our debt covenants at September 26, 2025.
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Supplemental Obligor Group Financial Information

On February 16, 2023, Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jacobs Solutions Inc. (together, the "Obligor Group"),
completed an offering of $500 million aggregate principal amount of 5.90% Bonds, due 2033 and on August 18, 2023, completed an offering of $600
million aggregate principal amount of 6.35% Bonds, due 2028 (the “Bonds”). The Bonds are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Company (the
“Guarantees”). The Bonds and the Guarantees were offered pursuant to prospectus supplements, dated February 13, 2023 and August 15, 2023,
respectively, to the prospectus dated February 6, 2023, that forms a part of the Company and JEGI’s automatic shelf registration statement on Form S-
3ASR (File Nos. 333-269605 and 333-269605-01) previously filed with the SEC.

In accordance with SEC Regulation S-X Rule 13-01, set forth below is the summarized financial information for the Obligor Group on a combined
basis after elimination of (i) intercompany transactions and balances between Jacobs and JEGI and (ii) equity in the earnings from and investments in all
other subsidiaries of the Company that do not guarantee the registered securities of either Jacobs or JEG. This summarized financial information (in
thousands) has been prepared and presented pursuant to Regulation S-X Rule 13-01, “Financial Disclosures about Guarantors and Issuers of
Guaranteed Securities” and is not intended to present the financial position or results of operations of the Obligor Group in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

(in thousands) September 26, 2025
Summarized Statement of Earnings Data

Revenue $ 4,021,148
Direct cost of contracts $ 3,360,986
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 355,186
Net loss attributable to Guarantor Subsidiaries from continuing operations $ (41,288)
Noncontrolling interests $ (1,388)
(in thousands) September 26, 2025
Summarized Balance Sheet Data

Current assets, less receivables from Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries $ 938,319
Current receivables from Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries $ 749,475
Noncurrent assets, less noncurrent receivables from Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries $ 642,464
Noncurrent receivables from Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries $ 563,682
Current liabilities $ 1,006,916
Current liabilities to Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries $ —
Long-term Debt $ 2,236,456
Other Noncurrent liabilities, less amounts payable to Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries $ 250,106
Noncurrent liabilities to Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries $ 1,110,155
Noncontrolling interests $ 5
Accumulated deficit $ (1,709,698)
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New Accounting Pronouncements

ASU 2025-05, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses, (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses for Accounts Receivable and Contract Assets,
provides all entities with a practical expedient option when estimating expected credit losses for current accounts receivable and current contract assets
arising from transactions accounted for under Topic 606. The amendments in this update are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2025, including interim periods within those annual periods, with early adoption permitted. ASU 2025-05 will be effective for the Company
in first quarter of fiscal 2027. The Company is evaluating the impact of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

ASU 2025-03, Business Combinations, (Topic 805) and Consolidation (Topic 810): Determining the Accounting Acquirer in the Acquisition of a
Variable Interest Entity, clarifies the guidance in determining the accounting acquirer in a business combination effected primarily by exchanging equity
interests when the acquiree is a variable interest entity that meets the definition of a business. The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2026, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted, and the standard is to be applied prospectively to
acquisitions after the adoption date. ASU 2025-03 will be effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2028. The Company is evaluating the
impact of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

ASU 2024-03, Income Statement, (Subtopic 220-40): Reporting Comprehensive Income - Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses,
requires disclosure, in the notes to financial statements, of specified information about certain costs and expenses. The amendments in this update also
provide guidance on the disaggregation disclosure requirements for certain expense captions presented on the face of an entity’s income statement and
provide guidance on the disclosure of selling expenses. The amendments in ASU 2024-03 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2026, and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2027, with early adoption permitted. The amendments should be
applied prospectively; however, retrospective application is also permitted. ASU 2024-03 will be effective for the Company in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2027. The Company is evaluating the impact of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes, (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, provides qualitative and quantitative updates to the
Company's effective income tax rate reconciliation and income taxes paid disclosures, among others, in order to enhance the transparency of income tax
disclosures, including consistent categories and greater disaggregation of information in the rate reconciliation and disaggregation by jurisdiction of
income taxes paid. The amendments in ASU 2023-09 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted.
The amendments should be applied prospectively; however, retrospective application is also permitted. ASU 2023-09 will be effective for the Company's
annual fiscal 2026 period. The Company is evaluating the impact of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

ASU 2023-07, Segment Reporting, (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, requires disclosure of significant segment
expenses that are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) and included within each reported measure of segment profit or
loss, an amount and description of its composition for other segment items to reconcile to segment profit or loss, and the title and position of the entity’s
CODM. The amendments in this update also expand the interim segment disclosure requirements. ASU 2023-07 is effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted and the
amendments in this update are required to be applied on a retrospective basis. ASU 2023-07 was effective for the Company's annual fiscal 2025 period.
The Company adopted this update effective for the fiscal year ended September 26, 2025.

ASU 2023-06, Disclosure Improvements: Amendments - Codification Amendments in Response to the Disclosure Update and Simplification
Initiative of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued the standard to introduce changes to
US GAAP that originate in either SEC Regulation S-X or S-K, which are rules about the form and content of financial reports filed with the SEC. The
provisions of the standard are contingent upon instances where the SEC removes the related disclosure provisions from Regulation S-X and S-K. ASU
2023-06 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The amendments should be applied prospectively;
however, retrospective application is also permitted. ASU 2023-06 will be effective for the company in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2026. The Company
does not expect that the application of this standard will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We do not enter into derivative financial instruments for trading, speculation or other similar purposes that would expose the Company to market
risk. In the normal course of business, our results of operations are exposed to risks associated with fluctuations in interest rates and currency exchange
rates.

Interest Rate Risk

Please see the Note 9- Borrowings in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on Page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
which is incorporated herein by reference, for a discussion of the Revolving Credit Facility and 2025 Term Loan Facility.

Our Revolving Credit Facility, 2025 Term Loan Facility and certain other debt obligations are subject to variable rate interest which could be
adversely affected by an increase in interest rates. As of September 26, 2025, we had an aggregate of $1.15 billion in outstanding borrowings under our
Revolving Credit Facility and 2025 Term Loan Facility. Interest on amounts borrowed under these agreements is subject to adjustment based on the
Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio (as defined in the credit agreements governing the Revolving Credit Facility and the 2025 Term Loan Facility).
Depending on the Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio, borrowings denominated in U.S. dollars under the Revolving Credit Facility interest at a
SOFR rate plus a margin of between 0.975% and 1.725% or a base rate plus a margin of between 0% and 0.625% including applicable margins while
borrowings denominated in British pounds under these respective facilities bear interest at an adjusted SONIA rate plus a margin of between 0.908%
and 1.658%. Borrowings under the 2025 Term Loan Facility will bear interest at either a SONIA rate or term SOFR rate plus a margin of between 0.975%
and 1.600% or a base rate plus a margin of between 0.000% and 0.500%. Additionally, our Revolving Credit Facility and 5.90% Bonds due 2033 have
interest rates subject to potential increases relating to certain ESG metrics as stipulated in the related agreements and as discussed in Note 9-
Borrowings.

However, as discussed in Note 17- Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments, we have one outstanding swap
agreement with an aggregate notional value of $200.0 million in place to convert the variable rate interest-based liability associated with a corresponding
amount of our debt into a fixed interest rate liability, leaving $945.3 million in principal amount subject to variable interest rate risk. Additionally, during
fiscal 2022, we entered into two treasury lock arrangements with an aggregate notional value of $500.0 million, which were settled in second quarter
fiscal 2023. See Note 17- Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments.

For the year ended September 26, 2025, our weighted average floating rate borrowings that are subject to floating rate exposure were
approximately $1.2 billion. If floating interest rates had increased by 1.00%, our interest expense for the year ended September 26, 2025 would have
increased by approximately $12.0 million.

Foreign Currency Risk

In situations where the Company incurs contract costs in currencies other than their functional currency, we sometimes enter into foreign
exchange contracts to limit our exposure to fluctuating foreign currencies. We follow the provisions of ASC No. 815, Derivatives and Hedging in
accounting for our derivative contracts. The Company has $491.9 million in notional value of exchange rate sensitive instruments at September 26,
2025. See Note 17- Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments for discussion.

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The information required by this Item 8 is submitted as a separate section beginning on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is

incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
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Disclosure controls and procedures are those controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in
our reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) are recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and
procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated
to management, including our Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer), to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

The Company’s management, with the participation of its Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer), evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as defined by Rule 13a-15(e) of the
Exchange Act as of September 26, 2025, the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Evaluation Date”). Based on that
evaluation, the Company’s management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer) concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the Evaluation Date were effective to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC'’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the
Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial
officer), as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining for the Company adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Management, with the participation of its Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial
Officer (principal financial officer), has assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of the Evaluation Date
based on the framework established in “Internal Control—Integrated Framework,” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (2013 framework). Based on this assessment, management has concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
the Evaluation Date was effective.

The Company's independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, which audited the Company's consolidated financial
statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, also audited the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
September 26, 2025, as stated in their report included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the Company’s fiscal quarter ended September 26,
2025 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

The Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that its disclosure controls and
procedures or its system of internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well
designed or operated, can provide only reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the system of internal control are met. The design
of the Company’s control system reflects the fact that there are resource constraints, and that the benefits of such control systems must be considered
relative to their costs. Further, because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all
control failures and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in
decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the
intentional acts of individuals, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is
also based in part on certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that the design of any particular control
will always succeed in achieving its objective under all potential future conditions.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
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Rule 10b5-1 Trading_ Plans

During the fiscal quarter ended September 26, 2025, none of our officers or directors adopted or terminated any contract, instruction or written
plan for the purchase or sale of our securities that was intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act or
any “non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” as defined in ltem 408(c) of SEC Regulation S-K.

Item 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS
Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters and Control Persons

The information required by Paragraph (a), and Paragraphs (c) through (g) of Item 401 of Regulation S-K (except for information required by
Paragraph (e) of that Item to the extent the required information pertains to our executive officers) and ltem 405 of Regulation S-K is set forth under the
caption “Members of the Board of Directors” and “Corporate Governance” in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to
Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference. The information required by Paragraph (b) of
Iltem 401 of Regulation S-K, as well as the information required by Paragraph (e) of that ltem to the extent the required information pertains to our
executive officers, is set forth in Part I, ltem 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading “Information About Our Executive Officers.”

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics for our Chief Executive Officer and senior financial officers; a code of business conduct and ethics for
members of our Board of Directors and corporate governance guidelines. The full text of these codes of ethics and corporate governance guidelines are
available at our website at www.jacobs.com. In the event we make any amendment to, or grant any waiver from, a provision of the code of ethics that
applies to the principal executive officer, principal financial officer or principal accounting officer that requires disclosure under applicable SEC rules, we
will disclose such amendment or waiver and the reasons therefor on our website. We will provide any person without charge a copy of any of the
aforementioned codes of ethics upon receipt of a written request. Requests should be addressed to: Jacobs Solutions Inc., 1999 Bryan Street, Suite
3500, Dallas, Texas 75201, Attention: Corporate Secretary.

Corporate Governance

The information required by ltems 407(d)(4) and (d)(5) and Item 408(b) of Regulation S-K is set forth under the caption “Corporate Governance”
in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year and is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is set forth under the captions “Corporate Governance,” “Compensation Committee Report,”
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis” and “Executive Compensation” in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation
14A within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is set forth in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120
days after the close of our fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is set forth under the captions “Members of The Board of Directors,” “Corporate Governance,” and “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions” in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the
close of our fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The Company's independent registered public accounting firm is Ernst & Young, LLP, Dallas, TX, Auditor Firm ID: 42.
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The information required by this Item is set forth under the captions “Report of the Audit Committee” and “Audit and Non-Audit Fees” in our
definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year and is incorporated herein
by reference.
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PART IV
EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

(1) The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements at September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 and for each of the three
years in the period ended September 26, 2025, and the notes thereto, together with the report of the independent auditors on
those Consolidated Financial Statements are hereby filed as part of this report, beginning on page F-1.

(2) Financial statement schedules — no financial statement schedules are presented as the required information is either not
applicable or is included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(3) See Exhibit Index below.
(b) Exhibit Index:

21 Amended and Restated Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 26, 2019, by and between Jacobs Engineering_ Group Inc. and

WorleyParsons Limited. Filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K on April 29, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference.

22 Implementation Deed, dated as of November 27, 2020, by and among_PA Consulting_Group Limited, CEP IV Garden S.A.R.L., Jacobs Consulting
Solutions Limited, Jacobs Engineering_Group Inc. and the persons set out in Schedule 1 thereto. Filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K on November 30, 2020 and incorporated herein by reference.

23 Warranty Deed, dated as of November 27, 2020, by and among_the Warrantors named therein and Jacobs Consulting_Solutions Limited. Filed as Exhibit
2.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on November 30, 2020 and incorporated herein by reference.

24 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated November 20, 2023, by and among_Jacobs Solutions Inc., Amazon Holdco Inc., Amentum Parent Holdings LLC and
Amentum Joint Venture LP. Filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on November 21, 2023 and incorporated herein by
reference.

2.5 Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated August 26, 2024, by and among_Jacobs Solutions Inc., Amazon Holdco Inc., Amentum Parent

Holdings LLC and Amentum Joint Venture LP.

2.6 ggaration and Distribution Agreement, dated November 20, 2023, by and among_Jacobs Solutions Inc., Amazon Holdco Inc., Amentum Parent Holdings
LLC and Amentum Joint Venture LP. Filed as Exhibit 2.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on November 21, 2023 and incorporated herein
by reference.

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Jacobs Solutions Inc. Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on February 3, 2025 and
incorporated herein by reference.

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Jacobs Solutions Inc., dated as of July 31, 2025. Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the third quarter of fiscal 2025 and incorporated herein by reference.

41 Indenture, dated as of February 16, 2023, among_Jacobs Solutions Inc., Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National
Association, as Trustee. Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K on February 16, 2023 and incorporated herein by reference.

4.2 Eirst Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 16, 2023, among_Jacobs Solutions Inc., Jacobs Engineering_ Group Inc., and U.S. Bank Trust

Company, National Association, as Trustee. Filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Regjstrant's Current Report on Form 8-K on February 16, 2023 and incorporated
herein by reference.

43 Form of the Notes, including the Guarantee. Filed as part of Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K on February 16, 2023 and
incorporated herein by reference.
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Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 18, 2023, among_Jacobs Solutions Inc., Jacobs Engineering_Group Inc. and the U.S. Bank Trust
Company, National Association, as Trustee. Filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K on August 18, 2023 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Form of the Notes, including_the Guarantee. Filed as part of Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K on August 18, 2023 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Description of the Registrant’s Securities. Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2022 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by
reference.

Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated February 6, 2023, by and among_Jacobs Solutions Inc., Jacobs Engineering_Group Inc., certain of

its subsidiaries party thereto, the lenders party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current
Report on Form E-R\ on February 7, 2023 and incorporated herein by reference.

First Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of December 20, 2023, by and among_Jacobs Solutions Inc., Jacobs
Engineering_Group Inc., certain of its subsidiaries party thereto, the lenders party therefo and Bank of America, N.A., ‘as administrative agent to the Third

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of February 6, 2023, by and among_Jacobs Solutions Inc., Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., certain of

its subsidiaries party thereto, the lenders party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of fiscal and incorporated herein by reference.

Term Loan Agreement, dated as of March 27, 2025, among_Jacobs Solutions Inc., Jacobs Engineering_Group Inc., the lenders party thereto, and Bank of
merica, ._as administrative agent. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Regjstrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on March 27, 2025 and incorporated herein

by reference.

dated January 28, 2016. Filed as Exhibit 10.61 to the Registrant’s

fiscal 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Offer letter by and between Jacobs Engineering_Group Inc. and William Benton Allen, Jr. dated October 4, 2016. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's
Current Report on Form 8-K on October 14, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference.

Jacobs Solutions Inc. 1989 Emgloyee Stock Purchase Plan (as amended and restated on August 29, 2022). Filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant's Post
ective Amendment No. 1 to Form S-8 on August 29, 2022 and incorporated herein by reference.

Jacobs Solutions Inc. (StreetlLight) 2011 Stock Plan, as amended and restated, effective August 29, 2022. Filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Registrant’s Post
Effective Amendment No. 1 to Form S-8 on August 29,2022 and incorporated herein by reference.

Jacobs Executive Deferral Plan, effective January 1, 2023. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter
of fiscal 2023 and incorporated herein by reference.

First Amendment to the Jacobs Executive Deferral Plan, effective December 29, 2023. Filed as Exhibit 10.15 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2024 Annual Report
on Form 10-Kand incorporated herein by reference.

Second Amendment to the Jacobs Executive Deferral Plan, effective September 13, 2024. Filed as Exhibit 10.16 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2024 Annual
Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.
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Jacobs Solutions Inc. Directors Deferral Plan, as amended and restated effective August 29, 2022. Filed as Exhibit 10.22 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2022
Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.

Jacobs Solutions Inc. 2023 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated, effective January 24, 2023. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current

Jacobs Solutions Inc. 1999 Outside Director Stock Plan, as amended and restated effective August 29
Effective Amendment No. 1 to Form S-8 on August 29, 2022 and incorporated herein by reference.

2022. Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Post

Jacobs Solutions Inc. Executive Severance Plan, as amended and restated effective January 29, 2025.

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (awarded pursuant to the 1999 Outside Directors Stock Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’'s Quarterly

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Time-Based Vesting)_(awarded pursuant to Jacobs' Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of fiscal 2021 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Performance Shares — Earnings Per Share Growth) (awarded pursuant to Jacobs' 1999 Stock Incentive Plan)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement gPerformance Shares — ROIC) (awarded pursuant to Jacobs' Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of fiscal 2 incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Time-Based Vesting) (awarded pursuant to the Jacobs' Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of fiscal 2022 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Performance Shares — Earnings Per Share Growth)_(awarded pursuant to Jacobs' Stock Incentive Plan). Filed

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Performance Shares — ROIC) (awarded pursuant to Jacobs' Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the

Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of fiscal 2023 and incorporated herein by_reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Time-Based Vesting)_(awarded pursuant to Jacobs' Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of fiscal 2023 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Time-Based Vesting)_(awarded pursuant to Jacobs' Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of fiscal 2024 and incorporated herein by reference.
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Eorm of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Performance Shares — Earnings Per Share) (awarded pursuant to Jacobs' Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as
Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of fiscal 2024 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Performance Shares — ROIC (ELT)) (awarded pursuant to Jacobs' Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.8 to

the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of fiscal 2024 and incorporated herein by reference.

Eorm of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Performance Shares — ROIC) (awarded pursuant to Jacobs' Stock Incentive Plan). Filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quarter of fiscal 2024 and incorporated herein by reference.

Emgloyee Matters Agreement, November 20, 2023, bg and among_Jacobs Solutions Inc., Amazon Holdco Inc. and Amentum Parent Holdings LLC. Filed
as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on November 21, and incorporated herein by reference.

Tax Matters Agreement, dated as of September 27, 2024, by and among_Jacobs Solutions Inc., Amentum Holdings, Inc., Amentum Parent Holdings LLC
and Amentum Joint Venture LP Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K on September 30, 2024 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Insider Trading_Policy. Filed as Exhibit 19 to the Registrant’s fiscal 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.

List of Subsidiaries of Jacobs Solutions Inc.

Subsidiary Issuers of Guaranteed Securities. Filed as Exhibit 22.1 to the Regjstrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 2024
and incorporated herein by reference.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting_Firm.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002.

\lJ)acotf)s Solutions Inc. Executive Clawback Policy. Filed as Exhibit 97 to the Registrant's fiscal 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein
by reference.

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
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101.CALYT XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEFt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LABYT XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PREYT XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
104t Cover page interactive data file (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)
1 Being filed herewith.
# Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC.
Dated: November 20, 2025 By: /S/ Robert V. Pragada
Robert V. Pragada
Chair and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:
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Signature

/S/ Robert V. Pragada

Robert V. Pragada
/S/ Louis Pinkham

Louis Pinkham
/S/ Peter J. Robertson

Peter J. Robertson
/S/ Manny Fernandez

Manny Fernandez
/S/ Priya Abani

Priya Abani
/S/ Michael Collins

Michael Collins
/S/ Georgette D. Kiser

Georgette D. Kiser
/S/ Mary Jackson

Mary Jackson
/S/ Robert A. McNamara

Robert A. McNamara
/S/ Julie Sloat

Julie Sloat

/sl Venk Nathamuni

Venk Nathamuni

/S/ William B. Allen, Jr.

William B. Allen, Jr.

Title

Chair and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables and contract assets
Prepaid expenses and other
Investment in equity securities
Total current assets
Property, Equipment and Improvements, net
Other Noncurrent Assets:
Goodwill
Intangibles, net
Deferred income tax assets
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Miscellaneous
Total other noncurrent assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Operating lease liability
Contract liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Liabilities relating to defined benefit pension and retirement plans
Deferred income tax liabilities
Long-term operating lease liability
Other deferred liabilities
Total other noncurrent liabilities
Commitments and Contingencies
Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests
Stockholders’ Equity:
Capital stock:

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share information)

Preferred stock, $1 par value, authorized - 1,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding - none

Common stock $1 par value, authorized - 240,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding - 119,081,294 shares and

124,084,028 shares as of September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024, respectively

Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total Jacobs stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests
Total Group stockholders’ equity

September 26, 2025

September 27, 2024

1,235,448 1,144,795
2,989,067 2,845,452
134,804 155,865
— 749,468
4,359,319 4,895,580
311,872 315,630
4,780,818 4,788,181
717,670 874,894
325,814 195,406
289,101 303,856
467,941 385,458
6,581,344 6,547,795
11,252,535 11,759,005
— 875,760
1,261,489 1,029,140
1,037,754 1,087,764
111,040 119,988
940,616 967,089
3,350,899 4,079,741
2,236,456 1,348,594
272,069 298,221
151,821 116,655
362,361 407,826
212,330 120,483
3,235,037 2,291,779
1,018,694 820,182
119,081 124,084
2,706,376 2,758,064
1,525,760 2,366,769
(710,410) (699,450)
3,640,807 4,549,467
7,098 17,836
3,647,905 4,567,303
11,252,535 11,759,005

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
For the Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023
(In thousands, except per share information)

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023

Revenues $ 12,029,783 $ 11,500,941 $ 10,851,420
Direct cost of contracts (9,044,849) (8,668,185) (8,140,560)
Gross profit 2,984,934 2,832,756 2,710,860
Selling, general and administrative expenses (2,121,300) (2,140,320) (2,034,376)
Operating Profit 863,634 692,436 676,484
Other Income (Expense):
Interest income 35,804 34,454 24,975
Interest expense (145,788) (169,058) (168,085)
Loss on extinguishment of debt (20,510) — —
Miscellaneous (expense) income, net (189,663) 219,454 (12,399)
Total other (expense) income, net (320,157) 84,850 (155,509)
Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Taxes 543,477 777,286 520,975
Income Tax Expense for Continuing Operations (215,555) (131,493) (101,336)
Net Earnings of the Group from Continuing Operations 327,922 645,793 419,639
Net (Loss) Earnings of the Group from Discontinued Operations, net of
tax (23,966) 206,850 300,017
Net Earnings of the Group 303,956 852,643 719,656
Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests from Continuing
Operations (3,443) (17,990) (18,900)
Net Earnings Attributable to Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests (11,177) (14,999) (21,614)
Net Earnings Attributable to Jacobs from Continuing Operations 313,302 612,804 379,125
Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests from Discontinued
Operations — (13,561) (13,365)
Net (Loss) Earnings Attributable to Jacobs from Discontinued
Operations (23,966) 193,289 286,652
Net Earnings Attributable to Jacobs $ 289,336 $ 806,093 § 665,777

Net Earnings Per Share:

Basic Net Earnings from Continuing Operations Per Share $ 259 $ 481 $ 3.06
Basic Net (Loss) Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share $ (0.20) $ 154 $ 2.26
Basic Earnings Per Share $ 239 § 6.35 § 5.32
Diluted Net Earnings from Continuing Operations Per Share $ 258 $ 479 $ 3.05
Diluted Net (Loss) Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share ~ $ (0.20) $ 154 $ 2.25
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 238 $ 6.32 $ 5.30

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023
(In thousands)

September 26, 2025 September 27,2024 September 29, 2023

Net Earnings of the Group $ 303,956 $ 852,643 $ 719,656
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income:
Foreign currency translation adjustment (10,110) 266,421 148,971
Change in cash flow hedges (6,284) (84,193) (20,500)
Change in pension plan liabilities (2,717) (50,404) (16,389)
Other comprehensive (loss) income before taxes (19,111) 131,824 112,082
Income Tax Benefit (Expense):
Foreign currency translation adjustment 5,657 — 1,132
Cash flow hedges 1,750 21,521 5,870
Change in pension plan liabilities 744 5,159 (1,908)
Income Tax Benefit: 8,151 26,680 5,094
Net other comprehensive (loss) income (10,960) 158,504 117,176
Net Comprehensive Income of the Group 292,996 1,011,147 836,832
Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests (3,443) (31,551) (32,265)
Net Earnings Attributable to Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests (11,177) (14,999) (21,614)
Net Comprehensive Income Attributable to Jacobs $ 278,376 § 964,597 § 782,953

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements including the Company's note on Other Financial Information for a presentation of
amounts reclassified to net income during the period.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

For the Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023
(In thousands)

Balances at September 30, 2022
Net earnings
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of deferred taxes of
$(1,132)
Pension plan liability, net of deferred taxes of $1,908
Change in cash flow hedges, net of deferred taxes of $(5,870)
Dividends
Noncontrolling interests - distributions and other
Redeemable Noncontrolling interests redemption value adjustment
Repurchase and issuance of redeemable noncontrolling interests
Stock based compensation
Issuances of equity securities including shares withheld for taxes
Repurchases of equity securities

Balances at September 29, 2023
Net earnings
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of deferred taxes of $0
Pension plan liability, net of deferred taxes of $(5,159)
Change in cash flow hedges., net of deferred taxes of $(21,521)
Dividends
Noncontrolling interests - distributions and other
Redeemable Noncontrolling interests redemption value adjustment
Repurchase and issuance of redeemable noncontrolling interests
Distribution of SpinCo Business
Stock based compensation
Issuances of equity securities including shares withheld for taxes
Repurchases of equity securities

Balances at September 27, 2024
Net earnings
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of deferred taxes of
$(5,657)
Pension plan liability, net of deferred taxes of $(744)
Change in cash flow hedges, net of deferred taxes of $(1,750)
Dividends
Dividend in kind
Noncontrolling interests - distributions and other
Redeemable Noncontrolling interests redemption value adjustment
Repurchase and issuance of redeemable noncontrolling interests
Distribution adjustments relating to SpinCo Business
Stock based compensation
Issuances of equity securities including shares withheld for taxes
Repurchases of equity securities

Balances at September 26, 2025

Accumulated

Additional Other Comprehensive Total Jacobs Total Group
Common Paid-in Retained Income Stockholders’ N trolling Stockholders’
Stock Capital Earnings (Loss) Equity Interests Equity
$ 127,393 $§ 2,682,009 $ 4225784 §$ (975,130) $ 6,060,056 $ 44336 $ 6,104,392
— — 665,777 — 665,777 32,265 698,042
— — — 150,103 150,103 — 150,103
— — — (18,297) (18,297) — (18,297)
— — — (14,630) (14,630) — (14,630)
— — (132,468) — (132,468) — (132,468)
— — — — — (22,739) (22,739)
— — (10,770) — (10,770) — (10,770)
— — 14,293 — 14,293 — 14,293
— 74,337 — — 74,337 — 74,337
910 28,181 (5,558) = 23,533 = 23,533
(2,326) (49,202) (214,186) — (265,714) — (265,714)
$ 125977 $ 2,735325 $ 4,542872 $ (857,954) $ 6,546,220 $ 53,862 $ 6,600,082
— — 806,093 — 806,093 31,551 837,644
— — — 211,702 211,702 — 211,702
— — — (44,998) (44,998) — (44,998)
— — — (62,672) (62,672) — (62,672)
— — (145,924) — (145,924) — (145,924)
— — — — — (21,202) (21,202)
— — (171,142) — (171,142) — (171,142)
— — 4,698 — 4,698 — 4,698
— — (2,326,290) 54,472 (2,271,818) (46,375) (2,318,193)
= 74,193 = = 74,193 = 74,193
994 11,512 (6,723) — 5,783 — 5,783
(2,887) (62,966) (336,815) — (402,668) — (402,668)
$ 124,084 $ 2,758,064 $ 2,366,769 $ (699,450) $ 4,549,467 $ 17,836 §$ 4,567,303
— — 289,336 — 289,336 3,443 292,779
— — — (4,453) (4,453) — (4,453)
- — — (1,973) (1,973) - (1,973)
— — — (4,534) (4,534) — (4,534)
— — (117,977) — (117,977) — (117,977)
— — (159,266) — (159,266 — (159,266)
— — - — — (14,181) (14,181)
— — (199,763) — (199,763) — (199,763)
— — 3,550 — 3,550 — 3,550
— — (27,672) — (27,672) — (27,672)
— 60,960 — — 60,960 — 60,960
685 14,230 (7,653) — 7,262 — 7,262
(5,688) (126,878) (621,564) — (754,130) — (754,130)
$ 119,081 $ 2,706,376 $ 1,525760 $ (710,410) $ 3,640,807 $ 7,098 $ 3,647,905
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See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023
(In thousands)
September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Earnings of the Group $ 303,956 $ 852,643 $ 719,656
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash flows provided by operations:
Depreciation and amortization:

Property, equipment and improvements 82,059 99,232 103,346
Intangible assets 155,517 209,507 203,906
Loss on extinguishment of debt 20,510 — —
Loss (gain) on investment in equity securities 227,305 (186,931) —
Stock based compensation 60,960 74,193 74,337
Equity in earnings of operating ventures, net of return on capital distributions (1,526) (16,079) (324)
(Gain) loss on disposals of assets, net (722) (3,200) 7,690
Impairment of equity method investment and other long-term assets — 3,000 48,163
Deferred income taxes (94,532) (224,935) (76,815)
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding the effects of businesses acquired:
Receivables and contract assets, net of contract liabilities (177,877) 59,587 (8,395)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 8,383 11,217 (33,996)
Miscellaneous other assets 60,586 104,659 92,050
Accounts payable 231,254 81,469 166,194
Income taxes payable (183,273) 94,094 9,408
Accrued liabilities (64,945) (138,491) (279,136)
Other deferred liabilities 75,231 6,047 (49,957)
Other, net (16,182) 28,661 (1,364)
Net cash provided by operating activities 686,704 1,054,673 974,763
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to property and equipment (79,232) (121,114) (137,486)
Disposals of property and equipment and other assets 2,332 6,187 1,544
Capital contributions to equity investees, net of return of capital distributions 1,609 1,737 7,964
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired — (14,000) (17,685)
Net cash used for investing activities (75,291) (127,190) (145,663)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 2,458,201 4,606,697 3,860,468
Repayments of long-term borrowings (1,471,800) (3,370,355) (4,486,679)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings — 5,345 13,011
Repayments of short-term borrowings (656,981) (866,761) (3,353)
Debt issuance costs (92) (34,331) (17,177)
Proceeds from issuances of common stock 34,712 47,503 47,782
Common stock repurchases (754,130) (402,668) (265,714)
Taxes paid on vested restricted stock (27,450) (41,720) (24,249)
Cash dividends to shareholders (153,027) (142,779) (128,420)
Net dividends associated with noncontrolling interests (14,205) (21,678) (23,156)
Repurchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests (10,449) (55,344) (92,939)
Proceeds from issuances of redeemable noncontrolling interests — 19,761 34,016
Cash impact from distribution of SpinCo Business 70,000 (495,307) —
Net cash used for financing activities (525,221) (751,637) (1,086,410)
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes 3,693 41,640 32,548
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash 89,885 217,486 (224,762)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash, at the Beginning of the Period 1,146,931 929,445 1,154,207
Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash, at the End of the Period $ 1,236,816 $ 1,146,931 § 929,445
Less Cash and Cash Equivalents included in Assets held for spin $ — 3 — (155,728)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash, of Continuing Operations at the End of the Period $ 1,236,816  $ 1,146,931 § 773,717
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See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

Description of Business

Jacobs Solutions Inc. ("Jacobs" or "the Company") is a leading global professional services company that designs and deploys technology-
centric solutions to solve many of the world’s most complex challenges. The services Jacobs provides to end markets fall into the following two operating
segments: Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities and our investment in PA Consulting Group Limited ("PA Consulting"). See Note 19- Segment
Information.

From advisory and consulting, feasibility, planning, design, program and lifecycle management, Jacobs provides end-to-end services in
advanced manufacturing, cities & places, energy, environmental, life sciences, transportation and water. Jacobs provides its services through offices and
subsidiaries located primarily in North America, Europe, the Middle East, India, Australia, New Zealand and Asia. Jacobs provides its services under
cost-reimbursable (including limited amounts of guaranteed maximum price) and fixed-price contracts, with fixed-price contracts comprised mainly of
professional services arrangements and in some limited cases, construction. The percentage of revenues realized from each of these types of contracts
for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 was as follows:

For the Years Ended

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Cost-reimbursable 68% 69% 70%
Fixed-price 32% 31% 30%

Basis of Presentation, Definition of Fiscal Year, and Other Matters

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States ("U.S. GAAP") and include the accounts of Jacobs Solutions Inc. and its subsidiaries and affiliates which it controls. All intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Friday closest to September 30 (determined on the basis of the number of workdays) and, accordingly,
an additional week of activity is added every five-to-six years. Fiscal 2020 included an extra week of activity.

On September 27, 2024, Jacobs Solutions Inc. ("Jacobs") completed the previously announced Reverse Morris Trust transaction pursuant to
which (i) Jacobs first transferred its Critical Mission Solutions business (“CMS”) and portions of its Divergent Solutions (“DVS”) business (referred to
herein as the Cyber & Intelligence business (“C&l”) and together with CMS referred to as the “SpinCo Business”), to Amazon Holdco Inc., a Delaware
corporation, that was subsequently renamed Amentum Holdings, Inc. (“SpinCo”) (the “Separation”), (ii) Jacobs then effectuated a spin-off of SpinCo by
distributing 124,084,108 shares of SpinCo common stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “SpinCo Common Stock”) by way of a pro rata distribution to its
shareholders such that each holder of shares of Jacobs Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share, (the “Jacobs Common Stock”) was entitled to
receive one share of SpinCo Common Stock for each share of Jacobs common stock held as of the record date, September 23, 2024 (the “Distribution”),
and (iii) finally, Amentum Parent Holdings LLC merged with and into SpinCo, with SpinCo surviving the merger (the “Merger” and together with the
Separation and the Distribution, the “Separation Transaction”).

As a result of the Separation, substantially all SpinCo Business-related assets and liabilities have been separated and distributed (the "Disposal
Group"). The Company determined that the Disposal Group should be reported as discontinued operations in accordance with ASC 205-20,
Discontinued Operations because their disposal represents a strategic shift that had a major effect on the Company's operations and financial results. As
such, the financial results of the SpinCo Business are reflected in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Earnings as well as relevant disclosures
as discontinued operations for all periods presented. Additionally, current and non-current assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group were reflected as
held for spin in the Consolidated Balance Sheets prior to the Separation Transaction and no amounts remain held for spin as of September 27, 2024 and
September 26, 2025. See Note 14- Discontinued Operations for more information.
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JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

2, Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Accounting for Contracts

Engineering, Procurement & Construction Contracts, Service Contracts and Software Contracts

The Company recognizes engineering, procurement, and construction contract revenue over time, as performance obligations are satisfied, due
to the continuous transfer of control to the customer in accordance with ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Contracts which
include engineering, procurement and construction services are generally accounted for as a single deliverable (a single performance obligation). In
some instances, the Company’s services associated with a construction activity are limited to specific tasks such as customer support, consulting or
supervisory services. In these instances, the services are typically identified as separate performance obligations.

The Company recognizes revenue using the percentage-of-completion method, based primarily on contract costs incurred to date compared to
total estimated contract costs. Estimated contract costs include the Company’s latest estimates using judgments with respect to labor hours and costs,
materials, and subcontractor costs. The percentage-of-completion method (an input method) is the most representative depiction of the Company’s
performance because it directly measures the value of the services transferred to the customer. Subcontractor materials, labor and equipment and, in
certain cases, customer-furnished materials and labor and equipment are included in revenue and cost of revenue when management believes that the
company is acting as a principal rather than as an agent (e.g., the company significantly integrates the materials, labor and equipment into the
deliverables promised to the customer or is otherwise primarily responsible for fulfillment and acceptability of the materials, labor and/or equipment). The
Company recognizes revenue, but not profit, on certain uninstalled materials that are not specifically produced, fabricated, or constructed for a project.
Changes to total estimated contract cost or losses, if any, are recognized in the period in which they are determined as assessed at the contract level.
Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred unless they are expected to be recovered from the client. Project mobilization costs are generally charged
to project costs as incurred when they are an integrated part of the performance obligation being transferred to the client. Under the typical payment
terms of our engineering, procurement and construction contracts, amounts are billed as work progresses in accordance with agreed-upon contractual
terms at periodic intervals (e.g., biweekly or monthly) and customer payments are typically due within 30 to 60 days of billing, depending on the contract.

For service contracts, the Company recognizes revenue over time using the cost-to-cost percentage-of-completion method. For contracts with
multiple performance obligations, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation using an estimate of the stand-alone
selling price of each distinct service in the contract. In some instances where the Company is standing ready to provide services, the Company
recognizes revenue ratably over the service period. When the Company has operations and maintenance or secondment contracts that do not contain
variable consideration or have significant timing differences between cash payment and performance, the practical expedient method is applied for
revenue recognition. Under the typical payment terms of our service contracts, amounts are billed as work progresses in accordance with agreed-upon
contractual terms, and customer payments are typically due within 30 to 60 days of billing, depending on the contract.

Revenue for certain contracts related to the sale of software licenses is recognized at a point in time, typically at the time of delivery, in
accordance with ASC 606. The software license sale will be treated as a performance obligation separate and distinct from any related service and
maintenance.

Direct cost of contracts include all costs incurred in connection with and directly for the benefit of client contracts, including depreciation and
amortization relating to assets used in providing the services required by the related projects. The level of direct cost of contracts may fluctuate between
reporting periods due to a variety of factors, including the amount of pass-through costs we incur during a period. On those projects where we are acting
as principal for subcontract labor or third-party materials and equipment, we reflect the amounts of such items in both revenues and costs (and we refer
to such costs as “pass-through costs”).

Back charges to suppliers or subcontractors are recognized as a reduction of cost when it is determined that recovery of such cost is probable, and
the amounts can be reliably estimated. Disputed back charges are recognized when the same requirements described above have been satisfied.



JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

Variable Consideration

The nature of the Company’s contracts gives rise to several types of variable consideration, including claims and unpriced change orders;
awards and incentive fees; and liquidated damages and penalties. The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that
a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The Company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on
variable consideration using the expected value (i.e., the sum of a probability-weighted amount) or the most likely amount method, whichever is expected
to better predict the amount. Factors considered in determining whether revenue associated with claims (including change orders in dispute and
unapproved change orders in regard to both scope and price) should be recognized include the following: (a) the contract or other evidence provides a
legal basis for the claim, (b) additional costs were caused by circumstances that were unforeseen at the contract date and not the result of deficiencies in
the company’s performance, (c) claim-related costs are identifiable and considered reasonable in view of the work performed, and (d) evidence
supporting the claim is objective and verifiable. If the requirements for recognizing revenue for claims or unapproved change orders are met, revenue is
recorded only when the costs associated with the claims or unapproved change orders have been incurred and only up to the amount of consideration
that is probable of not being reversed.

The Company generally provides limited warranties for work performed under its engineering and construction contracts. The warranty periods
typically extend for a limited duration following substantial completion of the Company’s work on the project. Historically, warranty claims have not
resulted in material costs incurred for which the Company was not compensated for by the customer.

See Note 3- Revenue Accounting for Contracts for further discussion.

Joint Ventures and VIEs

As is common to the industry, we execute certain contracts jointly with third parties through various forms of joint ventures. Although the joint
ventures own and hold the contracts with the clients, the services required by the contracts are typically performed by us and our joint venture partners,
or by other subcontractors under subcontracting agreements with the joint ventures. Many of these joint ventures are formed for a specific project. The
assets of our joint ventures generally consist almost entirely of cash and receivables (representing amounts due from clients), and the liabilities of our
joint ventures generally consist almost entirely of amounts due to the joint venture partners (for services provided by the partners to the joint ventures
under their individual subcontracts) and other subcontractors. In general, at any given time, the equity of our joint ventures represents the undistributed
profits earned on contracts the joint ventures hold with clients. Very few of our joint ventures have employees or third-party debt or credit facilities. The
debt held by the joint ventures is non-recourse to the general credit of Jacobs.

The assets of a joint venture are available for use for the obligations of the particular joint venture and not for general operations of the
Company. Our risk of loss on these arrangements is usually shared with our partners. The liability of each partner is usually joint and several, which
means that each partner may become liable for the entire risk of loss on the project. Furthermore, on some of our projects, the Company has granted
guarantees which may encumber both our contracting subsidiary company and the Company for the entire risk of loss on the project. The Company is
unable to estimate the maximum potential amount of future payments that we could be required to make under outstanding performance guarantees
related to joint venture projects due to a number of factors, including but not limited to, the nature and extent of any contractual defaults by our joint
venture partners, resource availability, potential performance delays caused by the defaults, the location of the projects, and the terms of the related
contracts. See Note 18- Contractual Guarantees, Litigation, Investigations and Insurance for further discussion.

Most of the joint ventures are deemed to be variable interest entities (“VIE”) because they lack sufficient equity to finance the activities of the
joint venture. The Company uses a qualitative approach to determine if the Company is the primary beneficiary of the VIE, which considers factors that
indicate a party has the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the joint venture’s economic performance. These factors include the
composition of the governing board, how board decisions are approved, the powers granted to the operational manager(s) and partner that holds that
position(s), and to a certain extent, the partner’s economic interest in the joint venture. The Company analyzes each joint venture initially to determine if
it should be consolidated or unconsolidated.

. Consolidated if the Company is the primary beneficiary of a VIE or holds the majority of voting interests of a non-VIE (and no significant
participative rights are available to the other partners).
. Unconsolidated if the Company is not the primary beneficiary of a VIE or does not hold the majority of voting interest of a non-VIE.
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JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

Our unconsolidated joint ventures (including equity method investments) are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the investment might not be recoverable, and impairment losses are recognized for such investments
if there is a decline in fair value below carrying value that is considered to be other-than-temporary.

See Note 8- Joint Ventures, VIEs and Other Investments for further discussion.

Fair Value Measurements

Certain amounts included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented at “fair value.” Fair value is defined as the price
that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the date fair value is
determined (the “measurement date”). When determining fair value, we consider the principal or most advantageous market in which we would transact,
and we consider only those assumptions we believe a typical market participant would consider when pricing an asset or liability. In measuring fair value,
we use the following inputs in the order of priority indicated:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1, such as (i) quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities; (ii) quoted prices in markets that have insufficient volume or infrequent transactions (e.g., less active markets); and (iii) model-driven valuations
in which all significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or corroborated with, observable market data for substantially the full
term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant to the fair value measurement.

The net carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and payables and short-term debt approximate fair value due to the
short-term nature of these instruments. See Note 9- Borrowings for a discussion of the fair value of long-term debt.

Certain other assets and liabilities, such as forward contracts and interest rate swap agreements we purchased as cash-flow hedges discussed
in Note 17- Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments and the Company's investment in Amentum ordinary shares
discussed in Note 14- Discontinued Operations are required to be carried in our Consolidated Financial Statements at Fair Value.

The fair value of the Company’s reporting units (when a quantitative impairment analysis is required for the purpose of determining whether
there is an impairment of the carrying value of goodwill) is determined using an income and market approach. Both approaches require us to make
certain estimates and judgments. Under the income approach, fair value is determined by using the discounted cash flows of our reporting units. Under
the market approach, the fair values of our reporting units are determined by reference to guideline companies that are reasonably comparable to our
reporting units; the fair values are estimated based on the valuation multiples of earnings before taxes, interest, depreciation and amortization
associated with the guideline companies. In assessing whether the carrying value of goodwill has been impaired, we utilize the results of both valuation
techniques and consider the range of fair values indicated.

With respect to equity-based compensation (i.e., share-based payments), we estimate the fair value of stock options granted to employees and
directors using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Like all option-pricing models, the Black-Scholes model requires the use of subjective
assumptions including (i) the expected volatility of the market price of the underlying stock, and (ii) the expected term of the award, among others.
Accordingly, changes in assumptions and any subsequent adjustments to those assumptions can cause different fair values to be assigned to our future
stock option awards. For restricted stock awards (including restricted stock units) containing service and performance conditions, fair value is based on
the closing stock price on the date of grant, adjusted for the expected level of achievement for any performance conditions.
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JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

The fair values of the assets owned by the various pension plans that the Company sponsors are determined based on the type of asset,
consistent with U.S. GAAP. Equity securities are valued by using market observable data such as quoted prices. Publicly traded corporate equity
securities are valued at the last reported sale price on the last business day of the year. Securities not traded on the last business day are valued at the
last reported bid price. Fixed income investment funds categorized as Level 2 are valued by the trustee using pricing models that use verifiable
observable market data (e.g., interest rates and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals), bids provided by brokers or dealers, or quoted
prices of securities with similar characteristics. Real estate consists primarily of common or collective trusts, with underlying investments in real estate.
These investments are valued using the best information available, including quoted market price, market prices for similar assets when available,
internal cash flow estimates discounted at an appropriate interest rate, or independent appraisals, as appropriate. Management values insurance
contracts and hedge funds using actuarial assumptions and certain values reported by fund managers.

Fair value measurements relating to our business combinations are made primarily using Level 3 inputs including discounted cash flow and to
the extent applicable, Monte Carlo simulation techniques. Fair value for the identified intangible assets is generally estimated using inputs primarily for
the income approach using the multiple period excess earnings method and the relief from royalties method. The significant assumptions used in
estimating fair value include (i) revenue projections of the business, including profitability, (ii) attrition rates and (iii) the estimated discount rate that
reflects the level of risk associated with receiving future cash flows. Other personal property assets, such as furniture, fixtures and equipment, are valued
using the cost approach, which is based on replacement or reproduction costs of the asset less depreciation. The fair value of the contingent
consideration is estimated using a Monte Carlo simulation and the significant assumptions used include projections of revenues and probabilities of
meeting those projections. Key inputs to the valuation of the noncontrolling interests include projected cash flows and the expected volatility associated
with those cash flows.

The fair values for the asset groups relating to the impairment assessment of long-lived assets (see Note 10- Leases) were estimated primarily
using discounted cash flow models (income approach) with Level 3 inputs. The significant assumptions used in estimating fair value include the expected
downtime prior to the commencement of future subleases, projected sublease income over the remaining lease periods and discount rates that reflects
the level of risk associated with receiving future cash flows.

The methodologies described above and elsewhere in these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements may produce a fair value measure that
may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Company believes Level 3 valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain
financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement.

Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with original maturities of less than three months to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents at
September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 consisted primarily of money market mutual funds and overnight bank deposits.

Receivables, Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities

Receivables include amounts billed, net and unbilled receivables. Amounts billed, net consist of amounts invoiced to clients in accordance with
the terms of our client contracts and are shown net of an allowance for expected credit losses. We anticipate that substantially all of such billed amounts
will be collected over the next twelve months.

Unbilled receivables and other, which represent an unconditional right to payment subject only to the passage of time in connection with our
client contracts, are reclassified to amounts billed when they are billed under the terms of the contract. We anticipate that substantially all of such
unbilled amounts will be billed and collected over the next twelve months.

Contract assets represent unbilled amounts where the right to payment is subject to more than merely the passage of time and includes

performance-based incentives and services provided ahead of agreed contractual milestones. Contract assets are transferred to unbilled receivables
when the right to consideration becomes unconditional and are transferred to amounts billed upon invoicing.
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Contract liabilities represent amounts billed to clients in excess of revenue recognized to date. Amounts will be earned based on achievement of
deliverables.

Property, equipment and improvements are carried at cost, and are shown net of accumulated depreciation and amortization in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Depreciation and amortization are computed primarily by using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The cost of leasehold improvements is amortized using the straight-line method over the lesser of the estimated useful life of
the asset or the remaining term of the related lease. Estimated useful lives are 40 years for buildings and range from 3 to 10 years for equipment and
from 1 to 13 years for leasehold improvements.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired business over the fair value of the net tangible and intangible assets acquired.
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized; instead, on an annual basis we test goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
lives for possible impairment. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of those assets.

For purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is assigned to the applicable reporting units based on the current reporting structure. We have
determined that our operating segments are also our reporting units based on management'’s conclusion that the components comprising each of our
operating segments share similar economic characteristics and meet the aggregation criteria in accordance with ASC 350.

We perform our annual goodwill impairment assessment as of the first day of the fourth fiscal quarter each year. We begin with the qualitative
assessment of whether it is more likely than not that a reporting unit’s fair value is less than its carrying value before applying the quantitative
assessment described below. If it is determined through the evaluation of events or circumstances that the carrying value may not be recoverable, the
Company then compares the fair value of the related reporting unit with its carrying amount. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair
value, an impairment loss is recognized. For the 2025 fiscal year, we determined that the fair values of reporting units significantly exceeded their
carrying values and an analysis beyond the qualitative level was not considered necessary.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Our long-lived assets other than goodwill principally consist of right-of-use (ROU) lease assets, property, equipment and improvements, and
finite-lived intangible assets. These long-lived assets are evaluated for impairment for each of our asset groups in accordance with ASC 360 by first
identifying whether indicators of impairment exist. If such indicators are present, we assess long-lived asset groups for recoverability based on estimated
future undiscounted cash flows. For asset groups where the recoverability test fails, the fair value of each asset group is then estimated and compared to
its carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which an asset group’s carrying value exceeds its fair value.

Foreign Currencies

In preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements, it is necessary to translate the financial statements of our subsidiaries operating outside the
U.S., which are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, into the U.S. dollar. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, revenues and expenses of
operations outside the U.S. are translated into U.S. dollars using weighted-average exchange rates for the applicable periods being translated while the
assets and liabilities of operations outside the U.S. are generally translated into U.S. dollars using period-end exchange rates. The net effect of foreign
currency translation adjustments is included in stockholders’ equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Share-Based Payments

We measure the value of services received from employees and directors in exchange for an award of an equity instrument based on the grant-
date fair value of the award. The fair value is recognized as a non-cash cost on a straight-line basis over the period the individual provides services,
which is typically the vesting period of the award with the exception of awards containing an internal performance measure, such as Earnings Per Share
growth and Return on Invested Capital, which is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period subject to the probability of meeting the
performance requirements and adjusted for the number of shares expected to be earned. The cost of these awards is recorded in selling, general and
administrative expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Earnings.
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Concentrations of Credit Risk

Our cash balances and cash equivalents are maintained in accounts held by major banks and financial institutions located in North America,
South America, Europe, the Middle East, India, Australia, Africa and Asia. In the normal course of business, and consistent with industry practices, we
grant credit to our clients without requiring collateral. Concentrations of credit risk is the risk that, if we extend a significant amount of credit to clients in a
specific geographic area or industry, we may experience disproportionately high levels of default if those clients are adversely affected by factors
particular to their geographic area or industry. Concentrations of credit risk relative to trade receivables are limited due to our diverse client base, which
includes the U.S. federal government and multi-national corporations operating in a broad range of industries and geographic areas. Additionally, in order
to mitigate credit risk, we continually evaluate the credit worthiness of our major commercial clients.

Leases

The Company accounts for its leases in accordance with ASC 842, Leases ("ASC 842"). ASC 842 requires lessees to recognize assets and
liabilities for most leases. The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at contract inception. A lease exists when a contract conveys to the
customer the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The definition of a lease embodies two
conditions: (1) there is an identified asset in the contract, and (2) the customer has the right to control the use of the identified asset. Lessees are
required to classify leases as either finance or operating leases. This classification will determine whether lease expense is recognized based on an
effective interest method or on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The Company'’s right-of use assets and lease liabilities relate to real estate, project assets used in connection with long-term construction
contracts, IT assets and vehicles. The Company’s leases have remaining lease terms of less than one year to eighteen years. The Company’s lease
obligations are primarily for the use of office space and are primarily operating leases. Certain of the Company’s leases contain renewal, extension, or
termination options. The Company assesses each option on an individual basis and will only include options reasonably certain of exercise in the lease
term. The Company generally considers the base term to be the term provided in the contract. None of the Company’s lease agreements contain
material options to purchase the leased property, material residual value guarantees, or material restrictions or covenants.

Long-term project asset and vehicle leases (leases with terms greater than twelve months), along with all real estate and IT asset leases, are
recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at the present value of the minimum lease payments not yet paid. Because the Company primarily acts as a
lessee and the rates implicit in its leases are not readily determinable, the Company generally uses its incremental borrowing rate on the lease
commencement date to calculate the present value of future lease payments. Certain leases include payments that are based solely on an index or rate.
These variable lease payments are included in the calculation of the ROU asset and lease liability and are initially measured using the index or rate at
the lease commencement date. Other variable lease payments, such as payments based on use and for property taxes, insurance, or common area
maintenance that are based on actual assessments are excluded from the ROU asset and lease liability and are expensed as incurred. In addition to the
present value of the future lease payments, the calculation of the ROU asset also includes any deferred rent, lease prepayments and initial direct costs
of obtaining the lease, such as commissions.

Certain lease contracts contain non-lease components such as maintenance and utilities. The Company has made an accounting policy election,
as allowed under ASC 842-10-15-37 and discussed above, to capitalize both the lease component and non-lease components of its contracts as a single
lease component for all of its right-of-use assets.

Short-term project asset and vehicle leases (project asset and vehicle leases with an initial term of twelve months or less or leases that are
cancellable by the lessee and lessor without significant penalties) are not recorded on the consolidated balance sheet and are expensed on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. The majority of the Company’s short-term leases relate to equipment used on construction projects. These leases are
entered into at agreed upon hourly, daily, weekly or monthly rental rates for an unspecified duration and typically have a termination for convenience
provision. Such equipment leases are considered short-term in nature unless it is reasonably certain that the equipment will be leased for a term greater
than twelve months.
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Pensions

We use certain assumptions and estimates in order to calculate periodic pension cost and the value of the assets and liabilities of our pension
plans. These assumptions involve discount rates, investment returns, and projected salary increases, among others. Changes in the actuarial
assumptions may have a material effect on the plans’ liabilities and the projected pension expense.

We use a corridor approach to amortize actuarial gains and losses. Under this approach, net gains or losses in excess of ten percent of the
larger of the pension benefit obligation or the market-related value of the assets are amortized on a straight-line basis. The period of amortization is the
average remaining service of active participants who are expected to receive benefits under certain plans and the average remaining future lifetime of
plan participants for certain plans.

We measure our defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the end of the month closest to their fiscal year end, which is September 26,
2025 as the alternative measurement date in accordance with FASB guidance ASU 2015-04, Compensation Retirement Benefit (Topic 715): Practical
Expedient for the Measurement Date of an Employer’s Defined Benefit Obligation and Plan Asset. This guidance allows employers with fiscal year ends
that do not coincide with a calendar month end to make an accounting policy election to measure defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the
end of the month closest to their fiscal year end.

Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests

In connection with the PA Consulting investment in March 2021, the Company recorded redeemable noncontrolling interests, representing the
interest holders' initial 35% equity interest in the form of preferred and common shares of PA Consulting. The preferred shares are entitled to a
cumulative annual compounding 12% dividend based on the outstanding preferred share subscription price. These noncontrolling interest holders have
certain option rights to put the preferred and common share interests back to the Company at a value based on the fair value of PA Consulting (the
redemption values). The primary inputs and assumptions impacting the fair value of PA Consulting include projections of revenue and earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization and discount rates applied thereto. Additionally, the Company has an option to call the interests for certain
individual shareholders in certain circumstances. Because the interests are redeemable at the option of the holders and not solely within the control of
the Company, the Company classified the interests in redeemable noncontrolling interests within its Consolidated Balance Sheet at their redemption
values. The optional redemption features may become exercisable no earlier than five years from the March 2, 2021 closing date, or upon the
occurrence of certain other events.

The Company has deemed these interests probable of becoming redeemable in the future and requiring their measurement at the greater of (i)
the redemption amount that would be paid if settlement occurred at the balance sheet date, or (ii) the historical value resulting from the original
acquisition date fair value plus the impact of any earnings or loss attribution amounts, including dividends. The fair value of the PA Consulting
redeemable noncontrolling interest is determined using a combination of the income and market approaches. Under the income approach, fair value is
determined by using the projected discounted cash flows of PA Consulting. Under the market approach, the fair value is determined by reference to
guideline companies that are reasonably comparable to PA Consulting; the fair value is estimated based on the valuation multiples of earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.

Further, to the extent redemption values exceed historical values of the interests, changes in redemption amounts are recognized as changes to
redeemable noncontrolling interests with an offsetting change in consolidated retained earnings. Additionally, particular to the preference share and in
certain circumstances the ordinary share components of redeemable noncontrolling interests, such changes in consolidated retained earnings could also
be reflected as a corresponding adjustment to net earnings attributable to Jacobs for purposes of the calculation of consolidated earnings per share
attributable to common shareholders.
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Income Taxes

We determine our consolidated income tax expense using the asset and liability method prescribed by U.S. GAAP. Under this method, deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and income tax purposes. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted, as appropriate, to reflect changes in tax rates expected to be in
effect when the temporary differences reverse. If and when we determine that a deferred tax asset will not be realized for its full amount, we will
recognize and record a valuation allowance with a corresponding charge to earnings. Judgment is required in determining our provision for income
taxes. In the normal course of business, we may engage in numerous transactions every day for which the ultimate tax outcome (including the period in
which the transaction will ultimately be included in taxable income or deducted as an expense) is uncertain. Additionally, we file income, franchise, gross
receipts and similar tax returns in many jurisdictions. Our tax returns are subject to audit and investigation by the Internal Revenue Service, most states
in the U.S., and by various government agencies representing many jurisdictions outside the U.S.

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (the "Tax Act") contains a provision which subjects a U.S. parent of a foreign subsidiary to current U.S. tax on
its global intangible low—taxed income (“GILTI”). The GILTI income is eligible for a deduction, which lowers the effective tax rate of GILTI to 10.5% for
calendar years 2018 through 2025 and 13.125% after 2025. The Company will report the tax impact of GILTI as a period cost when incurred.
Accordingly, the Company is not providing deferred taxes for basis differences expected to reverse as GILTI.

Contractual Guarantees, Litigation, Investigations and Insurance

In the normal course of business, we are subject to certain contractual guarantees and litigation. We record in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
amounts representing our estimated liability relating to such guarantees, litigation and insurance claims. Guarantees are accounted for in accordance
with ASC 460-10, Guarantees, at fair value at the inception of the guarantee. We perform an analysis to determine the level of reserves to establish for
both insurance-related claims that are known and have been asserted against us as well as for insurance-related claims that are believed to have been
incurred based on actuarial analysis but have not yet been reported to our claims administrators as of the respective balance sheet dates. We include
any adjustments to such insurance reserves in our Consolidated Statements of Earnings. In addition, as a contractor providing services to various
agencies of the U.S. federal government, we are subject to many levels of audits, investigations, and claims by, or on behalf of, the U.S. federal
government with respect to contract performance, pricing, costs, cost allocations and procurement practices. We adjust revenues based upon the
amounts we expect to realize considering the effects of any client audits or governmental investigations.

Business Combinations

U.S. GAAP requires that the purchase price paid for business combinations accounted for using the acquisition method be allocated to the
assets and liabilities acquired based on their respective fair values. The Company makes certain estimates and judgments relating to other assets and
liabilities acquired as well as any identifiable intangible assets acquired.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to employ estimates and make assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities; the revenues and expenses reported for the periods covered by the financial statements; and certain
amounts disclosed in these Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Although such estimates and assumptions are based on management’s
most recent assessment of the underlying facts and circumstances utilizing the most current information available and past experience, actual results
could differ significantly from those estimates and assumptions. Our estimates, judgments and assumptions are evaluated periodically and adjusted
accordingly.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

ASU 2025-05, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses, (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses for Accounts Receivable and Contract Assets,
provides all entities with a practical expedient option when estimating expected credit losses for current accounts receivable and current contract assets
arising from transactions accounted for under Topic 606. The amendments in this update are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2025, including interim periods within those annual periods, with early adoption permitted. ASU 2025-05 will be effective for the Company
in first quarter of fiscal 2027. The Company is evaluating the impact of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

ASU 2025-03, Business Combinations, (Topic 805) and Consolidation (Topic 810): Determining the Accounting Acquirer in the Acquisition of a
Variable Interest Entity, clarifies the guidance in determining the accounting acquirer in a business combination effected primarily by exchanging equity
interests when the acquiree is a variable interest entity that meets the definition of a business. The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2026, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted, and the standard is to be applied prospectively to
acquisitions after the adoption date. ASU 2025-03 will be effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2028. The Company is evaluating the
impact of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

ASU 2024-03, Income Statement, (Subtopic 220-40): Reporting Comprehensive Income - Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses,
requires disclosure, in the notes to financial statements, of specified information about certain costs and expenses. The amendments in this update also
provide guidance on the disaggregation disclosure requirements for certain expense captions presented on the face of an entity’s income statement and
provide guidance on the disclosure of selling expenses. The amendments in ASU 2024-03 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2026, and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2027, with early adoption permitted. The amendments should be
applied prospectively; however, retrospective application is also permitted. ASU 2024-03 will be effective for the Company in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2027. The Company is evaluating the impact of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes, (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, provides qualitative and quantitative updates to the
Company's effective income tax rate reconciliation and income taxes paid disclosures, among others, in order to enhance the transparency of income tax
disclosures, including consistent categories and greater disaggregation of information in the rate reconciliation and disaggregation by jurisdiction of
income taxes paid. The amendments in ASU 2023-09 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted.
The amendments should be applied prospectively; however, retrospective application is also permitted. ASU 2023-09 will be effective for the Company's
annual fiscal 2026 period. The Company is evaluating the impact of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

ASU 2023-07, Segment Reporting, (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, requires disclosure of significant segment
expenses that are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) and included within each reported measure of segment profit or
loss, an amount and description of its composition for other segment items to reconcile to segment profit or loss, and the title and position of the entity’s
CODM. The amendments in this update also expand the interim segment disclosure requirements. ASU 2023-07 is effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted and the
amendments in this update are required to be applied on a retrospective basis. ASU 2023-07 was effective for the Company's annual fiscal 2025 period.
The Company adopted this update effective for the fiscal year ended September 26, 2025.

ASU 2023-06, Disclosure Improvements: Amendments - Codification Amendments in Response to the Disclosure Update and Simplification
Initiative of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued the standard to introduce changes to
US GAAP that originate in either SEC Regulation S-X or S-K, which are rules about the form and content of financial reports filed with the SEC. The
provisions of the standard are contingent upon instances where the SEC removes the related disclosure provisions from Regulation S-X and S-K. ASU
2023-06 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The amendments should be applied prospectively;
however, retrospective application is also permitted. ASU 2023-06 will be effective for the company in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2026. The Company
does not expect that the application of this standard will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

F-19



JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

3. Revenue Accounting for Contracts
Disaggregation of Revenues

Our revenues are principally derived from contracts to provide a diverse range of technical, professional, and construction services to a large
number of industrial, commercial, and governmental clients. We provide a broad range of engineering, design, and architectural services; construction
and construction management services; operations and maintenance services; and technical, digital, process, scientific and systems consulting services.
We provide our services through offices and subsidiaries located primarily in North America, Europe, the Middle East, India, Australia, Africa, and Asia.
We provide our services under cost-reimbursable and fixed-price contracts. Our contracts are with many different customers in numerous industries.
Refer to Note 19- Segment Information for additional information on how we disaggregate our revenues by reportable segment.

The following table further disaggregates our revenue by geographic area for the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and
September 29, 2023 (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023

Revenues:
United States $ 7,415,464 $ 7,178,610 $ 6,511,371
Europe 2,871,566 2,689,298 2,704,684
Canada 248,118 261,682 266,926
Asia 144,944 132,658 133,670
India 180,124 152,591 164,212
Australia and New Zealand 573,237 549,571 558,096
Middle East and Africa 596,330 536,531 512,461

Total $ 12,029,783 $ 11,500,941 $ 10,851,420

The following table presents the revenues earned directly or indirectly from the U.S. federal government and its agencies, expressed as a
percentage of total revenues:

For the Years Ended
September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
8% 10% 9%

Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities represent amounts billed to clients in excess of revenue recognized to date. Revenue recognized for the year ended
September 26, 2025 that was previously included in the contract liability balance on September 27, 2024 was $728 million. Revenue recognized for the
year ended September 27, 2024 that was previously included in the contract liability balance on September 29, 2023 was $521 million.

Remaining Performance Obligations

The Company’s remaining performance obligations as of September 26, 2025 represent a measure of the total dollar value of work to be
performed on contracts awarded and in progress. The Company had approximately $15.7 billion in remaining performance obligations as of
September 26, 2025. The Company expects to recognize 51% of our remaining performance obligations within the next twelve months and the
remaining 49% thereafter. The majority of the remaining performance obligations after the first twelve months are expected to be recognized over a four-
year period.

Although our remaining performance obligations reflect business volumes that are considered to be firm, normal business activities including
scope adjustments, deferrals or cancellations may occur that impact volume or expected timing of their recognition. Remaining performance obligations
are adjusted to reflect any known project cancellations, revisions to project scope and cost, foreign currency exchange fluctuations and project deferrals,
as appropriate.
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4. Earnings Per Share and Certain Related Information

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) are computed using the two-class method, which is an earnings allocation method that determines
EPS for common shares and participating securities. The undistributed earnings are allocated between common shares and participating securities as if
all earnings had been distributed during the period. Participating securities and common shares have equal rights to undistributed earnings. Net earnings
used for the purpose of determining basic and diluted EPS is determined by taking net earnings, less earnings available to participating securities and
the redeemable noncontrolling interests redemption value adjustment associated with the PA Consulting investment.
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The following table reconciles the numerator and denominator used to compute basic EPS to the denominator used to compute diluted EPS for
the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (in thousands):
For the Years Ended
September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023

Numerator for Basic and Diluted EPS:

Net earnings attributable to Jacobs from continuing operations $ 313,302 $ 612,804 $ 379,125
Redeemable Noncontrolling interests redemption value adjustment
(See Note 15- PA Consulting Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests) 912 (10,274) 8,340
Net earnings from continuing operations allocated to common
stock for EPS calculation $ 314,214 § 602,530 $ 387,465
Net (loss) earnings from discontinued operations allocated to
common stock for EPS calculation $ (23,966) $ 193,289 $ 286,652
Net earnings allocated to common stock for EPS calculation $ 290,248 $ 795,819 § 674,117

Denominator for Basic and Diluted EPS:

Shares used for calculating basic EPS attributable to common
stock 121,468 125,324 126,607

Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock compensation plans 464 557 607
Shares used for calculating diluted EPS attributable to common
stock 121,932 125,881 127,214

Net Earnings Per Share:

Basic Net Earnings from Continuing Operations Per Share $ 259 §$ 481 §$ 3.06
Basic Net (Loss) Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share ~ $ (0.20) $ 154 § 2.26
Basic Earnings Per Share: $ 239 $ 6.35 § 5.32
Diluted Net Earnings from Continuing Operations Per Share $ 258 $ 479 $ 3.05
Diluted Net (Loss) Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share $ (0.20) $ 154 $ 2.25
Diluted Earnings Per Share: $ 238 $ 632 $ 5.30

Note: Earnings per share amounts may not add due to rounding

Share Repurchases

On January 16, 2020, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of up to $1.0 billion of the Company's common
stock (the "2020 Repurchase Authorization"). The 2020 Repurchase Authorization expired on January 15, 2023. On January 25, 2023, the Company's
Board of Directors authorized an incremental share repurchase program of up to $1.0 billion of the Company's common stock, which would expire on
January 25, 2026 (the "2023 Repurchase Authorization"). By the end of the second fiscal quarter of 2025, the Company had repurchased the full amount
of common stock authorized under the 2023 Repurchase Authorization.
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On January 30, 2025, the Company's Board of Directors authorized an incremental share repurchase program of up to $1.5 billion of the
Company's common stock, to expire on January 30, 2028 (the "2025 Repurchase Authorization"). At September 26, 2025, the Company had $1.2 billion
remaining under the 2025 Repurchase Authorization.

The following table summarizes repurchase activity under the 2020 Repurchase Authorization during fiscal 2023 through expiration during the
second fiscal quarter of 2023:

Amount Authorized
(2020 Repurchase
Authorization) Average Price Per Share (1) Shares Repurchased Total Shares Retired

$1,000,000,000 $113.56 1,237,688 1,237,688

(1) Includes commissions paid and excise tax due under the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 and calculated at the average price per share.

The following table summarizes the activity under the 2023 Repurchase Authorization during fiscal 2025:

Amount Authorized
(2023 Repurchase
Authorization) Average Price Per Share (1) Shares Repurchased Total Shares Retired

$1,000,000,000 $133.51 3,570,275 3,570,275

(1) Includes commissions paid and excise tax due under the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 and calculated at the average price per share.

The following table summarizes the activity under the 2025 Repurchase Authorization during fiscal 2025:

Amount Authorized
(2025 Repurchase
Authorization) Average Price Per Share (1) Shares Repurchased Total Shares Retired

$1,500,000,000 $131.05 2,117,350 2,117,350

(1) Includes commissions paid and excise tax due under the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 and calculated at the average price per share.

Our share repurchase programs do not obligate the Company to purchase any shares. Share repurchases may be executed through various
means including, without limitation, accelerated share repurchases, open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions, purchases pursuant to a
Rule 10b5-1 plan or otherwise. The authorization for the share repurchase programs may be terminated, increased or decreased by the Company’s
Board of Directors in its discretion at any time. The timing, amount and manner of share repurchases may depend upon market conditions and economic
circumstances, availability of investment opportunities, the availability and costs of financing, currency fluctuations, the market price of the Company's
common stock, other uses of capital and other factors.

Common and Preferred Stock

Jacobs is authorized to issue two classes of capital stock designated “common stock” and “preferred stock” (each has a par value of $1.00 per
share). The preferred stock may be issued in one or more series. The number of shares to be included in a series as well as each series’ designation,
relative powers, dividend and other preferences, rights and qualifications, redemption provisions and restrictions are to be fixed by the Company’s Board
of Directors at the time each series is issued. Except as may be provided by the Company’s Board of Directors in a preferred stock designation, or
otherwise provided for by statute, the holders of shares of common stock have the exclusive right to vote for the election of directors and on all other
matters requiring stockholder action. The holders of shares of common stock are entitled to dividends if and when declared by the Company’s Board of
Directors from whatever assets are legally available for that purpose.

Dividends

On November 18, 2025, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.32 per share of the Company’s common stock,
which will be paid on December 19, 2025, to shareholders of record on the close of business on December 2, 2025. Future dividend declarations are
subject to review and approval by the Company’s Board of Directors.
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Dividends paid through September 26, 2025 and the preceding fiscal year are as follows:

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date Cash Amount (per share)
July 31, 2025 August 22, 2025 September 19, 2025 $0.32
April 30, 2025 May 23, 2025 June 20, 2025 $0.32
January 30, 2025 February 21, 2025 March 21, 2025 $0.32
September 26, 2024 October 25, 2024 November 22, 2024 $0.29
July 11, 2024 July 26, 2024 August 23, 2024 $0.29
May 2, 2024 May 24, 2024 June 21, 2024 $0.29
January 25, 2024 February 23, 2024 March 22, 2024 $0.29
September 28, 2023 October 27, 2023 November 9, 2023 $0.26
5. Goodwill and Intangibles

The carrying value of goodwill associated with continuing operations and appearing in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets
September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 was as follows (in thousands):

Infrastructure &

Advanced Facilities PA Consulting Total
Balance September 27, 2024 $ 3,362,760 $ 1,425,421 $ 4,788,181
Foreign currency translation and other (11,270) 3,907 (7,363)
Balance September 26, 2025 $ 3,351,490 $ 1,429,328 $ 4,780,818

The following table provides certain information related to the Company’s acquired intangibles in the accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets for the year ended September 26, 2025 (in thousands):

Customer
Relationships,
Contracts and Developed
Backlog Technology Trade Names Total
Balances, September 27, 2024 $ 651,894 $ 31,515 § 191,485 $ 874,894
Amortization (128,811) (11,985) (14,721) (155,517)
Foreign currency translation and other (1,808) (6) 107 (1,707)
Balances, September 26, 2025 $ 521,275 $ 19,524  § 176,871  $ 717,670
Weighted Average Amortization Period (years) 6 4 15 8

The weighted average amortization period includes the effects of foreign currency translation.

The following table presents estimated amortization expense of intangible assets for fiscal 2026 and for the succeeding years.

Fiscal Year (in millions)
2026 $ 139.0
2027 109.0
2028 98.6
2029 98.6
2030 76.3
Thereafter 196.2

Total $ 717.7

6. Other Financial Information
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Receivables and Contract Assets

The following table presents the components of receivables and contract assets appearing in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at
September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 as well as certain other related information (in thousands):

September 26, 2025

September 27, 2024

Amounts billed, net $ 1,386,253 $ 1,278,980
Unbilled receivables and other 1,115,286 1,132,980
Contract assets 487,528 433,492
Total receivables and contract assets, net $ 2,989,067 $ 2,845,452

Property, Equipment and Improvements, Net

The following table presents the components of our property, equipment and improvements, net at September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024

(in thousands):

September 26, 2025

September 27, 2024

Land $ — 3 69
Buildings 43,792 45,747
Equipment 742,145 702,680
Leasehold improvements 174,497 165,043
Construction in progress 8,754 7,183
969,188 920,722

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (657,316) (605,092)
$ 311,872  $ 315,630

The following table presents our property, equipment and improvements, net by geographic area for the years ended September 26, 2025 and

September 27, 2024 (in thousands):

September 26, 2025

September 27, 2024

United States $ 142,289 $ 149,843
Europe 121,359 116,957
Canada 5,600 5,387
Asia 4,249 3,686
India 10,561 10,127
Australia and New Zealand 18,904 21,912
Middle East and Africa 8,910 7,718

Total $ 311,872 § 315,630

Accrued Liabilities

The following table presents the components of accrued liabilities shown in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 26,

2025 and September 27, 2024 (in thousands):

September 26, 2025

September 27, 2024

Accrued payroll and related liabilities $ 656,641 $ 654,295
Accrued professional liability and other 221,534 206,402
Income, sales and other tax accruals 113,795 134,990
Insurance liabilities 43,346 54,592
Dividends payable 2,438 37,485
Total $ 1,037,754 $ 1,087,764
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following table presents the Company's roll forward of accumulated income (loss) after-tax for the years ended September 26, 2025 and

September 27, 2024 (in thousands):

Change in Pension Foreign Currency (Loss)/Gain on
and Retiree Medical Translation Cash Flow Hedges
Plan Liabilities Adjustment (1) (2) Total
Balance at September 29, 2023 $ (325,692) $ (635,937) $ 103,675 $ (857,954)
Other comprehensive (loss) income (45,190) 211,702 (8,166) 158,346
Reclassifications from other comprehensive income
(loss) 192 — (54,506) (54,314)
Distribution of SpinCo Business (247) 54,719 — 54,472
Balance at September 27, 2024 $ (370,937) $ (369,516) $ 41,003 $ (699,450)
Other comprehensive (loss) income (2,198) (4,453) 3,327 (3,324)
Reclassifications from other comprehensive income
(loss) 225 — (7,861) (7,636)
Balance at September 26, 2025 $ (372,910) $ (373,969) $ 36,469 § (710,410)
(1) Included in the overall foreign currency translation adjustment for the years ended September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 is $(1.0) million and $(8.9) million,
respectively, in unrealized losses on long-term foreign currency denominated intercompany loans not anticipated to be settled in the foreseeable future.
(2) Included in the Company’s cumulative net unrealized gains from interest rate swaps recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of September 26, 2025 and

September 27, 2024 were approximately $6.2 million and $5.9 million, respectively in unrealized gains, net of taxes, which are expected to be realized in earnings during

the twelve months subsequent to September 26, 2025.

7. Income Taxes

The following table presents the components of our consolidated income taxes for continuing operations for years ended September 26, 2025,

September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (in thousands):
For the Years Ended

September 26,
2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Current income tax expense from continuing operations:
Federal $ 135,862 $ 102,702 $ 13,852
State 40,445 46,881 16,825
Foreign 138,015 100,421 142,177
Total current tax expense from continuing operations $ 314,322 $ 250,004 $ 172,854
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense from continuing operations:
Federal $ (71,540) $ (99,686) $ (28,779)
State (21,809) (32,068) 4,534
Foreign (5,418) 13,243 (47,273)
Total deferred tax benefit from continuing operations $ (98,767) $ (118,511) $ (71,518)
Consolidated income tax expense from continuing operations $ 215,555 §$ 131,493 $ 101,336

Deferred taxes reflect the tax effects of temporary differences between the amounts recorded as assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the comparable amounts recorded for income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates

and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.
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The following table presents the components of our net deferred tax (liabilities) assets at September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 (in
thousands):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 (1)
Deferred tax assets:
Other employee benefit plans $ 112,906 $ 110,377
Net operating losses 207,377 259,335
Foreign tax credit 38,989 42,394
Lease liability 78,386 93,488
Capitalized research costs 184,394 112,652
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 11,244 11,891
Other 32,693 10,178
Valuation allowance (193,050) (217,397)
Gross deferred tax assets 472,939 422,918
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization (211,627) (243,234)
Lease right of use asset (37,078) (41,817)
Defined benefit pension plans (16,102) (4,540)
Hedge investments (12,259) (13,862)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (947) (12,598)
Other (20,933) (28,116)
Gross deferred tax liabilities (298,946) (344,167)
Net deferred tax assets $ 173,993 $ 78,751

(1) Prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current period presentation

Valuation allowances are recorded to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized based on an
assessment of positive and negative evidence, including estimates of future taxable income necessary to realize future deductible amounts. The
Company's total valuation allowances were $193.1 million and $217.4 million at September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024, respectively. This change
in the valuation allowances is primarily attributable to a $24.2 million decrease resulting from the expiration and other adjustments of certain net
operating losses and foreign tax credits and an offsetting elimination of their related valuation allowances.

At September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024, the Company's U.S. and international net operating loss carryforwards totaled $732.4 million
and $915.6 million, resulting in a net operating loss deferred tax asset of $207.4 million and $259.3 million, respectively. The Company's net operating
losses have various expiration periods between 2026 and indefinite periods. At September 26, 2025, the Company has foreign tax credit carryforwards
of $39.0 million (which has a partial valuation allowance of $22.4 million) with $5.8 million expected to expire in 2026 and the remaining by 2033.
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The following table reconciles total income tax expense from continuing operations using the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate to the
consolidated income tax expense for continuing operations shown in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the years ended

September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (dollars in thousands):

For the Years Ended

September 26, September 27, September 29,
2025 % 4 % 3 %

Statutory amount $ 114,130 21.0% $ 163,230 21.0% $ 109,405 21.0%
State taxes, net of the federal benefit 15,852 2.9 % 21,615 2.8 % 13,938 2.7 %
Exclusion of tax on non-controlling interests (880) (0.2)% (5,230) (0.7)% (5,461) (1.0)%
Foreign:

Difference in tax rates of foreign operations 11,458 2.1 % 17,891 2.3 % 4,583 0.9 %

Expense/(Benefit) from foreign valuation allowance

change 415 0.1 % (27,780) (3.6)% (1,305) (0.3)%

U.S. tax cost of foreign operations 76,014 14.0 % 72,887 9.4 % 68,662 13.2 %

Derecognition of deferred tax liabilities related to

investment in Australian partnership — — % (61,614) (7.9)% — — %

Other Includable Income 1,344 0.2 % 25,952 3.3% — — %

Tax differential on foreign earnings 89,231 16.4 % 27,336 3.5% 71,940 13.8 %

Foreign tax credits (48,885) (9.0)% (33,402) (4.3)% (36,180) (6.9)%
Tax Rate Change 98 — % (147) — % (9,913) (1.9)%
Valuation allowance 988 0.2 % 12,339 1.6 % (7,169) (1.4)%
Uncertain tax positions 11,153 21% (1,153) (0.1)% (38,844) (7.5)%
Other items:

Disallowed officer compensation 5,157 0.9 % 5,394 0.7 % 7,081 14 %

Research and Development Credit (35,637) (6.6)% (17,110) (2.2)% (2,133) (0.4)%

Non-Deductible Incentive Compensation 18,376 34 % 3,296 0.4 % 162 — %

Transaction Costs 675 0.1% 8,500 1.1 % 4 — %

Non-taxable mark-to-market Adjustment for

Amentum investment 51,989 9.6 % (39,255) (5.1)% — — %

Other items — net (6,692) (1.2)% (13,920) (1.8)% (1,494) (0.3)%

Total other items 33,868 6.2 % (53,095) (6.8)% 3,620 0.7 %

Income taxes from continuing operations $ 215,555 39.7% $ 131,493 169% $ 101,336 19.5 %

Note: Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

The following table presents the components of our consolidated earnings from continuing operations before taxes for the years ended
September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (in thousands):

United States earnings
Foreign earnings

For the Years Ended

September 26, 2025

September 27, 2024

September 29, 2023

129,611 333902 $ 115,509
413,866 443,384 405,466
543,477 $ 777,286 $ 520,975

We do not record a deferred tax liability for unremitted earnings of our foreign subsidiaries to the extent that the earnings meet the indefinite
reversal criteria. The decision as to the amount of unremitted earnings that we intend to maintain in non-U.S. subsidiaries considers items including, but
not limited to, forecasts and budgets of financial needs of cash for working capital, liquidity plans, and expected cash requirements in the U.S. As of
September 26, 2025, we had not recognized a deferred tax liability on approximately $191.1 million of undistributed earnings for certain foreign
subsidiaries, because these earnings are intended to be indefinitely reinvested. If such earnings were distributed, some countries may impose additional

taxes.
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On July 4, 2025, H.R. 1, also referred to as the “One Big Beautiful Bill Act” (‘OBBBA”), was enacted in the U.S. The OBBBA includes significant
provisions, such as the permanent extension of certain expiring provisions of the Tax Act, modifications to the international tax framework and pre-Tax
Act treatment for certain business provisions. ASC 740, Income Taxes, requires the effects of changes in tax rates and laws on deferred tax balances to
be recognized in the period in which the legislation is enacted. The OBBBA has multiple effective dates, with certain provisions effective in 2025 and
others implemented through 2027. The most relevant impact to the Company for fiscal 2025 is the 100% bonus depreciation for qualified property placed
in service after January 19, 2025. The Company is currently assessing its impact on the consolidated financial statements for the provisions that will be
effective in future periods.

In December 2021, the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development ("OEC") released the Pillar Two Model Rules (also referred to
as the global minimum tax or Global Anti-Base Erosion ("GloBE") rules), which were designed to ensure large multinational enterprises pay a minimum
15 percent level of tax on the income arising in each jurisdiction in which they operate. Several jurisdictions in which we operate have enacted these
rules, which were effective for the fiscal year ended September 26, 2025. The Company is continually monitoring developments and evaluating the
potential impacts. At this time, implementation of these rules has not generated a material impact on consolidated income taxes.

The Company accounts for unrecognized tax benefits in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes. It accounts for interest and penalties on
unrecognized tax benefits as interest and penalties reported above the line (i.e., not as part of income tax expense). The primary driver of the current
year increase relates to uncertain tax positions on research and development credits and accrued liabilities, which is partially offset by the release of
uncertain tax positions for which the statute of limitations expired or resolved through settlement during FY25. At September 26, 2025 and
September 27, 2024, if recognized, $41.1 million and $27.1 million, respectively, would affect the Company’s consolidated effective income tax rate. The
Company had $26.7 million and $22.6 million in accrued interest and penalties at September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024, respectively. The
Company estimates that, within twelve months, we may realize a decrease in our uncertain tax positions of approximately $6.6 million as a result of
concluding various tax audits and closing tax years.

The amount of income taxes the Company pays is subject to ongoing audits by tax jurisdictions around the world. In the normal course of
business, the Company is subject to examination by taxing authorities worldwide, including such major jurisdictions as Australia, Canada, India, the
United Kingdom, and the United States. As of September 26, 2025, the Company has certain U.S. tax returns open to audit in 2019 and 2021 through
2024. For jurisdictions outside the U.S., primarily UK and Australia, various tax returns remain open for audit for the years 2018 through 2024. Although
the Company believes the reserves established for the tax positions are reasonable, the outcome of tax audits could be materially different, both
favorably and unfavorably.

The following table presents the reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits, for continuing operations, for
the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (in thousands):

For the Years Ended

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Balance, beginning of year $ 32,886 $ 32319 §$ 82,446
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 8,966 6,572 1,190
Additions for tax positions of prior years 14,910 5,750 2,537
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (2,941) (272) (52,046)
Lapse in statute of limitations (1,471) (11,483) (1,808)
Settlements — — —
Balance, end of year $ 52,350 $ 32,886 $ 32,319
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8. Joint Ventures, VIEs and Other Investments

For consolidated joint ventures, the entire amount of the revenue recognized for services performed and the costs associated with these
services, including the services provided by the other joint venture partners, are included in the Company's results of operations. Likewise, the entire
amount of each of the assets and liabilities are included in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. There are no consolidated VIEs that have debt or
credit facilities. Summary financial information of consolidated VIEs is as follows (in millions):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024

Current assets $ 163.4 $ 161.9

Total assets $ 1634 $ 161.9

Current liabilities $ 1447 $ 122.7

Total liabilities $ 1447 $ 122.7

For the Years Ended
September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023

Revenue $ 4019 $ 4720 $ 485.5
Direct cost of contracts (392.4) (431.2) (443.1)
Gross profit $ 95 $ 408 $ 42.4
Net earnings $ 95 § 408 $ 42.4

Unconsolidated joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method or proportionate consolidation. Proportionate consolidation is used for
joint ventures that include unincorporated legal entities and activities of the joint venture are construction-related. For those joint ventures accounted for
under proportionate consolidation, only the Company’s pro rata share of assets, liabilities, revenue, and costs are included in the Company’s balance
sheet and results of operations.

For the proportionate consolidated VIEs, the carrying value of assets and liabilities was $143.9 million and $131.9 million as of September 26,
2025, respectively, and $138.8 million and $138.0 million as of September 27, 2024, respectively. For those joint ventures accounted for under the equity
method, the Company's investment balances for the joint venture is included in other noncurrent assets: miscellaneous on the balance sheet and the
Company’s pro rata share of net income is included in revenue. In limited cases, there are basis differences between the equity in the joint venture and
Jacobs' investment created when Jacobs purchased their share of the joint venture. These basis differences are amortized based on an internal
allocation to underlying net assets, excluding allocations to goodwill. Our investments in equity method joint ventures on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets as of September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 were a net asset of $36.3 million and $36.6 million, respectively. During the years ended
September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024, and September 29, 2023, we recognized income from equity method joint ventures of $8.8 million, $11.9
million, and $3.1 million, respectively.

Accounts receivable from unconsolidated joint ventures accounted for under the equity method is $13.6 million and $12.3 million as of
September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024, respectively.
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9. Borrowings

The following table presents certain information regarding the Company’s long-term debt at September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024
(dollars in thousands):

Interest Rate Maturity September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024
Benchmark + applicable margin
Revolving Credit Facility 1) February 2028 $ 395,000 $ 140,000
Benchmark + applicable margin
2021 Term Loan Facility - USD Portion (2) February 2026 — 120,000
Benchmark + applicable margin
2021 Term Loan Facility - GBP Portion 2) September 2025 — 870,415
Benchmark + applicable margin
2025 Term Loan Facility - USD Portion 3) March 2027 200,000 —
Benchmark + applicable margin
2025 Term Loan Facility - GBP Portion (3) March 2027 550,261 —
Fixed-rate:
5.9% Bonds, due 2033 5.9% (4) March 2033 500,000 500,000
6.35% Bonds, due 2028 6.35% August 2028 600,000 600,000
Less: Current Portion (5) — (870,415)
Less: Deferred Financing Fees (8,805) (11,406)
Total Long-term debt, net $ 2,236,456 $ 1,348,594

O

®)

The U.S. dollar denominated borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at either a SOFR rate plus a margin of between 0.975% and 1.725% or a base
rate plus a margin of between 0% and 0.625% depending on the Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio or Debt Rating (each as defined in the Revolving Credit Facility
(defined below)). The interest rate under the Revolving Credit Agreement also incorporates a modest sustainability-linked pricing adjustment, which resulted in a favorable
interest rate adjustment to the Company in February 2025. The applicable SOFR rates, including applicable margins, at September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024
were approximately 5.37% and 6.64%. Borrowings denominated in British pounds bear interest at an adjusted SONIA rate plus a margin of between 0.908% and 1.658%.
There were no amounts drawn in British pounds as of September 26, 2025.

The U.S. dollar denominated borrowings under the 2021 Term Loan Facility bore interest at either a SOFR rate plus a margin of between 0.975% and 1.725% or a base
rate plus a margin of between 0% and 0.625% depending on the Company's Consolidated Leverage Ratio or Debit Rating (each as defined in the Amended and Restated
Term Loan Agreement (defined below)). The applicable SOFR rate, including applicable margins, for borrowings denominated in U.S. dollars at September 27, 2024 were
approximately 6.52%. Borrowings denominated in British pounds bore interest at an adjusted SONIA rate plus a margin of between 0.908% and 1.658%. which was
approximately 6.23% at September 27, 2024.

Borrowings under the 2025 Term Loan Facility will bear interest at either a SONIA rate or term SOFR rate plus a margin of between 0.975% and 1.60% or a base rate plus
a margin of between 0% and 0.50% depending on the Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio. The applicable SOFR and SONIA rates, including applicable margins, at
September 26, 2025 were approximately 5.42% for borrowings denominated in U.S. dollars and 4.97% for borrowings denominated in British pounds.

The interest rate payable on the 5.90% Bonds (as defined below) may be increased by an additional 12.5 basis points on each of September 1, 2028 and September 1,
2030, based on whether or not the Company achieves the key performance indicators set forth in the First Supplemental Indenture (as defined below). Each key
performance indicator is independent of the other. Therefore, we may achieve one, both, or neither.

Balance as of September 27, 2024 is associated with the September 1, 2025 scheduled maturity of the 2021 Term Loan Facility, which was reclassified from long-term
debt in September 2024 and subsequently extinguished before March 28, 2025.

We believe the carrying values of the Revolving Credit Facility and the 2025 Term Loan Facility approximates fair value based on the interest
rates and scheduled maturities applicable to the outstanding borrowings. At September 26, 2025, the fair value of the 5.9% Bonds and the 6.35% Bonds
is estimated to be $527.6 million and $633.3 million, respectively, based on Level 2 inputs. The fair value is determined by discounting future cash flows
using interest rates available for issuances with similar terms and average maturities.
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Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loans

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries maintain an unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”) established under a
third amended and restated credit agreement, dated February 6, 2023 (the "Revolving Credit Agreement"), among Jacobs and certain of its subsidiaries
as borrowers and a syndicate of U.S. and international banks and financial institutions. Amounts up to $2.25 billion in credit extensions under the
Revolving Credit Facility can be funded in U.S. dollars, British Sterling, Euros, Canadian dollars, Australian dollars, Swedish Krona, Singapore dollars
and other agreed upon alternative currencies. The Revolving Credit Agreement also provides for a financial letter of credit sub facility of $400.0 million,
permits performance letters of credit, and provides for a $100.0 million sub facility for swing line loans. Letters of credit are subject to fees based on the
Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio and Debt Rating, whichever is more favorable to the Company. The maturity date of the Revolving Credit
Facility is February 6, 2028. The Company is a guarantor of the obligations of JEGI and its subsidiaries under the Revolving Credit Agreement.

The Company and JEGI maintained an unsecured delayed draft term loan facility (the “2021 Term Loan Facility”) established under an amended
and restated term loan agreement dated February 6, 2023 (the "Amended and Restated Term Loan Agreement"), by and among the Company and JEGI
and a syndicate of banks and financial institutions. JEGI borrowed $200.0 million and £650.0 million of term loans under the 2021 Term Loan Facility
(reflecting scheduled maturities in February 2026 and September 2025, respectively) and the proceeds of such term loans were used primarily to fund
JEGI's investment in PA Consulting.

On March 13, 2025, the Company exchanged approximately 19.5 million shares of our investment in Amentum Holdings, Inc. for approximately
£239.8 million, or $311.5 million, in aggregate principal amount under the 2021 Term Loan Facility in an equity-for-debt transaction (the "Equity-for-Debt
Transaction"). The aggregate principal amount of debt was immediately extinguished, and the Company received no other consideration (cash or
otherwise) in connection with the exchange. For more information, please refer to Note 14- Discontinued Operations. In connection with the Equity-for-
Debt Transaction, $20.5 million in discounts and expenses were recognized as Loss on extinguishment of debt.

On March 27, 2025, the Company, as guarantor, and JEGI, as borrower, entered into a term loan agreement (the “2025 Term Loan Facility”) with
Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent and sole lead arranger, and the lenders party thereto. Under the 2025 Term Loan Facility, JEGI borrowed
a $200.0 million term loan and £410.0 million term loan for a term of two-years from the date of initial funding, maturing on March 26, 2027. The
proceeds from the 2025 Term Loan Facility were used to repay the remaining outstanding 2021 Term Loan Facility principal equal to $120.0 million and
£410.2 million, or $531.6 million, with the remaining proceeds used for general corporate purposes.

We were in compliance with the covenants under the Revolving Credit Facility and 2025 Term Loan Facility at September 26, 2025.

5.90% Bonds, due 2033

On February 16, 2023, JEGI completed an offering of $500 million aggregate principal amount of 5.90% Bonds due 2033 (the “5.90% Bonds”).
The 5.90% Bonds are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Company (the "5.90% Bond Guarantee”). The 5.90% Bonds and the 5.90% Bonds
Guarantee were offered pursuant to a prospectus supplement, dated February 13, 2023, to the prospectus dated February 6, 2023, that forms a part of
the Company's and JEGI’s automatic shelf registration statement on Form S-3ASR previously filed with the SEC, and were issued pursuant to an
Indenture, dated as of February 16, 2023, between JEGI, as issuer, the Company, as guarantor, and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as
trustee (the “Trustee”), as amended and supplemented by the First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 16, 2023 (the “First Supplemental
Indenture”). Interest on the 5.90% Bonds is payable semi-annually in arrears on each March 1 and September 1, until maturity. The 5.90% Bonds bear
interest at 5.9% per annum, subject to adjustments as discussed in note (4) to the table above.
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Prior to December 1, 2032 (the “5.90% Bonds Par Call Date”), JEGI may redeem the 5.90% Bonds at its option, in whole or in part, at any time
and from time to time, at the redemption price calculated by JEGI (expressed as a percentage of principal amount and rounded to three decimal places)
equal to the greater of: (1) (a) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the 5.90% Bonds being
redeemed, assuming that such 5.90% Bonds matured on the 5.90% Bonds Par Call Date, discounted to the redemption date on a semiannual basis
(assuming a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months), at the Treasury Rate (as defined in the First Supplemental Indenture) plus 35 basis points, less
(b) interest accrued to the redemption date, and (2) 100% of the principal amount of such 5.90% Bonds to be redeemed, plus, in either case, accrued
and unpaid interest on the 5.90% Bonds, if any, to, but excluding, the redemption date. At any time and from time to time on or after the 5.90% Bonds
Par Call Date, JEGI may redeem the 5.90% Bonds, at its option, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the
5.90% Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, up to, but excluding, the redemption date.

6.35% Bonds, due 2028

On August 18, 2023, JEGI completed an offering of $600 million aggregate principal amount of 6.35% Bonds due 2028 (the “6.35% Bonds”). The
6.35% Bonds are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Company (the “6.35% Bonds Guarantee”). The 6.35% Bonds and the 6.35% Bonds
Guarantee were offered pursuant to a prospectus supplement, dated August 15, 2023, to the prospectus dated February 6, 2023, that forms a part of the
Company and JEGI's automatic shelf registration statement on Form S-3ASR previously filed with the SEC, and were issued pursuant to the Indenture,
as amended and supplemented by the Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 18, 2023 (the “Second Supplemental Indenture”). Interest on
the 6.35% Bonds is payable semi-annually in arrears on each February 18 and August 18, until maturity. The Notes will bear interest at a rate of 6.35%
per annum and will mature on August 18, 2028. The 6.35% Bonds bear interest at 6.35% per annum.

Prior to July 18, 2028 (the “6.35% Bonds Par Call Date”), JEGI may redeem the 6.35% Bonds at its option, in whole or in part, at any time and
from time to time, at the redemption price calculated by JEGI (expressed as a percentage of principal amount and rounded to three decimal places)
equal to the greater of: (1) (a) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the 6.35% Bonds being
redeemed, assuming that such 6.35% Bonds matured on the 6.35% Bonds Par Call Date, discounted to the redemption date on a semiannual basis
(assuming a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months), at the Treasury Rate (as defined in the Second Supplemental Indenture) plus 30 basis points, less
(b) interest accrued to the redemption date, and (2) 100% of the principal amount of such 6.35% Bonds to be redeemed, plus, in either case, accrued
and unpaid interest on the 6.35% Bonds, if any, to, but excluding, the redemption date. At any time and from time to time on or after the 6.35% Bonds
Par Call Date, JEGI may redeem the 6.35% Bonds, at its option, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the
6.35% Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to, but excluding, the redemption date.

Other Arrangements

The Company has issued $0.3 million in letters of credit under the Revolving Credit Facility, leaving $1.85 billion of available borrowing capacity
under the Revolving Credit Facility at September 26, 2025. In addition, the Company had issued $216.7 million under separate, committed and
uncommitted letter-of-credit facilities for total issued letters of credit of $217.0 million at September 26, 2025.

During fiscal 2020, the Company entered into interest rate and cross currency derivative contracts to swap a portion of our variable rate debt to
fixed rate debt. See Note 17- Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments for discussion regarding the Company's outstanding
derivative instruments.

The following table presents the amount of interest paid by the Company during September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29,
2023 (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
$ 147,439 $ 201,199 §$ 207,604
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10. Leases

The components of lease expense (reflected in selling, general and administrative expenses) for the years ended September 26, 2025,
September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 were as follows (in thousands):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Lease cost
Operating lease cost $ 109,519 $ 112,088 $ 112,252
Variable lease cost 30,856 33,630 31,565
Sublease income (19,269) (19,002) (17,943)
Total lease cost $ 121,106 $ 126,716 $ 125,874

Supplemental information related to the Company's leases for the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29,
2023 was as follows (in thousands):

September 26, September 27, September 29,
2025 2024 2023
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurements of lease liabilities $ 146,341 $ 152,453 $ 151,455
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities $ 72,437 $ 48,727 $ 67,409
Weighted average remaining lease term - operating leases 5.5 years 5.6 years 6.0 years
Weighted average discount rate - operating leases 4.0% 3.6% 3.3%

Total remaining lease payments under the Company's leases for each of the succeeding years is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Operating Leases
2026 $ 131,121
2027 107,336
2028 88,078
2029 66,201
2030 48,862
Thereafter 86,572
528,170
Less Interest (54,769)
$ 473,401

As of September 26, 2025, we have entered into operating leases that have not yet commenced of approximately $24.2 million.

Right-of-Use and Other Long-Lived Asset Impairment

During fiscal 2023, as a result of the Company's transformation initiatives, including the changing nature of the Company's use of office space for
its workforce, the Company evaluated its existing real estate lease portfolio. These initiatives resulted in the abandonment of certain leased office spaces
and the establishment of a formal plan to sublease certain other leased spaces that will no longer be utilized by the Company. In connection with the
Company’s actions related to these initiatives, the Company evaluated certain of its lease right-of-use assets and related property, equipment and
leasehold improvements for impairment under ASC 360.

As a result of the analysis, the Company recognized impairment losses of $46.7 million for the fiscal year September 29, 2023, which are

included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying Statements of Earnings. The impairment losses recorded include
$40.9 million related to right-of-use lease assets and $5.8 million
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related to other long-lived assets, including property, equipment & improvements and leasehold improvements for the fiscal year ended September 29,
2023.

The fair values for the asset groups relating to the impaired long-lived assets were estimated primarily using discounted cash flow models
(income approach) with Level 3 inputs. The significant assumptions used in estimating fair value include the expected downtime prior to the
commencement of future subleases, projected sublease income over the remaining lease periods and discount rates that reflect the level of risk
associated with receiving future cash flows.

1. Employee Stock Purchase and Stock Incentive Plans

Employee Stock Purchase Plans

Under the Company's stock purchase plans, eligible employees who elect to participate in these plans are granted the right to purchase shares
of the common stock of Jacobs at a discount that is limited to 5% of the per-share market value on the day shares are sold to employees.

The following table summarizes the stock issuance activity under the plans for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024
and September 29, 2023:
For the Years Ended

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Aggregate Purchase Price Paid for Shares Sold (in
thousands) $ 33,583 $ 42,926 $ 40,195
Aggregate Number of Shares Sold 263,729 321,012 355,007

At September 26, 2025, there remains 1,935,700 shares reserved for issuance under the Company's stock purchase plans.

Stock Incentive Plans

We also sponsor the 2023 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the "2023 SIP") and the 1999 Outside Director Stock Plan, as
amended and restated (the "1999 ODSP") as well as the StreetlLight 2011 Stock Plan (the "StreetLight Plan"). The 2023 SIP provides for the issuance of
incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, share appreciation rights ("SARs"), restricted stock and restricted stock units to employees. The
1999 ODSP provides for awards of shares of common stock, restricted stock, restricted stock units and grants of non-qualified stock options to our
outside (i.e., nonemployee) directors. Together the 2023 SIP and 1999 ODSP plans are known as the "Stock Incentive Plans". The StreetLight Plan
provides for the issuance of incentive stock options, nonstatutory stock options and restricted stock to employees. The StreetLight Plan is frozen for new
awards effective February 4, 2022. The following table sets forth certain information about the Stock Incentive Plans:

2023 SIP 1999 ODSP Total
Number of shares authorized 29,850,000 1,100,000 30,950,000
Number of remaining shares reserved for issuance at September 26, 2025 3,229,104 99,833 3,328,937
Number of shares available for future awards:
At September 26, 2025 3,229,104 99,833 3,328,937
At September 27, 2024 3,161,188 112,794 3,273,982

Effective September 28, 2012 until January 23, 2023, all grants of shares under the predecessor to the 2023 SIP were issued on a fungible
basis. An award other than an option or SAR was granted on a 1.92-to-1.00 basis (“Fungible”). An award of an option or SAR is granted on a 1-to-1 basis
(“Not Fungible”). Effective January 24, 2023, at which time the 2023 SIP was adopted, all awards are granted on a 1-to-1 basis.
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In connection with the Separation Transaction, outstanding awards under the Stock Incentive Plans were converted into adjusted Jacobs
awards. The adjustment methodology was designed to preserve the value of the awards immediately before and after the Separation Transaction. The
outstanding Jacobs awards will continue to have the same terms and conditions. The modification to the awards did not result in material incremental
compensation expense.

At September 26, 2025, the amount of compensation cost relating to non-vested awards not yet recognized in the financial statements is
approximately $74.4 million. The majority of these unrecognized compensation costs will be recognized by the last quarter of fiscal 2027. The weighted
average remaining contractual term of options currently exercisable is 1.9 years.

Stock Options
The following table summarizes the stock option activity for the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29,
2023:
Weighted Average
Number of Stock Options Exercise Price

Outstanding at September 30, 2022 439,349 $ 35.77
Exercised (215,649) $ 40.61
Cancelled or expired (6,219) $ 19.73
Outstanding at September 29, 2023 217,481 $ 31.43
Exercised (132,898) $ 37.25
Cancelled or expired (7,608) $ 20.44
Adjustment to Jacobs awards related to the Separation Transaction (1) 13,821 $ —
Outstanding at September 27, 2024 90,796 $ 19.03
Exercised (41,618) $ 28.45
Cancelled or expired (841) $ 11.68
Outstanding at September 26, 2025 48,337 $ 11.03

(1) Represents the additional Jacobs stock options issued as a result of the equitable adjustments. The related exercise prices were also equitably adjusted.

Cash received from the exercise of stock options, net of tax remitted, during the year ended September 26, 2025 was $0.9 million.

Stock options outstanding at September 26, 2025 consisted of incentive stock options and non-qualified stock options. The following table
presents the total intrinsic value of stock options exercised for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023
(in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
$4,257 $13,790 $17,635

F-36



JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercisable at September 26, 2025 was approximately $6.5 million. The following table presents certain
other information regarding our 2023 SIP, 1999 OSDP and StreetLight Plan for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and
September 29, 2023:

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023

At fiscal year end:

Range of exercise prices for options exercisable $9.55 - $13.14 $9.55 - $36.73 $5.64 — $60.43

Number of options exercisable 47,746 80,509 180,911
For the fiscal year:

Range of prices relating to options exercised $9.55 - $36.73 $5.64 - $60.43 $7.05 - $60.43

The following table presents certain information regarding stock options outstanding at September 26, 2025:

September 26, 2025
Options Outstanding

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual Life Weighted
Range of Exercise Prices Number (years) Average Price
$9.55 - $13.14 48,337 5% 11.03

The 1999 ODSP, the 2023 SIP, and the StreetLight Plan allow participants to satisfy the exercise price of stock options by tendering shares of
Jacobs common stock that have been owned by the participants for at least six months. Shares tendered are retired, canceled, and shown as
repurchases of common stock in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity. The weighted average remaining contractual term
of options currently exercisable is 5 years.

Restricted Stock

The following table presents the number of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units issued as common stock under the 2023 SIP for
the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023:

For the Years Ended

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Restricted stock units (service condition) 162,768 258,720 996,345
Restricted stock units (service and performance conditions) 108,146 115,582 126,595

The amount of restricted stock units issued for awards with performance conditions in the above table are issued based on performance against
the target amount. The number of shares ultimately issued, which could be greater or less than target, will be based on achieving specific performance
conditions related to the awards as well as achieving the service condition required for the restricted stock units to vest.
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The following table presents the fair value of shares of the 2023 SIP and the StreetLight Plan (of restricted stock and restricted stock units)
vested for the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units (service condition) $ 45415 $ 75,625 $ 32,255

Restricted Stock Units (service, market, and performance conditions at

target) 12,258 23,286 22,060
Total $ 57,673 $ 98,911 $ 54,315

The following table presents the number and weighted average grant-date fair value of restricted stock and restricted stock units at
September 26, 2025:

Weighted Average Grant-

Number of Shares Date Fair Value
Outstanding at September 27, 2024 1,574,887 $ 104.73
Granted 235,814 $ 154.89
Vested (584,106) $ 100.08
Cancelled (101,868) $ 129.84
Post-spin adjustment (" (65,727) $ —
Outstanding at September 26, 2025 1,059,000 $ 116.76
1) Represents the transfer of shares by the system administrator to SpinCo subsequent to September 27, 2024, the effective date of the Separation Transaction.

The following table presents the number of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units canceled and withheld for taxes under the 2023
SIP for the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023:

For the Years Ended

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Restricted stock units (service condition) 212,284 277,869 94,249
Restricted stock units (service and performance conditions) 91,848 101,397 39,295

The amount of unvested restricted stock units canceled for awards with service and performance conditions in the above table is based on the
service period achieved and performance against the target amount.

The restrictions attached to restricted stock and restricted stock units generally relate to the recipient’s ability to sell or otherwise transfer the
stock and stock units. There are also restrictions that subject the stock and stock units to forfeiture back to the Company until earned by the recipient
through continued employment or service.

The following table provides the number of restricted stock units outstanding at September 26, 2025 under the 2023 SIP.

September 26, 2025
Restricted stock units (service condition) 674,965
Restricted stock units (service and performance conditions) 307,554
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The following table presents the number of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units issued under the 1999 ODSP for the years ended
September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023:

For the Years Ended
September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Restricted stock units (service condition) 12,962 15,647 14,031

No shares of restricted stock were issued under the 1999 ODSP during such periods.

The following table provides the number of shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units outstanding at September 26, 2025 under the
1999 ODSP:

September 26, 2025
Restricted stock units (service condition) 76,481

All shares granted under the 1999 ODSP are issued on a 1-to-1 basis.

12. Savings and Deferred Compensation Plans

Savings Plans

We sponsor various defined contribution savings plans which allow participants to make voluntary contributions by salary deduction. Such plans
cover substantially all of our domestic, nonunion employees in the U.S. and are qualified under Section 401(k) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.
Similar plans outside the U.S. cover various groups of employees of our international subsidiaries and affiliates. Several of these plans allow the
Company to match, on a voluntary basis, a portion of the employee contributions. The following table presents the Company’s contributions to these
savings plans for the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (in thousands):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
$ 169,610 $ 169,727 $ 147,288

Deferred Compensation Plans

Our non-qualified deferred compensation programs provide benefits payable to directors, officers, and certain key employees or their designated
beneficiaries at specified future dates, upon retirement, or death. The plans are unfunded; therefore, benefits are paid from the general assets of the
Company. Participants' cash deferrals earn a return based on the participants' selection of investments in several hypothetical investment options.
Participants are also able to defer stock based compensation in the plans, which must remain invested in Company stock and are distributed in shares of
Jacobs common stock. Since no investment diversification is permitted, changes in the fair value of Jacobs' common stock are not recognized. For the
deferred compensation held in company stock, the number of shares needed to settle the liability is included in the denominator in both the basic and
diluted earnings per share calculations. The following table presents the amount charged to (income)/expense for the Company’s deferred compensation
plans for the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (in thousands):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
$ 3631 $ (1,471) $ 4,679

The following table presents the amount relating to assets held as deferred compensation arrangement investments for the years ended
September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 (in thousands):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024
Deferred compensation arrangement investments $ 191,806 $ 183,348
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Deferred compensation arrangement investments are comprised primarily of the cash surrender value of life insurance policies and pooled-
investment funds. The fair value of the pooled investment funds is derived using Level 2 inputs.

13. Pension and Other Post Retirement Benefit Plans

We sponsor various defined benefit pension and other post retirement plans covering employees of certain U.S. and international subsidiaries.
The pension plans provide pension benefits that are based on the employee’s compensation and years of service. Our funding policy varies by country
and plan according to applicable local funding requirements and plan-specific funding agreements.

The accounting for pension and other post retirement benefit plans requires the use of assumptions and estimates in order to calculate periodic
benefit cost and the value of the plans’ assets and benefit obligations. These assumptions include discount rates, investment returns, and projected
salary increases, among others. The discount rates used in valuing the plans' benefit obligations were determined with reference to high quality
corporate and government bonds that are appropriately matched to the duration of each plan's obligations. The expected long-term rate of return on plan
assets is generally based on using country-specific simulation models which select a single outcome for expected return based on the target asset
allocation. The expected long-term rates of return used in the valuation are the annual average returns generated by these assumptions over a 20-year
period for each asset class based on the expected long-term rate of return of the underlying assets.

The following table sets forth the changes in the plans’ combined net benefit obligation (segregated between plans existing within and outside
the U.S.) for the years ended September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 (in thousands):

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
September 26, September 27, September 26, September 27,
2025 2024 2025 2024

Net benefit obligation at the beginning of the year $ 296,746 $ 281,852 $ 1,519,871  $ 1,300,261
Service cost 136 119 9,855 8,922
Interest cost 13,621 15,574 74,598 71,270
Participants’ contributions — — 9 91
Actuarial (gains) losses (" (2,003) 25,571 (120,367) 65,940
Benefits paid (27,194) (26,370) (93,539) (77,446)
Curtailments/settlements/plan amendments @) — — (1,214) (32,496)
Effect of exchange rate changes and other, net — — 46,584 183,329
Net benefit obligation at the end of the year $ 281,306 $ 296,746 $ 1,435,797 $ 1,519,871

(1) Actuarial (gains) losses primarily driven by change in discount rates.

(2) In fiscal 2024, we completed a termination and buy-out of the primary PA Consulting pension plan which relieves the Company of any future obligations with no impact to

net income.
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The following table sets forth the changes in the combined Fair Value of the plans’ assets (segregated between plans existing within and outside
the U.S.) for the years ended September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 (in thousands):

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
September 26, September 27, September 26, September 27,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year $ 293,828 $ 277,583 $ 1,440,593 $ 1,243,025
Actual returns (losses) on plan assets 9,861 42,523 (38,909) 111,948
Employer contributions 93 92 46,426 23,787
Participants’ contributions — — 9 91
Gross benefits paid (27,194) (26,370) (93,539) (77,447)
Curtailments/settlements/plan amendments () — — (1,214) (32,246)
Effect of exchange rate changes and other, net — — 45,682 171,435
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year $ 276,588 $ 293,828 $ 1,399,048 § 1,440,593
(1) Infiscal 2024, we completed a termination and buy-out of the primary PA Consulting pension plan which relieves the Company of any future obligations with no impact to net
Income.

The following table reconciles the combined funded statuses of the plans recognized in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at
September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 (segregated between plans existing within and outside the U.S.) (in thousands):

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
September 26, September 27, September 26, September 27,
2025 2024 2025 202
Net benefit obligation at the end of the year $ 281,306 $ 296,746 $ 1,435,797 $ 1,519,871
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 276,588 293,828 1,399,048 1,440,593
Underfunded amount recognized at the end of the year $ 4718 $ 2918 § 36,749 § 79,278

The following table presents the accumulated benefit obligation at September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 (segregated between plans
existing within and outside the U.S.) (in thousands):

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
September 26, September 27, September 26, September 27,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Accumulated benefit obligation at the end of the year $ 280,165 $ 295,691 $ 1,415,467 $ 1,499,884
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The following table presents the amounts recognized in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 26, 2025 and
September 27, 2024 (segregated between plans existing within and outside the U.S.) (in thousands):

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
September 26, September 27, September 26, September 27,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Prepaid benefit cost included in noncurrent assets $ — $ — $ 65,792 $ 62,056
Accrued benefit cost included in current liabilities 90 90 7,057 6,833
Accrued benefit cost included in noncurrent liabilities 4,628 2,828 95,484 134,501
Net amount recognized at the end of the year $ 4,718 § 2,918 § 36,749 $ 79,278

The following table presents the significant actuarial assumptions used in determining the funded statuses and the following year's benefit cost
of the Company’s U.S. plans for the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023:

For the Years Ended

September 26, September 27, September 29,
2025 2024 2023
Discount rates 4.7% t0 5.2% 4.6% to 4.9% 5.8% t0 5.9%
Rates of compensation increases 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
Expected long-term rates of return on assets 5.6% to 6.3% 5.4% to 6.2% 4.8% to 7.0%

The following table presents the significant actuarial assumptions used in determining the funded statuses and the following year's benefit cost
of the Company’s non-U.S. plans for the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023:

For the Years Ended

September 27, September 29,
September 26, 2025 2024 2023
Discount rates 3.2% t0 6.0% 3.4% to 7.0% 3.8% 10 6.9%
Rates of compensation increases 3.7% t0 9.0% 2.6% t0 9.0% 2.8% t0 9.0%
Expected long-term rates of return on assets 4.0% to 8.2% 4.6% to 7.8% 5.3% to 7.6%

The following table presents certain amounts relating to our U.S. plans recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive loss at September 26,
2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (in thousands):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023

Arising during the period:

Net actuarial losses (gains) $ 3,965 $ 1,576 $ (4,032)

Total 3,965 1,576 (4,032)
Reclassification adjustments:

Net actuarial (losses) gains (1,104) 1,031 1,335

Prior service benefit (47) (321) (324)

Total (1,151) 710 1,011
Total $ 2814 § 2,286 $ (3,021)
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The following table presents certain amounts relating to our non-U.S. plans recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive loss at
September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (in thousands):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023

Arising during the period:

Net actuarial losses $ 8,150 $ 49,685 $ 27,188

Total 8,150 49,685 27,188
Reclassification adjustments:

Net actuarial losses (7,785) (5,601) (4,802)

Prior service benefit (1,206) (1,125) (1,068)

Total (8,991) (6,726) (5,870)
Total $ (841) $ 42,959 $ 21,318

The following table presents certain amounts relating to our plans recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive loss that have not yet been

recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost at September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 (segregated between U.S. and non-U.S. plans)
(in thousands):

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024
Net actuarial losses $ 40,413 $ 37,552 $ 310,464 $ 310,884
Prior service cost — 47 22,033 22,454
Total $ 40,413 $ 37,599 $ 332,497 $ 333,338

The following table presents the amount of accumulated comprehensive loss that will be amortized against earnings as part of our net periodic
benefit cost in fiscal 2026 based on 2025 exchange rates (segregated between U.S. and non-U.S. plans) (in thousands):

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Unrecognized net actuarial losses $ 1,981 §$ 10,236
Unrecognized prior service cost — 1,449
Accumulated comprehensive losses to be recorded against earnings $ 1,981 § 11,685

We consider various factors in developing the estimates for the expected, long-term rates of return on plan assets. These factors include the
projected, long-term rates of returns on the various types of assets in which the plans invest, as well as historical returns. In general, investment
allocations are determined by each plan’s trustees and/or investment committees. The objectives of the plans’ investment policies are to (i) maximize
returns while preserving capital; (ii) provide returns sufficient to meet the current and long-term obligations of the plan as the obligations become due;
and (iii) maintain a diversified portfolio of assets so as to reduce the risk associated with having a disproportionate amount of the plans’ total assets
invested in any one type of asset, issuer or geography. None of our pension plans hold Jacobs common stock directly (although some plans may hold

shares indirectly through investments in mutual funds). The plans’ weighted average asset allocations at September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024
(the measurement dates used in valuing the plans’ assets and liabilities) were as follows:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024
Equity securities 1% 1% 14 % 15 %
Debt securities 77 % 79 % 57 % 57 %
Real estate investments — % — % 5% 6 %
Mutual Funds 18 % 17 % 11 % 9 %
Other 4 % 3% 13 % 13 %
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The following table presents the fair value of the Company’s Domestic U.S. plan assets at September 26, 2025, segregated by level of fair value

measurement inputs within the Fair Value hierarchy promulgated by U.S. GAAP (in thousands):

Equities

Domestic bonds
Overseas bonds
Cash and equivalents
Mutual funds

Total

September 26, 2025

Fair Value, Determined Using Fair Value Measurement Inputs

Investments
measured at Net
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Asset Value Total
$ 2,725 § — § $ — 3 2,725
372 198,404 — 198,776
— 12,826 — 12,826
12,169 — — 12,169
50,092 — — 50,092
$ 65,358 $ 211,230 $ $ — $ 276,588

F-44



JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

The following table presents the fair value of the Company’s non-U.S. plan assets at September 26, 2025, segregated by level of fair value
measurement inputs within the Fair Value hierarchy promulgated by U.S. GAAP (in thousands):

September 26, 2025

Fair Value, Determined Using Fair Value

Measurement Inputs

Investments
measured at Net
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Asset Value Total
Domestic equities $ — 3 67,365 $ — 3 655 $ 68,020
Overseas equities — 64,253 — 62,805 127,058
Domestic bonds — 40,342 — — 40,342
Overseas bonds — 610,116 — 147,010 757,126
Cash and equivalents 13,473 — — — 13,473
Real estate — 8,338 28,861 37,725 74,924
Insurance contracts — — 57,132 — 57,132
Hedge funds — 93,890 19,354 113,244
Mutual funds — 147,729 — — 147,729
Total $ 13,473 $ 938,143 $ 179,883 §$ 267,549 $ 1,399,048
The following table presents the fair value of the Company’s U.S. plan assets at September 27, 2024, segregated by level of fair value
measurement inputs within the Fair Value hierarchy promulgated by U.S. GAAP (in thousands):
September 27, 2024
Fair Value, Determined Using Fair Value Measurement Inputs
Investments
measured at Net
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Asset Value Total
Equities $ 2,845 $ — 3 — 8 — 3 2,845
Domestic bonds 10,081 207,644 — — 217,725
Overseas bonds — 12,621 — — 12,621
Cash and equivalents 10,723 — — — 10,723
Mutual funds 49,914 — — — 49,914
Total $ 73,563 $ 220,265 $ — 3 — $ 293,828
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The following table presents the fair value of the Company’s non-U.S. plan assets at September 27, 2024, segregated by level of fair value
measurement inputs within the Fair Value hierarchy promulgated by U.S. GAAP (in thousands):

September 27, 2024

Fair Value, Determined Using Fair Value Measurement Inputs

Investments
measured at Net
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Asset Value Total
Domestic equities $ — $ 61,722 $ — 3 1,890 $ 63,612
Overseas equities — 62,988 — 89,912 152,900
Domestic bonds — 43,563 — — 43,563
Overseas bonds — 697,585 — 82,512 780,097
Cash and equivalents 17,161 — — — 17,161
Real estate — 12,101 42,479 39,041 93,621
Insurance contracts — — 62,337 — 62,337
Hedge funds — — 81,771 19,776 101,547
Mutual funds — 125,755 — — 125,755
Total $ 17,161 $ 1,003,714 $ 186,587 $ 233,131  $ 1,440,593

The following table summarizes the changes in the fair value of the Company’s non-U.S. Pension Plans’ Level 3 assets for the years ended
September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 (in thousands):

Real Estate Insurance Contracts Hedge Funds
Balance at Balance at September 29, 2023 $ 84,755 $ 87,160 $ 78,617
Net purchases, sales, and settlements (59,738) (31,262) (19,567)
Realized and unrealized gains 3,993 2,923 7,532
Effect of exchange rate changes 13,469 3,516 15,189
Balance at September 27, 2024 42,479 $ 62,337 $ 81,771
Net purchases, sales and settlements (15,055) (3,937) (238)
Realized and unrealized losses 104 (1,495) 6,675
Effect of exchange rate changes 1,333 227 5,682
Balance at September 26, 2025 28,861 $ 57,132 $ 93,890

The following table presents the amount of cash contributions we anticipate making into the plans during fiscal 2026 (in thousands):

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

Anticipated cash contributions $ — 3 13,850

The following table presents the total benefit payments expected to be paid to plan participants during each of the next five fiscal years, and in
total for the five years thereafter (in thousands):

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
2026 $ 29,179 $ 89,460
2027 26,891 93,180
2028 26,638 93,924
2029 25,400 95,379
2030 24,124 94,874
For the periods 2031 through 2035 106,362 490,669
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The following table presents the components of net periodic benefit cost for the Company’s U.S. plans recognized in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (in thousands):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Service cost $ 136 $ 119 $ 140
Interest cost 13,621 15,574 15,629
Expected return on plan assets (17,243) (19,058) (19,496)
Actuarial losses (gains) 1,482 (1,384) (1,770)
Prior service cost 63 431 430
Total net periodic pension income recognized $ (1,941) $ (4,318) $ (5,067)

The following table presents the components of net periodic benefit cost for the Company’s Non-U.S. plans recognized in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (in thousands):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023

Service cost $ 9,855 §$ 8,922 $ 6,926
Interest cost 74,598 71,270 74,077
Expected return on plan assets (89,279) (76,510) (73,387)
Actuarial losses 10,250 7,320 6,317
Prior service cost 1,608 1,501 1,424
Net pension cost, before special items $ 7,032 $ 12,503 $ 15,357
Curtailment expense/Settlement losses 9) 258 208
Total net periodic pension cost recognized $ 7,023 $ 12,761  $ 15,565

The service cost component of net periodic pension income is presented in direct cost of contracts and selling, general and administrative
expenses while all other components are presented in miscellaneous (expense) income, net on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the years
presented above.

Multiemployer Plans

In the U.S. and various other countries, we contribute to trusteed pension plans covering hourly and certain salaried employees under industry-
wide agreements. Contributions are based on the hours worked by employees covered under these agreements and are charged to direct cost of
contracts on a current basis. With respect to these multiemployer plans, the Company's liability to fund these plans is generally limited to the
contributions we are required to make under collective bargaining agreements.

Based on our review of our multiemployer pension plans under the guidance provided in ASU 2011-09— Compensation-Retirement Benefits-
Multiemployer Plans, we have concluded that none of the multiemployer pension plans into which we contribute are individually significant to our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following table presents the Company’s contributions to these multiemployer plans for the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27,
2024 and September 29, 2023 (in thousands):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023

Europe $ 2,088 $ 1,769 $ 1,635
United States 156 156 154
Contributions to multiemployer pension plans $ 2,244 $ 1,925 $ 1,789
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14. Discontinued Operations

Separation of Critical Mission Solutions (“CMS”) and Cyber & Intelligence (“C&I”) Businesses

On September 27, 2024, Jacobs completed the previously announced Reverse Morris Trust transaction pursuant to which (i) Jacobs first
transferred its CMS and portions of its DVS business to Amazon Holdco Inc., a Delaware corporation (SpinCo), which has since been renamed Amentum
Holdings, Inc., (ii) Jacobs then effectuated a spin-off of SpinCo by distributing 124,084,108 shares of SpinCo Common Stock, by way of a pro rata
distribution to its shareholders such that each holder of shares of Jacobs Common Stock was entitled to receive one share of SpinCo Common Stock for
each share of Jacobs common stock held as of the record date, September 23, 2024 (the "Distribution"), and (iii) finally, Amentum Parent Holdings LLC
merged with and into SpinCo, with SpinCo surviving the merger. Amentum Holdings, Inc., as the surviving entity of the Separation Transaction is now an
independent public company with common stock listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “AMTM” (“Amentum”).

In connection and in accordance with the terms of the Separation Transaction and prior to the Distribution and the Merger, Jacobs received a
cash payment from SpinCo of approximately $911.0 million, after adjustments based on the estimated levels of cash, debt and working capital in the
SpinCo Business as of the transaction date, and recorded estimated additional net working capital receivable amounts reflected in Receivables and
Contract Assets in the Company's September 27, 2024 Consolidated Balance Sheet, subject to final settlement between the parties after the closing of
the transaction and as set forth in the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of November 20, 2023 (as amended, the “Merger Agreement").
Subsequent to the closing and upon final determination in March 2025, the parties determined that the Company was entitled to $70.0 million in final
settlement of the post-closing working capital adjustment, resulting in a $24.0 million reduction from preliminary recorded receivable amounts, which was
charged to Retained Earnings in the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet. The $70.0 million final receivable balance was collected in full on April 10,
2025 and immediately utilized to pay down existing amounts owed on Company’s Revolving Credit Facility upon receipt.

Summarized Financial Information of Discontinued Operations

The following table represents earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax (in thousands):
For the Years Ended
September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023

Revenues $ (3,200) $ 5,472,979 $ 5,500,994
Direct cost of contracts 3,528 (4,692,921) (4,738,539)
Gross profit 328 780,058 762,455
Selling, general and administrative expenses ()@ (34,716) (479,582) (363,703)
Operating (Loss) Profit (34,388) 300,476 398,752
Other loss, net — (3,301) (3,049)
(Loss) Earnings Before Taxes from Discontinued Operations (34,388) 297,175 395,703
Income Tax Benefit (Expense) 7,742 (89,737) (94,845)
Net (Loss) Earnings of the Group from Discontinued Operations (26,646) 207,438 300,858
Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests from Discontinued

Operations — (13,561) (13,365)
Net (Loss) Earnings Attributable to Jacobs from Discontinued Operations @) $ (26,646) $ 193,877 $ 287,493

(1) The Company accrued approximately $30.8 million during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2025 as an indemnity reserve in respect of an ongoing non-U.S. tax matter related to an entity
that was part of the separated SpinCo Business.

(2) The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses in the year ended September 27, 2024 from September 29, 2023 was primarily related to professional services and
other Separation Transaction related expenses of $97.6 million.

(3) The decrease in net Earnings from discontinued operations for the year ended September 26, 2025, as compared to September 27, 2024, was primarily driven by prior year
operating results of the SpinCo Business, which were divested and therefore are no longer in Company's financial results in fiscal year 2025.
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Notable components included in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for these discontinued operations are as follows (in thousands):

For the Years Ended

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Depreciation and amortization:
Property, equipment and improvements $ — 9 16,245 $ 19,075
Intangible assets $ — 3 56,839 $ 56,675
Deferred income taxes $ 4235 $ (106,424) $ (5,297)
Additions to property and equipment $ — 3 (13,067) $ (26,448)

No assets and liabilities remained held for spin as of September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024.

Investment in Amentum Stock

As a result of the Separation Transaction on September 27, 2024, Jacobs held approximately 29.2 million of the outstanding shares of Amentum
common stock initially recorded on a net book value basis under spin-off accounting rules.

Following the Merger and in accordance with the Escrow Agreement, Jacobs transferred approximately 10.9 million of the 29.2 million of
Amentum shares held into escrow to be held and distributed between the parties based on terms and conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement. The
entire 29.2 million shares of Amentum, consisting of both the 10.9 million in escrow shares and the remaining 18.3 million shares owned by Jacobs was
reflected in the Company’s September 27, 2024 Consolidated Balance Sheet pending final settlement of the escrow shares at a recorded fair value of
$749.5 million.

In February 2025, in connection with the determination of SpinCo’s fiscal year 2024 performance against certain agreed upon milestones and
ensuing escrow share settlement proceedings (the “Post-Closing Additional Merger Consideration Adjustment”), the parties agreed that Jacobs was
entitled to receive at least an additional 1.2 million shares held in escrow, which were then released to Jacobs. Subsequently, on March 13, 2025, Jacobs
completed the Equity-for-Debt Transaction (see Note 9- Borrowings for additional information). After giving effect to the above transactions, the
Company's remaining investment in Amentum represented the 9.7 million shares remaining in escrow.

Further, on April 7, 2025, the parties agreed to a final determination of the Post-Closing Additional Merger Consideration Adjustment, pursuant to
which Jacobs became entitled to receive approximately 7.3 million Amentum shares from the remaining 9.7 million shares held in escrow mentioned
above, and former Amentum equity sponsors became entitled to receive the remainder of approximately 2.4 million shares. The finalization of the shares
deemed owed to the former Amentum equity sponsors resulted in approximately $21.9 million in charges to Miscellaneous Expense in the Company's
Consolidated Statement of Earnings in the second fiscal quarter of 2025. These shares were subsequently released to the respective parties during the
current quarter.

Finally, on April 30, 2025, the Jacobs Board of Directors declared a dividend in kind to distribute the remaining 7.3 million shares of Amentum's
stock to Jacobs’ shareholders of record as of May 16, 2025, which were distributed on a pro rata basis on May 30, 2025, resulting in an impact on
retained earnings as shown on the Company's Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the twelve months ended September 26, 2025.
Following the distribution, the Company no longer owns any shares of Amentum common stock.

The Company reported $(227.3) million and $186.9 million in fair value mark-to-market (losses) gains and other related charges associated with
the investment in Amentum shares for the years ended September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024, respectively, which were included in
Miscellaneous (Expense) Income, net as reported in Other (Expense) Income in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

Transition Services Agreement

Upon closing of the Separation Transaction, the Company entered into a Transition Services Agreement (the "TSA") with Amentum pursuant to
which the Company, on an interim basis, provided various services to Amentum
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including corporate, information technology, and project services. The initial term of the TSA began immediately following the closing of the transaction
on September 27, 2024. As of September 26, 2025, the TSA was substantially exited with certain agreed upon extensions which are expected to be
completed by the end of calendar year 2025. Pursuant to the terms of the TSA, the Company will receive payments for the interim services. Since
inception of the TSA agreement, the Company has recognized costs recorded in SG&A expense incurred to perform the TSA, offset by $40.5 million in
TSA related income for such services that is reported in miscellaneous income (expense) for the year ended September 26, 2025. No services were
provided under the TSA for the year ended September 27, 2024.

On April 26, 2019, Jacobs completed the sale of its Energy, Chemicals and Resources ("ECR") business to Worley Limited, a company
incorporated in Australia ("Worley"), for a purchase price of $3.4 billion consisting of (i) $2.8 billion in cash plus (ii) 58.2 million ordinary shares of Worley,
subject to adjustments for changes in working capital and certain other items (the “ECR sale”). For the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27,
2024 and September 29, 2023, $2.7 million, $(0.6) million and $(0.8) million, respectively, were reported in Net (Loss) Earnings Attributable to Jacobs
from Discontinued Operations on the Consolidated Statement of Earnings related to ECR.
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15. PA Consulting Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests

In connection with the Company's strategic investment in PA Consulting, the Company recorded redeemable noncontrolling interests, including
subsequent purchase accounting adjustments, representing the noncontrolling interest holders' equity interests in the form of preferred and common
shares of PA Consulting, with substantially all of the value associated with these interests allocable to the preferred shares. PA Consulting is accounted
for as a consolidated subsidiary and as a separate operating segment.

During fiscal 2025, 2024, and 2023, the Company repurchased certain shares of the redeemable noncontrolling interest holders for $10.4 million,
$55.3 million, and $92.9 million respectively, in cash and issued certain shares of redeemable noncontrolling interest holders in fiscal 2024 and 2023 for
$19.8 million, and $34.0 million, respectively. The difference between the cash purchase prices and the recorded book values of these repurchased and
issued interests was recorded in the Company’s consolidated retained earnings. The Company held 71% and 70% of the outstanding ownership of PA
Consulting as of September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024, respectively.

For the years ended, 2025 and 2024 there was a $0.0 and $0.10 charge to earnings per share, respectively, resulting from adjustments to the
redeemable noncontrolling interests to reflect the excess of redemption values over fair values of the B common shares component of the redeemable
noncontrolling interests. Additionally, for the years ended, 2025 and 2024 there was a $0.01 and $0.02 increase in earnings per share, respectively,
resulting from redemption value adjustments associated with redeemable noncontrolling interests preference share repurchase and reissuance activities
that were recorded.

The foregoing results had no impact on the Company’s overall results of operations, financial position or cash flows. See Note 4- Earnings Per
Share and Certain Related Information.

Changes in the Company's redeemable noncontrolling interests during the fiscal years ended September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024
were as follows (in thousands):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024

Redeemable noncontrolling interest at the beginning of the year $ 820,182 $ 632,979
Accrued Preferred Dividend to Preference Shareholders 81,713 73,033
Attribution of Preferred Dividend to Common Shareholders (81,713) (73,033)
Net earnings attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest to Common

Shareholders 1,177 14,999
Redeemable Noncontrolling interests redemption value adjustment 199,763 171,142
Repurchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests (13,999) (62,867)
Issuance of redeemable noncontrolling interests — 22,586
Cumulative translation adjustment and other 1,571 41,343
Redeemable noncontrolling interest at the end of the year $ 1,018,694 § 820,182
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In addition, certain employees and nonemployees of PA Consulting are eligible to receive equity-based incentive grants since the March 2, 2021
original investment date. Under the terms of the applicable agreements, 40% of these grants are subject to time-based vesting and have reached fully
vested status as of July 2025. The Company has accrued liabilities associated with the vested grants at fair value in the amounts of $103.8 million and
$28.4 million reported in Other deferred liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024, respectively.
Also, during the years ended September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024, the Company recorded approximately $75.3 million and $13.4 million,
respectively, in expense associated with these agreements which is reflected in selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statements of earnings. As of September 26, 2025, there was approximately $142.1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the
remaining 60% of fair value of such grants anticipated to vest upon a liquidity event, as defined in the applicable agreements. This cost is expected to be
recognized in Selling, general and administrative expenses when such a liquidity event is considered probable, which could occur in 2026.

Restricted Cash

The Company, through its investment in PA Consulting, held $1.4 million and $2.1 million at September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024,
respectively, in cash that is restricted from general use and is included in prepaid expenses and other current assets on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

16. Restructuring and Other Charges

During fiscal 2023, the Company implemented restructuring and separation initiatives relating to the Separation Transaction which continued
through fiscal years 2024 and 2025 and are expected to be substantially completed by the end of calendar year 2025. Restructuring initiatives were also
implemented during fiscal 2023 relating to our investment in PA Consulting, which are substantially completed. While restructuring activities for each of
these programs are comprised mainly of employee termination costs, the separation activities and costs are primarily related to the engagement of
outside services, dedicated internal personnel and other related costs dedicated to the Separation Transaction.

Collectively, the above-mentioned restructuring activities are referred to as “Restructuring and other charges”.

The following table summarizes the impacts of the Restructuring and other charges by operating segment for the years ended September 26,
2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (in thousands):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Infrastructure & Advanced Facilities $ 59,092 $ 128,529 $ 111,513
PA Consulting 2,224 6,382 14,706
Total 61,316 134,911 126,219
Amounts included in:
Operating profit (mainly selling, general and
administrative expenses (“SG&A") M 61,316 169,844 129,596
Other (Income), net® — (34,933) (3,377)
$ 61,316 $ 134,911 $ 126,219
1) The years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 included approximately $58.8 million, $163.4 million and $61.1 million, respectively,

in restructuring and other charges relating to the Separation Transaction (primarily professional services and employee separation costs) and $2.2 million, $6.4 million and
$14.3 million, respectively in restructuring and other charges relating to the Company's investment in PA Consulting (primarily employee separation costs). The year ended
September 29, 2023 also included $49.1 million in charges mainly associated with real estate impairments, the majority of which related to Infrastructure & Advanced
Facilities.

(2) The year ended September 27, 2024 included a $35.2 million realized gain on interest rate swaps settled during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024. The year ended
September 29, 2023 included gain of $3.4 million related to lease terminations.
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The activity in the Company’s accrual for the Restructuring and other charges including the program activities described above for the year
ended September 26, 2025 is as follows (in thousands):

Balance at September 27, 2024 $ 44,935
Net Charges 61,316
Payments & Other (91,735)
Balance at September 26, 2025 $ 14,516

The following table summarizes the Restructuring and other charges by major type of costs for the years ended September 26, 2025,
September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 (in thousands):

September 26, 2025 September 27, 2024 September 29, 2023
Lease Abandonments and Impairments $ — 3 49 $ 44,788
Voluntary and Involuntary Terminations 29,753 47,881 37,235
Outside Services " 24,651 100,593 35,099
Other @ 6,912 (13,612) 9,097
Total $ 61,316 $ 134911 § 126,219
(1) Amounts in the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 are mainly comprised of professional services relating to the Separation
Transaction.
(2) Amounts in the years ended September 26, 2025, September 27, 2024 and September 29, 2023 are mainly comprised of activities associated with the Separation

Transaction including a realized gain of $35.2 million on interest rate swaps settled during fourth quarter of fiscal 2024 and charges associated with the write off of fixed
assets during fiscal 2023.

Cumulative amounts incurred to date for restructuring and other programs active at the end of fiscal 2025 by each major type of cost as of
September 26, 2025 are as follows (in thousands):

Voluntary and Involuntary Terminations $ 109,042
Outside Services 158,475
Other (" 2,811
Total $ 270,328
(1) Cumulative amount includes a $35.2 million realized gain on interest rate swaps settled during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024.
17. Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk under its variable rate borrowings and additionally, due to the nature of the Company's international
operations, we are at times exposed to foreign currency risk. As such, we sometimes enter into foreign exchange hedging contracts and interest rate
hedging contracts in order to limit our exposure to fluctuating foreign currencies and interest rates.

During fiscal 2022, the Company entered into two treasury lock agreements with a total notional value of $500.0 million to manage its interest
rate exposure to the anticipated issuance of fixed rate debt before December 2023. On February 13, 2023, the Company settled these treasury lock
agreements and issued the 5.90% Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $500.0 million, which resulted in the receipt of cash and a pre-tax gain of
$37.4 million, which is being amortized to interest expense and recognized over the term of the 5.90% Bonds. See Note 9- Borrowings for further
discussion relating to the terms of the 5.90% Bonds. The unrealized net gain on these instruments was $20.9 million and $23.6 million, net of tax, and is
included in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024, respectively.

In fiscal 2020 we entered into interest rate swap agreements to manage the interest rate exposure on our variable rate loans. By entering into

the swap agreements, the Company converted the variable rate based liabilities into fixed rate liabilities for a period of five to ten years. During the fiscal
2023 transition from LIBOR to SOFR, the terms of the swaps
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were amended accordingly and remained designated as cash-flow hedges in accordance with ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024, in connection with the Separation Transaction, the Company terminated two interest rate swaps with an
aggregate notional value of $554.7 million for a realized gain of $35.2 million. This realized gain previously recorded as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive loss was recognized in miscellaneous income (expense) in the current period as the related interest payments are no longer
expected to occur. As of September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024, the Company has one ten-year outstanding instrument with a notional value of
$200.0 million.

The fair value of the interest rate swap at September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024 was $20.5 million and $23.0 million, respectively,
included within miscellaneous other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The unrealized net gain on the interest rate swap as of September 26,
2025 and September 27, 2024 was $15.6 million and $17.4 million, respectively, net of tax, and was included in accumulated other comprehensive
income.

Additionally, the Company held foreign exchange forward contracts in currencies that support our operations, including Australian Dollar, British
Pound and other currencies, with notional values of $491.9 million at September 26, 2025 and $827.3 million at September 27, 2024. The length of these
contracts currently ranges from one to three months. The fair value of the foreign exchange contracts at September 26, 2025 was $(0.3) million, of which
$(2.3) million is included within current liabilities and $2.0 million is included within current assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
September 26, 2025. The fair value of the contracts as of September 27, 2024 was $15.3 million, of which $15.8 million is included within current assets
and $(0.5) million is included within current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 27, 2024. Associated income statement
impacts are included in miscellaneous income (expense) in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings for both periods.

The fair value measurements of these derivatives are being made using Level 2 inputs under ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, as the
measurements are based on observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets. We are exposed to risk from credit-related losses resulting
from nonperformance by counterparties to our financial instruments. We perform credit evaluations of our counterparties under forward exchange and
interest rate contracts and expect all counterparties to meet their obligations. We have not experienced credit losses from our counterparties.

Letters of Credit

At September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024, the Company had issued and outstanding approximately $217.0 million and $306.2 million,
respectively, in LOCs and $2.8 billion and $2.3 billion, respectively, in surety bonds. Of the outstanding LOC amount, $0.3 million has been issued under
the Revolving Credit Facility and $216.7 million are issued under separate, committed and uncommitted letter-of-credit facilities.

18. Contractual Guarantees, Litigation, Investigations and Insurance

In the normal course of business, we make contractual commitments (some of which are supported by separate guarantees) and on occasion
we are a party in a litigation or arbitration proceeding, such as the Consolidated JV Matter (see Note 19- Segment Information). The litigation or
arbitration in which we are involved primarily includes personal injury claims, professional liability claims and breach of contract claims. Where we
provide a separate guarantee, it is strictly in support of the underlying contractual commitment. Guarantees take various forms including surety bonds
required by law, or standby letters of credit ("LOC" and also referred to as “bank guarantees”) or corporate guarantees given to induce a party to enter
into a contract with a subsidiary. Standby LOCs are also used as security for advance payments or in various other transactions. The guarantees have
various expiration dates ranging from an arbitrary date to completion of our work (e.g., engineering only) to completion of the overall project. We record
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets amounts representing our estimated liability relating to such guarantees, litigation and insurance claims. Guarantees
are accounted for in accordance with ASC 460-10, Guarantees, at fair value at the inception of the guarantee. See Note 17- Commitments and
Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments for more information surrounding LOCs and surety bonds.
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We maintain insurance coverage for most insurable aspects of our business and operations. Our insurance programs have varying coverage
limits depending upon the type of insurance and include certain conditions and exclusions which insurance companies may raise in response to any
claim that is asserted by or against the Company. We have also elected to retain a portion of certain losses, claims and liabilities that occur through the
use of various deductibles, limits, and retentions under our insurance programs and utilize a number of internal financing mechanisms for these self-
insurance arrangements, including the operation of certain captive insurance entities. As a result, we may be subject to a future liability for which we are
only partially insured or completely uninsured. We intend to mitigate any such future liability by continuing to exercise prudent business judgment in
negotiating the terms and conditions of the contracts which the Company enters with its clients. Our insurers are also subject to business risk and, as a
result, one or more of them may be unable to fulfill their insurance obligations due to insolvency or otherwise.

Additionally, as a contractor providing services to the U.S. federal government, we are subject to many types of audits, investigations and claims
by, or on behalf of, the government including with respect to contract performance, pricing, cost allocations, procurement practices, labor practices and
socioeconomic obligations. Furthermore, our income, franchise and similar tax returns and filings are also subject to audit and investigation by the
Internal Revenue Service, most states within the United States, as well as by various government agencies representing jurisdictions outside the United
States.

Our Consolidated Balance Sheets include amounts representing our probable estimated liability relating to such claims, guarantees, litigation,
audits and investigations. We perform an analysis to determine the level of reserves to establish for insurance-related claims that are known and have
been asserted against us, as well as for insurance-related claims that are believed to have been incurred based on actuarial analysis but have not yet
been reported to our claims administrators as of the respective balance sheet dates. We include any adjustments to such insurance reserves in our
consolidated results of operations. Insurance recoveries are recorded as assets if recovery is probable and estimated liabilities are not reduced by
expected insurance recoveries.

The Company believes, after consultation with counsel, that such guarantees, litigation, U.S. government contract-related audits, investigations

and claims and income tax audits and investigations should not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements, beyond
amounts currently accrued.
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19. Segment Information

The Company's two operating segments are comprised of Infrastructure and Advanced Facilities ("I&AF"), and its majority investment in PA
Consulting. Subsequent to the Separation Transaction, the SpinCo businesses are now presented as discontinued operations for all periods and
therefore not reflected in the segment disclosures below. For further information, refer to Note 14- Discontinued Operations.

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer is the Chief Decision Maker (“CODM”) and evaluates the performance of and makes appropriate
resource allocations to each of the segments. For purposes of the Company’s goodwill impairment testing, it has been determined that the Company’s
operating segments are also its reporting units based on management’s conclusion that the components comprising each of its operating segments
share similar economic characteristics and meet the aggregation criteria for reporting units in accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other.

Financial information for each segment is reviewed by the CODM to assess performance and make decisions regarding the allocation of
resources. The CODM evaluates the operating performance of our operating segments primarily using segment operating profit. The Company incurs
certain SG&A that relate to its business as a whole which are not allocated to the segments. The CODM does not review segment assets as a measure
of segment performance.

The following tables present total revenues, direct cost of contracts, selling, general and administrative expenses and segment operating profit
from continuing operations for each reportable segment (in thousands) and include a reconciliation of segment operating profit to total U.S. GAAP
operating profit by including certain corporate-level expenses, Restructuring and other charges (as defined in Note 16- Restructuring and Other Charges)
and transaction and integration costs (in thousands) for the years ended:

September 26, 2025

Infrastructure &

Advanced Facilities PA Consulting Total
Revenues from External Customers (") $ 10,764,206 $ 1,265,577 $ 12,029,783
Direct cost of contracts @ (8,228,935) (815,914) (9,044,849)
Selling, general and administrative expenses ) (1,631,723) (171,164) (1,802,887)
Segment Operating Profit (M $ 903,548 $ 278,499 $ 1,182,047
Restructuring, Transaction and Other Charges © (162,896)
Amortization of Intangible Assets (155,517)
Total U.S. GAAP Operating Profit $ 863,634
Total Other (Expense) Income, net @ (320,157)
Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Taxes $ 543,477
1) I&AF revenue and operating profit for the year ended September 26, 2025 were impacted by a reserve in connection with an unfavorable interim ruling against a

consolidated joint venture in which the Company holds a 50% interest (the "Consolidated JV Matter"), with the noncontrolling partner’s share included in
noncontrolling interests in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the respective period.

) Direct cost of contracts and SG&A are considered to be significant segment expense categories as amounts align with, or are easily computable from, the
segment-level information regularly provided to the CODM.

@) The year ended September 26, 2025 included $58.8 million in restructuring and other charges related to the Separation Transaction (primarily professional
services and employee separation costs), as well as $75.3 million in charges for certain subsidiary level compensation based agreements. The year ended
September 26, 2025 included approximately $26.0 million in charges associated with the Company's TSA with Amentum.

(4) The year ended September 26, 2025 included $227.3 million in mark-to-market losses and other related charges associated with our investment in Amentum
stock in connection with the Separation Transaction, as well as $40.5 million in income associated with the Company's TSA with Amentum (see Note 14-
Discontinued Operations). The year ended September 26, 2025 included $20.5 million in discounts and expenses associated with the Equity-for-Debt Transaction
(see Note 9- Borrowings and Note 14- Discontinued Operations).
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September 27, 2024

Infrastructure &

Advanced Facilities PA Consulting Total
Revenues from External Customers $ 10,323,255 $ 1,177,686 $ 11,500,941
Direct cost of contracts (1) (7,915,256) (752,929) (8,668,185)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (1) (1,609,624) (185,507) (1,795,131)
Segment Operating Profit $ 798,375 $ 239,250 $ 1,037,625
Restructuring, Transaction and Other Charges @ (192,522)
Amortization of Intangible Assets (152,667)
Total U.S. GAAP Operating Profit $ 692,436
Total Other (Expense) Income, net ©) 84,850
Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Taxes $ 777,286
(1) Direct cost of contracts and SG&A are considered to be si%nificant segment expense categories as amounts align with, or are easily computable
from, the segment-level information regularly provided to the CODM.
) The year ended September 27, 2024 included $163.4 million in restructuring and other charges related to the Separation Transaction (primarily

professional services and employee separation costs) and $6.4 million in restructuring and other charges related to the Company's investment in
PA Consulting (primarily employee separation costs), as well as certain subsidiary level compensation based agreements.

(©) The vear ended Seotember 27. 2024 included $186.9 million in mark-to-market aains associated with our investment in Amentum stock in
connection with the Separation Transaction and a $35.2 million realized gain on interest rate swaps settled during the fourth quarter of fiscal
2024.

September 29, 2023

Infrastructure &

Advanced Facilities PA Consulting Total

Revenues from External Customers $ 9,693,276 $ 1,158,144 $ 10,851,420
Direct cost of contracts () (7,395,838) (744,722) (8,140,560)
Selling, general and administrative expenses () ) (1,563,836) (176,419) (1,740,255)
Segment Operating Profit $ 733,602 $ 237,003 $ 970,605
Restructuring, Transaction and Other Charges ©) (146,891)
Amortization of Intangible Assets (147,230)
Total U.S. GAAP Operating Profit $ 676,484
Total Other (Expense) Income, net (155,509)
Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Taxes $ 520,975

1) Direct cost of contracts and SG&A are considered to be si%nificant segment expense categories as amounts align with, or are easily computable

from, the segment-level information regularly provided to the CODM.
@ In fiscal 2023, I&AF SG&A included approximately $15.0 million in net favorable impacts from cost reductions compared to the prior year period,

which were associated mainly with net favorable impacts during first quarter from changes in employee benefit programs of $41.0 million offset
by approximately $26.0 million in higher spend in company technology platforms and other personnel and corporate cost increases.

®) The year ended September 29, 2023 included $61.1 million in restructuring and other charges related to the Separation Transaction (primarily
professional services and employee separation costs) and $14.3 million, in restructuring and other charges related to the Company's investment
in PA Consulting (primarily employee separation costs), as well as certain subsidiary level compensation based agreements. Additionally, in
fiscal year 2023, there were $46.7 million in charges associated mainly with real estate impairments.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Jacobs Solutions Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Jacobs Solutions Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of September 26, 2025
and September 27, 2024, the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive income, stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended September 26, 2025, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at September 26, 2025 and
September 27, 2024, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 26, 2025, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of September 26, 2025, based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework), and our report dated November 20, 2025 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the
Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included
performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures
that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were communicated or
required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2)
involved our especially challenging, subjective or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate
opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.
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Description of the
Matter

How We Addressed
the Matter in Our
Audit

Description of the
Matter

Revenue Recognition for Certain Fixed-Price Contracts

As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company recognizes contract revenue over time, as
performance obligations are satisfied, using the percentage-of-completion method (an input method) based primarily on
contract costs incurred to date compared to total estimated contract costs. Revenue recognition under this method is
judgmental, as it requires the Company to prepare estimates of total contract revenue and total contract costs, including costs
to complete in-process contracts.

Auditing the Company’s estimates of total contract revenue and costs used to recognize revenue on certain fixed-price
contracts which are larger in size involved significant auditor judgment, as it required the evaluation of subjective factors, such
as assumptions related to estimated labor, material and subcontractor costs. These assumptions involved significant
management judgment, which affects the measurement of revenue recognized by the Company.

We tested the Company’s controls over the estimation process that affect revenue recognized on fixed-price contracts. For
example, we tested controls over management’s monitoring and review of project cost estimates, including the Company’s
procedures to validate the completeness and accuracy of the data used to determine the estimates.

To test the Company’s contract estimates related to revenues recognized on fixed-price projects, our audit procedures
included selecting a sample of projects and, among other procedures, we obtained and inspected related contract
agreements, amendments, and change orders to test the existence of customer arrangements and understand the scope and
pricing of the related projects; observed selected project team status meetings at the Company and interviewed project team
personnel to obtain an understanding of the status of operational performance and progress on the related projects; evaluated
the reasonableness of the Company’s estimated costs to complete by obtaining and analyzing supporting documentation for a
sample of cost estimate components; and compared contract profitability estimates in the current year to historical estimates
and actual performance for the same projects.

Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests

As of September 26, 2025, the balance of redeemable noncontrolling interests relating to the Company’s PA Consulting
subsidiary was $1,018.7 million. As discussed in Note 2 of the consolidated financial statements, the redeemable
noncontrolling interests are subject to remeasurement as of the balance sheet date based on the greater of the redemption
value or the historical value resulting from the original acquisition date fair value plus the impact of any earnings or loss
attribution amounts, including dividends. The redemption value is based on the fair value of PA Consulting, which is
determined using a combination of a discounted cash flow analysis based upon projected financial information and a multiple
of earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.

Auditing the Company’s redeemable noncontrolling interests balance requires significant judgment, as the valuation of the
redemption value includes subjective estimates and assumptions. In particular, the discounted cash flow analysis used in
determining the redemption value is sensitive to significant assumptions such as projections of revenue and earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. These assumptions are forward looking and could be affected by future
economic conditions.
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How We Addressed
the Matter in Our
Audit

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design, and tested the operating effectiveness of controls over the Company’s

determination of the redemption value, including controls over management'’s review of the significant assumptions described
above.

To test the redemption value, our audit procedures included, among others, evaluating the Company's valuation
methodologies, performing recalculations of the model, and testing the significant assumptions described above and the
underlying data used by the Company. We compared the significant assumptions used by management to current industry
trends and historical performance. We performed sensitivity analyses of significant assumptions to evaluate the change in the
redemption value resulting from changes in the significant assumptions. We also involved our valuation specialists to assist in
evaluating the valuation methodologies and certain assumptions used by the Company.

We have served as the Company's auditor since 1987.

Dallas, Texas

November 20, 2025
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Jacobs Solutions Inc.
Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited Jacobs Solutions Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of September 26, 2025, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the
COSO criteria). In our opinion, Jacobs Solutions Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of September 26, 2025, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated
balance sheets of the Company as of September 26, 2025 and September 27, 2024, the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive
income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 26, 2025, and the related notes and our report
dated November 20, 2025 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Dallas, Texas

November 20, 2025
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Exhibit 10.16

JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC.
EXECUTIVE SEVERANCE PLAN
(AS AMENDED JANUARY 29, 2025)

1. Purpose. The purpose of this Jacobs Solutions Inc. Executive Severance Plan, as amended (this “Plan”) is to retain certain senior
executives of the Company by reason of providing appropriate severance benefits and to ensure their continued dedication to their duties,
including in the event of a Change in Control (as defined in Section 24 below).

2. Eligible Participants. Employees participating in the Plan (each, a “Participant”) will be those senior executives who are approved
by the Human Resource and Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Committee”) in its sole discretion and
designated as a Participant. In the Committee’s discretion, Participants may be designated to participate in the Plan with respect to the payments
and benefits under either (or both) of Section 3(a) (“Qualifying Termination — No Change in Control”) or Section 3(b) (“Qualifying Termination After
a Change in Control”), in each case on a standalone, immediate and/or delayed basis.

3. Payments Upon a Qualifying Termination of Employment.

(a) Qualifying Termination — No Change in Control. If, prior to or more than two (2) years following a Change in Control, the
employment of the Participant is terminated under circumstances constituting a Qualifying Termination, then, subject to the Participant’s execution
of a Release as set forth in Section 4 below, the Company shall provide to the Participant:

(i) a lump sum cash payment equal to the result of multiplying the Participant’s applicable Severance Multiple (see Exhibit A
to this Plan, Table 2) by the sum of (x) the Participant’s Base Salary and (y) the Participant’'s Target Annual Incentive Award;

(i) a lump sum cash payment equal to the Participant’s Annual Incentive Award based on actual performance (prorated to the
number of days worked in the fiscal year);

(iii) a lump sum cash payment equal to the result of multiplying the Participant’s applicable Severance Multiple (see Exhibit A
to this Plan, Table 2) by the annual premium that would be payable for the continued receipt of financial planning services which the
Participant receives as of immediately prior to his or her Date of Termination;

(iv) a lump sum cash payment equal to the result of multiplying the Participant’s applicable Severance Multiple (see Exhibit A
to this Plan, Table 2) by the annual COBRA premium that would be payable by the Participant for continued participation in the
Company’s group health plans in which the Participant participates immediately prior to his or her Date of Termination; and

(v) the Participant’'s unvested and outstanding Company equity awards (or equity awards issued to the Participant in
replacement of such Company equity awards in connection with a Change in Control) that are scheduled to vest within the nine (9) month
period following the Date of Termination shall continue to vest in accordance with their original vesting schedule irrespective of the
termination of the Participant’s employment (subject, for the avoidance of doubt, to the satisfaction of any applicable performance
criteria).

(vi) The cash payments specified in paragraphs (i), (iii) and (iv) of this Section 3(a) shall be paid within ninety (90) days
following the Date of Termination; provided that if the full release review and revocation period described in Section 4 of this Plan spans
two




calendar years, then the payment shall be made in the second calendar year. The cash payment specified in paragraph (ii) of this
Section 3(a) shall be paid only after actual performance is determined against the metrics established for the Participant’s applicable line
of business or corporate function for the Annual Incentive Award and will be paid at such time as payments under the Company’s annual
bonus plan are paid to the annual bonus plan participants.

(b) Qualifying Termination After a Change in Control. If, during the two (2)-year period following a Change in Control, the
employment of the Participant is terminated under circumstances constituting a Qualifying Termination, then, subject to the Participant’s execution
of a Release as set forth in Section 4 below, the Company shall provide to the Participant:

(i) a lump sum cash payment equal to the result of multiplying the Participant’s applicable Severance Multiple (see Exhibit A
to this Plan, Table 1) by the sum of (x) the Participant’s Base Salary and (y) the Participant’'s Target Annual Incentive Award;

(i) a lump sum cash payment equal to the Participant’s Annual Incentive Award based on actual performance (prorated to the
number of days worked in the fiscal year);

(iii) a lump sum cash payment equal to the result of multiplying the Participant’s applicable Severance Multiple (see Exhibit A
to this Plan, Table 1) by the annual premium that would be payable for the continued receipt of financial planning services which the
Participant receives as of immediately prior to his or her Date of Termination; and

(iv) a lump sum cash payment equal to the result of multiplying the Participant’s applicable Severance Multiple (see Exhibit A
to this Plan, Table 1) by the annual COBRA premium that would be payable by the Participant for continued participation in the
Company’s group health plans in which the Participant participates immediately prior to his or her Date of Termination.

The cash payments specified in paragraphs (i), (iii) and (iv) of this Section 3(b) shall be paid within ninety (90) days following the Date of
Termination; provided that if the release review and revocation period described in Section 4 of this Plan spans two calendar years, then the
payment shall be made in the second calendar year. The cash payment specified in paragraph (ii) of this Section 3(b) shall be paid only after
actual performance is determined against the metrics established for the Participant’s applicable line of business or corporate function for the
Annual Incentive Award and will be paid at such time as payments under the Company’s annual bonus plan are paid to the annual bonus plan
participants. The treatment of any Company equity awards (or equity awards issued to the Participant in replacement of such Company equity
awards in connection with the Change in Control) that remain outstanding and unvested as of the Date of Termination shall be governed by the
Company’s 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (or any successor plan) and any award agreements thereunder.

(c) Except as otherwise expressly provided pursuant to this Plan, this Plan shall be construed and administered in a manner which
avoids duplication of compensation and benefits which may be provided under any other plan, program, policy or other arrangement or individual
contract or under any statute, rule or regulation. In the event a Participant is covered by any other plan, program, policy, individually negotiated
agreement or other arrangement, in effect as of his or her Date of Termination, that may duplicate the payments and benefits provided for in this
Section 3, the Committee is specifically empowered to reduce or eliminate the duplicative benefits provided for under the Plan.



4. Release. A Participant’s receipt of payments and benefits under Section 3 above will be conditioned on the Participant’'s execution
of a Waiver and General Release of claims in a form acceptable to the Company (a “Release”), which shall be provided to the Participant no later
than ten (10) business days after the Date of Termination and must be executed by the Participant within the forty-five (45) day review period, not
be revoked by the Participant within the seven (7) day revocation period, and become effective by the Participant by the fifty-second (52") day
following Participant’s receipt of the Release.

5. Withholding Taxes. The Company shall withhold from all payments due to the Participant (or his beneficiary or estate) hereunder
all taxes which, by applicable federal, state, local or other law, the Company is required to withhold therefrom.

6. Expenses. If any contest or dispute shall arise under this Plan involving termination of a Participant's employment with the
Company or involving the failure or refusal of the Company to perform fully in accordance with the terms hereof, each party shall be responsible
for its own legal fees and related expenses, if any, incurred in connection with such contest or dispute.

7. No Guarantee of Continued Employment. The Participant agrees and understands that his or her employment with the Company
is at-will. Nothing in this Plan will be deemed to entitle the Participant to continued employment with the Company or its Subsidiaries or affect any
right the Company has to terminate or alter the terms and conditions of the Participant’s employment with the Company.

8. Restrictive Covenants. A Participant’s participation in the Plan is conditioned upon and explicitly subject to the Participant
agreeing to and abiding by the following restrictive covenants:

(a) Confidential Information. The Participant agrees and understands that in the Participant’s position with the Company, the
Participant will be exposed to and will receive information relating to the confidential affairs of the Company and its affiliates, including, without
limitation, technical information, intellectual property, business and marketing plans, strategies, customer information, software, other information
concerning the products, promotions, development, financing, expansion plans, business policies and practices of the Company and its affiliates
and other forms of information considered by the Company and its affiliates to be confidential or in the nature of trade secrets (including, without
limitation, ideas, research and development, know-how, formulas, technical data, designs, drawings, specifications, customer and supplier lists,
pricing and cost information and business and marketing plans and proposals) (collectively, the “Confidential Information”). Confidential
Information shall not include information that is generally known to the public or within the relevant trade or industry other than due to the
Participant’s violation of this Section 8 or disclosure by a third party who is known by the Participant to owe the Company an obligation of
confidentiality with respect to such information. The Participant agrees that at all times during the Participant's employment with the Company
and at all times thereafter, the Participant shall not disclose such Confidential Information, either directly or indirectly, to any individual,
corporation, partnership, limited liability company, association, trust or other entity or organization, including a government or political subdivision
or an agency or instrumentality thereof (each a “Person”) without the prior written consent of the Company. The Participant further agrees to take
all reasonable steps to protect and maintain the confidentiality of the Company’s Confidential Information, including by adhering to the Company
Code of Conduct, policies and training pertaining to the protection of Company confidential, proprietary and trade secret information. In this
regard, Employee agrees not to download, copy or transfer Confidential Information (including to unauthorized external devices, such as a
personal hard drive or thumb
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drive) in violation of such Code of Conduct, policies or training, and further agrees not to undertake any conduct that sabotages the Company’s
business and/or IT systems or which is intended to avoid or which has the effect of avoiding Company IT security and IT security protocols that
pertain to the protection of Confidential Information. This confidentiality covenant has no temporal, geographical or territorial restriction. Upon
termination of the Participant’'s employment with the Company, the Participant shall promptly supply to the Company all property, keys, notes,
memoranda, writings, lists, files, reports, customer lists, correspondence, tapes, disks, cards, surveys, maps, logs, machines, technical data and
any other tangible product or document which has been produced by, received by or otherwise submitted to the Participant during or prior to the
Participant’'s employment with the Company, and any copies thereof in the Participant’s (or capable of being reduced to the Participant’s)
possession.

Notwithstanding the foregoing and subject to the Participant’s protected rights described in this Section 8(a), the Participant may
disclose or use such Confidential Information only to the extent that disclosure or use thereof is required (i) in the course of Participant's
employment with the Company and consistent with the promotion of its best interests or (ii) by a court, regulatory authority or any U.S. federal,
state or local governmental or law enforcement branch, agency or entity (collectively, a “Governmental Entity”); provided that the Participant
promptly notifies the Company’s Legal Department and cooperates fully with the Company in obtaining any available protective order or the
equivalent thereof prior to the disclosure of such information; provided, further that any Confidential Information shall continue to be subject to
this Section 8 for other purposes to the extent it is subject to a protective order or the equivalent.

In addition, nothing herein or in any other agreement between the Participant and the Company shall (i) restrict or prohibit the Participant
(or the Participant’s attorney) from initiating communications directly with, responding to any inquiries from, providing truthful testimony before,
providing Confidential Information to, reporting possible violations of law or regulation to, or from filing a claim or assisting with an investigation
directly with a self-regulatory authority or a Governmental Entity, including the Securities and Exchange Commission, or from making other
disclosures that are protected under the whistleblower provisions of any applicable federal or state law or regulation or (ii) preclude the
Participant from disclosing or discussing information lawfully acquired about wages, hours or other terms and conditions of employment if used
by the Participant for purposes protected by Section 7 of the National Labor Relations Act such as joining or forming a union, engaging in
collective bargaining or engaging in other concerted activity for the mutual aid or protection of employees. The Participant recognizes that, in
connection with any such activity, the Participant must inform such authority that the information the Participant is providing is confidential.
Despite the foregoing, the Participant is not permitted to reveal to any third party, including any self-regulatory authority or Governmental Entity,
information the Participant came to learn during the Participant’s service to the Company that is protected from disclosure by any applicable
privilege, including but not limited to the attorney-client privilege or attorney work product doctrine. The Company does not waive any
applicable privileges or the right to continue to protect its privileged attorney-client information, attorney work product, and other privileged
information.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Participant agrees to waive the Participant’s right to recover monetary damages in connection with
any charge, complaint or lawsuit filed by the Participant or anyone else on the Participant’s behalf (whether involving a governmental entity or
not); provided that the Participant is not agreeing to waive, and this Plan shall not be read as requiring the Participant to waive, any right the
Participant may have to receive a bounty or an award for information provided to any Governmental Entity. Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1833,
Participant acknowledges that Participant will not be held criminally or civilly liable under any
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federal or state trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret if he/she (i) makes such disclosure in confidence to a federal, state, or local
government official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney and such disclosure is made solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating
a suspected violation of law; or (ii) such disclosure was made in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding if such
filing is made under seal. Participant understands that if Participant files a lawsuit for retaliation by the Company for reporting a suspected
violation of law, Participant may disclose the trade secret to Participant’s attorney and use the trade secret information in the court proceeding if
Participant (x) files any document containing the trade secret under seal, and (y) does not disclose the trade secret, except pursuant to court
order. Nothing in this Plan, or any other Plan that Participant has with the Company, is intended to conflict with 18 U.S.C. § 1833 or create
liability for disclosures of trade secrets that are expressly allowed by such section.

(b) Non-Competition. If a Participant’s employment is terminated in accordance with Section 3 of this Plan, then, during the one-year
period immediately following such Participant’'s Date of Termination (the “Restricted Period”), such Participant shall not, directly or indirectly,
own, manage, operate, join, control, participate in, consult with, render services for, be employed by or participate in the ownership, management,
operation or control of, or be connected in any manner with, including, without limitation, holding any position as a stockholder, director, officer,
consultant, independent contractor, employee, partner, or investor in, any Restricted Enterprise (as defined below); provided, that, in no event
shall (i) ownership by the Participant of two percent (2%) or less of the outstanding securities of any class of any issuer whose securities are
registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, standing alone, be prohibited by this Section 8(b), so long as the Participant
does not have, or exercise, any rights to manage or operate the business of such issuer other than rights as a shareholder thereof or (ii) being
employed by an entity, standing alone, be prohibited by this Section 8(b), so long as the entity has more than one discrete and readily
distinguishable part of its business and the Participant’s duties are not at or involving the part of the entity’s business that is actively engaged in a
Restricted Enterprise. For purposes of this paragraph, “Restricted Enterprise” shall mean any Person that is engaged, directly or indirectly, in (or
intends or proposes to engage in, or has been organized for the purpose of engaging in) a business that is in competition with the Business (as
defined below) or any other business of the Company or any of its affiliates in any country or territory in which the Company or any of its affiliates
markets any of its services or products or has plans to begin marketing any of its services or products in such country or territory. During the
Restricted Period, upon request of the Company, the Participant shall notify the Company of the Participant’s then-current employment status.
For purposes of this Plan, “Business” shall mean the business of engineering, construction, consulting, design, design-build, procurement,
operations and management, program management and technical services for national and local governments and/or private clients. This Section
8(b) will not apply to any Participant based out of any jurisdiction which, by applicable law, prohibits a non-compete obligation of the type set out
in this Section 8(b).

(c) Non-Solicitation. During the Restricted Period, a Participant shall not, directly or indirectly (including through another entity), (i)
induce or attempt to induce any employee or independent contractor of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to leave the employ of the
Company or such Subsidiary, or in any way interfere with the relationship between the Company and any of its Subsidiaries and any employee or
independent contractor thereof, (ii) hire any person who was an employee or independent contractor of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
within 12 months prior to the date of hire, or (iii) solicit or attempt to solicit or induce or attempt to induce any joint venture partner, customer,
supplier, licensee or other business relation (including teaming arrangements) of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to transact business with
a Restricted Enterprise or to cease doing business with the Company or such Subsidiary or in any way interfere



with the relationship between any such joint venture partner, customer, supplier, licensee or business relation and the Company and any

not apply to that Participant.

(d) Non-Disparagement. To the fullest extent permitted by law, in the event a Participant's employment is terminated in accordance
with Section 3 of this Plan, the Participant shall not, after the Date of Termination, make any statement that would libel, slander, criticize, ridicule
or disparage the Company, any of its Subsidiaries or their respective past or present officers, directors, employees, managers, members or
agents. Nothing herein shall prevent such Participant from responding accurately and fully to any question, inquiry or request for information
when required by legal process or prohibit Participant from making statements or engaging in any other activities or conduct protected by the
National Labor Relations Act. For the avoidance of doubt, nothing herein shall be construed to prevent or limit Participant from recovering a
bounty or award for providing information to any Governmental Entity concerning any suspected violation of law.

(e) Enforcement. If, at the time of enforcement of this Section 8, a court holds that the restrictions stated herein are unreasonable
under circumstances then existing, the parties hereto agree that the maximum duration, scope or geographical area reasonable under such
circumstances shall be substituted for the stated period, scope or area and that the court shall be allowed to revise the restrictions contained
herein to cover the maximum duration, scope and area permitted by law. Because each Participant’s services are unique, the parties hereto
agree that money damages would be an inadequate remedy for any breach of this Section 8. Therefore, in the event a breach or threatened
breach of this Section 8, the Company and its Subsidiaries and any of their respective successors and assigns may, in addition to other rights and
remedies existing in their favor, apply to any court of competent jurisdiction for specific performance and/or injunctive or other relief in order to
enforce, or prevent any violations of, the provisions hereof (without posting a bond or other security).

) Recoupment; Cessation of Obligations. If a Participant materially breaches Section 8(a), 8(b), 8(c) or 8(d) hereof during the
Restricted Period, the Company will have the right to recoup from the Participant all payments and benefits (or the value thereof as determined
by the Committee in its sole discretion) provided to such Participant under this Plan and any obligation of the Company to make or provide any

payments or benefits under this Plan will cease.

(9) Extension of Restricted Period. The Restricted Period shall be tolled for any period during which the Participant is in breach of
any of Sections 8(b)_or (c) hereof.

9. Section 280G of the Code.

(a) In the event that any payments or benefits (whether under this Plan or otherwise) payable to a Participant (i) constitute “parachute
payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code, and (ii) but for this Section 9, would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section
4999 of the Code, then such payments and benefits will be either (x) delivered in full, or (y) delivered as to such lesser extent that would result in
no portion of such payments and benefits being subject to excise tax under Section 4999 of the Code, whichever of the foregoing amounts, taking
into account the applicable federal, state and local income and employment taxes and the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (and
any equivalent state or local excise taxes), results in the receipt by the Participant on an after-tax basis, of the greatest amount of benefits,
notwithstanding that all or some portion of such payments and benefits may be taxable under Section 4999 of the Code. Any reduction in
payments and/or benefits required by this provision will occur in the following order: (i)



reduction of cash payments; (ii) reduction of vesting acceleration of equity awards; and (iii) reduction of other benefits paid or provided to
Executive. In the event that acceleration of vesting of equity awards is to be reduced, such acceleration of vesting will be cancelled in the reverse
order of the date of grant for equity awards. If two or more equity awards are granted on the same date, each award will be reduced on a pro-rata
basis.

(b) All determinations required to be made under this Section 9, including the reduction payments hereunder and the assumptions to
be utilized in arriving at such determinations, will be made by a public accounting firm that is retained by the Company as of the date immediately
prior to the Change in Control (the “Accounting_Firm”) which will provide detailed supporting calculations both to the Company and the
Participant within fifteen (15) business days of the receipt of notice from the Company or the Participant that there has been a Qualifying
Termination that may result in a payment that may be subject to Section 4999 of the Code, or such earlier time as is requested by the Company,
and whose determination will be conclusive and binding upon the Participant and the Company for all purposes. For purposes of making the
calculations required by this Section 9, the Accounting Firm may make reasonable assumptions and approximations concerning applicable taxes
and may rely on reasonable, good faith interpretations concerning the application of Sections 280G and 4999 of the Code. The Company and
Executive agree to furnish to the Accountants such information and documents as the Accountants may reasonably request in order to make a
determination under this provision. The Company will bear all costs the Accountants may reasonably incur in connection with any calculations
contemplated by this provision. Any determinations by the Accounting Firm with respect to whether any payments or benefits are subject to
reduction under this Section 9 will be binding upon the Company and the Participant.

10. Successors; _Binding Agreement. This Plan will survive any Change in Control, and the provisions of this Plan will be binding upon
the surviving corporation, which will be treated as the Company hereunder. The benefits provided under this Plan shall inure to the benefit of and
be enforceable by the Participant’s personal or legal representatives, executors, administrators, successors, heirs, distributees, devisees and
legatees. If the Participant dies while any amounts would be payable to the Participant hereunder had the Participant continued to live, all such
amounts, unless otherwise provided herein, shall be paid in accordance with the terms of this Plan to such person or persons appointed in writing
by the Participant to receive such amounts or, if no person is so appointed, to the Participant’s estate.

11. Notice. (a) For purposes of this Plan, all notices and other communications required or permitted hereunder must be in writing and
will be deemed to have been duly given when delivered or five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail, certified and return receipt
requested, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

If to the Participant: the address listed as the Participant’s address in the Company’s personnel files.
If to the Company:

Jacobs Solutions Inc.
Attention: General Counsel
1999 Bryan Street

Suite 3500

Dallas, Texas 75201



or to such other address as either party may have furnished to the other in writing in accordance herewith, except that notices of change of
address shall be effective only upon receipt.

(a) A written notice of the Participant’s Date of Termination by the Company or the Participant, as the case may be, to the other, will
(i) indicate the specific termination provision in this Plan relied upon, (ii) specify the termination date (which date, for Qualifying Termination — No
Change in Control and Qualifying Termination After Change in Control terminations, shall be not less than thirty (30) nor more than forty (40) days
after the giving of such notice) and (iii) to the extent the Participant is serving a notice of termination claiming Good Reason, set forth in
reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of the Participant’'s employment for Good Reason. The
failure by the Participant or the Company to set forth in such notice any fact or circumstance which contributes to a showing of Good Reason or
Cause does not waive any right of the Participant or the Company hereunder or preclude the Participant or the Company from asserting such fact
or circumstance in enforcing the Participant’s or the Company’s rights hereunder. For the avoidance of any doubt, for any Cause termination, the
Company is not obligated to give any advance notice of the Participant’'s Date of Termination.

12. Full Settlement; Resolution of Disputes and Costs.

(a) In no event will the Participant be obligated to seek other employment or take other action by way of mitigation of the amounts
payable to the Participant under any of the provisions of this Plan and such amounts shall not be reduced whether or not the Participant obtains
other employment.

(b) The parties will use good faith efforts to resolve any controversy, dispute or claim arising out of, or relating to this Plan or the
breach thereof. If, despite their good faith efforts, the parties are unable to resolve such controversy, dispute or claim through their own efforts,
the parties shall attempt to resolve such disputes through mediation, except that this requirement will not apply to any controversy, claim or
dispute under or relating to Section 8 of this Plan. If such mediation is unsuccessful, or if a claim relates to Section 8 of this Plan or relates to
Section 18 of this Plan (but provided only if the Participant has fully and timely exhausted the administrative process set out in Section 18 of this
Plan), such controversy, dispute or claim shall be settled exclusively by arbitration in Texas by one neutral arbitrator (selected by mutual
agreement of the parties) in accordance with JAMS Employment Arbitration Rules and Procedures (“JAMS Rules”) and subject to the Federal
Arbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. Section 1, et. seq. A copy of the JAMS Rules may be found at http://www.jamsadr.com/rules-employment-arbitration/ or
by searching the internet for “JAMS Employment Arbitration Rules”. Judgment may be entered on the arbitrator’'s award in any court having
jurisdiction. Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, any arbitrator who adjudicates any dispute, controversy or claim arising between
a Participant and the Company, or any of their delegates or successors, in respect of any determination by the Company, or any of its delegates
or successors, regarding a Participant’'s Qualifying Termination that occurs after a Change in Control, will apply a de novo standard of review to
any determinations made by such delegate or successor of the Company. Such de novo standard shall apply notwithstanding the grant of full
discretion hereunder to any such delegate or successor of the Company or characterization of any such decision by such delegate or successor
of the Company as final, binding or conclusive on any party.

13. Employment with Subsidiaries. Employment with the Company for purposes of this Plan shall include employment with any
Subsidiary.




14. Survival. The respective obligations and benefits afforded to the Company and the Participant as provided in Sections 3 (to the
extent that payments or benefits are owed as a result of a termination of employment that occurs during the term of this Plan), 4, 5, 6 and 8 shall
survive the termination of this Plan.

15. GOVERNING LAW; VALIDITY. EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THIS PLAN IS SUBJECT TO ERISA, THE INTERPRETATION,
CONSTRUCTION AND PERFORMANCE OF THIS PLAN SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED AND ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE, WITHOUT REGARD TO THE PRINCIPLE OF CONFLICTS OF LAWS, AND
APPLICABLE FEDERAL LAWS. THE INVALIDITY OR UNENFORCEABILITY OF ANY PROVISION OF THIS PLAN SHALL NOT AFFECT THE
VALIDITY OR ENFORCEABILITY OF ANY OTHER PROVISION OF THIS PLAN, WHICH OTHER PROVISIONS SHALL REMAIN IN FULL
FORCE AND EFFECT. FOR THE AVOIDANCE OF DOUBT, ANY ARBITRATOR SELECTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 12 OF THIS
PLAN SHALL BE BOUND BY AND APPLY DELAWARE’S STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS IN RESOLVING ANY CONTROVERSY, DISPUTE OR
CLAIM ARISING UNDER THIS PLAN.

16. Amendment and Termination. The Committee may amend or terminate the Plan at any time without the consent of the
Participants; provided, however, that Participants must be given at least six (6) months’ notice of amendments that are adverse to the interests of
the Participants, including the termination of a Participant’s participation in the Plan, and provided, further, that any termination or amendments to
the Plan that are adverse to the interests of any Participant and made in anticipation of a Change in Control will give a Participant the right to
enforce his or her rights pursuant to this Section. Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the period commencing on a Change in Control and
ending on the second anniversary of the Change in Control, no Participant’s participation hereunder may be terminated and the Plan may not be
terminated or amended in any manner which is materially adverse to the interests of any Participant without the prior written consent of such
Participant. Further notwithstanding the foregoing provisions in this Section 16, a Participant’s participation in the Plan shall immediately cease,
irrespective of timing, if the Participant voluntarily resigns from the Company or if the Participant voluntarily retires from the Company.

17. Interpretation and Administration. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee (or any successor committee); provided that
the Board may act in lieu of the Committee. The Committee (or any successor committee) will have the authority (i) to exercise all of the powers
granted to it under the Plan, (ii) to construe, interpret and implement the Plan, (iii) to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating
to the Plan, (iv) to make all determinations necessary or advisable in administration of the Plan, (v) to correct any defect, supply any omission
and reconcile any inconsistency in the Plan, and (vi) to delegate its responsibilities and authority hereunder to a subcommittee of the Committee
or an individual executive or collection of executives of the Company. Actions of the Board or the Committee (or any successor committee) shall
be taken by a majority vote of its members.

18. Claims and Appeals. Participants may submit claims for benefits by giving notice to the Company pursuant to Section 11 of this
Plan. If a Participant believes that he or she has not received coverage or benefits to which he or she is entitled under the Plan, the Participant
may notify the General Counsel of the Company (or the Chief Administrative Officer of the Company where the Participant submitting the claim is
the General Counsel) in writing of a claim for coverage or benefits. If the claim for coverage or benefits is denied in whole or in part, the General
Counsel (or the Chief Administrative Officer, as applicable) shall notify the applicant in writing of such denial within thirty (30) days (which may be
extended to sixty (60) days under special circumstances), with such notice setting forth: (i) the specific reasons for the denial; (ii) the Plan
provisions upon which the denial is based; (iii) any additional material or information necessary for the applicant to perfect his or her




claim; and (iv) the procedures for requesting a review of the denial. Upon a denial of a claim by the General Counsel (or the Chief Administrative
Officer, as applicable), the Participant may: (i) request a review of the denial by the Committee or, where review authority has been so delegated,
by such other person or entity as may be designated by the Committee for this purpose; (ii) review any Plan documents relevant to his or her
claim; and (iii) submit issues and comments to the Committee or its delegate that are relevant to the review. Any request for review must be made
in writing and received by the Committee or its delegate within sixty (60) days of the date the applicant received notice of the initial denial, unless
special circumstances require an extension of time for processing. The Committee or its delegate will make a written ruling on the applicant’s
request for review setting forth the reasons for the decision and the Plan provisions upon which the denial, if appropriate, is based. This written
ruling shall be made within thirty (30) days of the date the Committee or its delegate receives the applicant’s request for review unless special
circumstances require an extension of time for processing, in which case a decision will be rendered as soon as possible, but not later than sixty
(60) days after receipt of the request for review. All extensions of time permitted by this Section 18 will be permitted at the sole discretion of the
Committee or its delegate. If the Committee does not provide the Participant with written notice of the denial of his or her appeal within sixty (60)
days after receipt of the request for review by the Committee or its delegate, the Participant’'s claim shall be deemed denied. Any arbitration
relating to a benefit determination under Section 18 of this Plan must be initiated no later than 18 months after the date the claimant first receives
notice of the Committee’s or its delegate’s benefit determination.

19. Type of Plan. This Plan is intended to be, and shall be interpreted as an unfunded employee welfare plan under Section 3(1) of
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”) and Section 2520.104-24 of the Department of Labor Regulations,
maintained primarily for the purpose of providing employee welfare benefits, to the extent that it provides welfare benefits, and under
Sections 201, 301 and 401 of ERISA, as a plan that is unfunded and maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation, to
the extent that it provides such compensation, in each case for a select group of management or highly compensated employees (i.e., a “top hat”
plan).

20. Non-Assignability. Benefits under the Plan may not be assigned by the Participant. The terms and conditions of the Plan shall be
binding on the successors and assigns of the Company.

21. Section 409A.

(a) To the extent a Participant would otherwise be entitled to any payment or benefit that under this Plan, or any plan or arrangement
of the Company or its affiliates, constitutes “deferred compensation” subject to Section 409A and that if paid or provided during the six (6) months
beginning on the Date of Termination of a Participant's employment would be subject to the Section 409A additional tax because the Participant is
a “specified employee” (within the meaning of Section 409A and as determined by the Company) the payment or benefit will be paid or provided
(or will commence being paid or provided, as applicable) to the Participant on the earlier of the first day of the seventh (7th) month following the
Participant’'s Date of Termination or the Participant's death. In addition, any payment or benefit due upon a termination of the Participant’s
employment that represents a “deferral of compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A shall be paid or provided to the Participant only
upon a “separation from service” as defined in Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h). Each severance payment made under this Plan shall be
deemed to be a separate payment, and amounts payable under Section 3 of this Plan shall be deemed not to be a “deferral of compensation”
subject to Section 409A to the extent provided in the exceptions in Treasury Regulation Sections 1.409A-1(b)(4) (“short-term deferrals”) and (b)(9)
(“separation pay
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plans,” including the exception under subparagraph (iii)) and other applicable provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1 through A-6.

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Plan or elsewhere, in the event that a Participant waives the provisions of another
severance or change in control agreement or arrangement to participate in this Plan and such participation in this Plan is later determined to be a
“substitution” (within the meaning of Section 409A) for the benefits under such agreement or arrangement, then any payment or benefit under this
Plan that such Participant becomes entitled to receive during the remainder of the waived term of such agreement or arrangement shall be
payable in accordance with the time and form of payment provisions of such agreement or arrangement.

22. Certain Reductions; Recoupment. Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, in no event shall any payment or benefit
under this Plan be paid, provided or accrued, if any such payment, provision or accrual would be in violation of applicable law, rule or regulation
(“Applicable Law”). In addition, to the extent that any provision of Applicable Law or any recoupment policy or practice of the Company as in
effect from time to time requires any payments or benefits paid (or provided or to be paid or provided) to a Participant to be forfeited or recouped
from the Participant, each such payment or benefit shall be subject to forfeiture or recoupment, as applicable, and such Participant’s right to
receive or retain each such payment or benefit shall terminate.

23. Effective Date. The Plan, as amended, shall be effective as of [], 2024.
24. Definitions. As used in this Plan, the following terms shall have the respective meanings set forth below:

(a) “Annual Incentive Award” means the annual cash incentive bonus awarded to a Participant by the Company (or its affiliates)
from time to time.

(b) “Base Salary” means the Participant’s annual rate of base salary as in effect on the Participant's Date of Termination (or, if
greater, the highest annual rate of base salary during the twelve-month period immediately prior to the Participant’'s Date of Termination).

(c) “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company and, after a Change in Control, the “board of directors” of the surviving
corporation.

(d) “Cause” means the Company’s termination of the Participant’'s employment with the Company following the occurrence of any
one or more of the following:

(i) The Participant is convicted of, or pleads guilty or nolo contendere to, a felony;

(i) The Participant willfully and continually fails to substantially perform the Participant’s duties with the Company (other than
any such failure resulting from the Participant’s incapacity due to physical or mental illness) after a written demand for substantial
performance is delivered to the Participant by the Chief Executive Officer (or, in the case of the Chief Executive Officer, by the Board)
which specifically identifies the manner in which the Board or the Chief Executive Officer, as applicable, believes that the Participant has
not substantially performed his or her duties;

(iii) The Participant willfully engages in conduct that is materially injurious to the Company or its affiliates, monetarily or
otherwise;
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(iv) The Participant commits an act of gross misconduct in connection with the performance of the Participant’s duties to the
Company;

(v) The Participant’s willful violation of any material Company policy; or

(vi) The Participant materially breaches any employment, confidentiality, restrictive covenant or other similar agreement
between the Company and the Participant.

(e) “Change in Control” means the occurrence of any one of the following events:

(i) during any period of not more than 24 months, individuals who constitute the Board as of the beginning of the period (the
“Incumbent Directors”) cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Board, provided that any person becoming a director
subsequent to the beginning of such period, whose election or nomination for election was approved by a vote of at least two-thirds of the
Incumbent Directors then on the Board (either by a specific vote or by approval of the proxy statement of the Company in which such
person is named as a nominee for director, without written objection to such nomination) will be an Incumbent Director; provided,
however, that no individual initially elected or nominated as a director of the Company as a result of an actual or publicly threatened
election contest with respect to directors or as a result of any other actual or publicly threatened solicitation of proxies by or on behalf of
any person other than the Board will be deemed to be an Incumbent Director;

(i) any “person” (as such term is defined in Section 3(a)(9) of the Exchange Act and as used in Sections 13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2)
of the Exchange Act), is or becomes a “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of
securities of the Company representing 35% or more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then-outstanding securities eligible
not be deemed to be a Change in Control by virtue of the ownership, or acquisition, of Company Voting Securities: (A) by the Company,
(B) by any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Company, (C) by any underwriter temporarily holding
securities pursuant to an offering of such securities or (D) pursuant to a Non-Qualifying Transaction (as defined in paragraph (c) of this
definition);

(iii) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, statutory share exchange or similar form of corporate transaction involving
the Company that requires the approval of the Company’s stockholders, whether for such transaction or the issuance of securities in the
transaction (a “Business Combination”), unless immediately following such Business Combination: (A) 50% or more of the total voting
power of (x) the entity resulting from such Business Combination (the “Surviving_Entity”), or (y) if applicable, the ultimate parent
corporation that directly or indirectly has beneficial ownership of at least 95% of the voting power, is represented by Company Voting
Securities that were outstanding immediately prior to such Business Combination (or, if applicable, is represented by shares into which
such Company Voting Securities were converted pursuant to such Business Combination), and such voting power among the holders
thereof is in substantially the same proportion as the voting power of such Company Voting Securities among the holders thereof
immediately prior to the Business Combination, (B) no person (other than any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or
maintained by the Surviving Entity or the parent), is or becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 35% or more of the total
voting power of the outstanding voting securities eligible to elect directors of the parent (or, if there is no parent,
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the Surviving Entity) and (C) at least a majority of the members of the board of directors of the parent (or, if there is no parent, the
Surviving Entity) following the consummation of the Business Combination were Incumbent Directors at the time of the Board’s approval
of the execution of the initial agreement providing for such Business Combination (any Business Combination which satisfies all of the
criteria specified in (A), (B) and (C) of this paragraph (c) will be deemed to be a “Non-Qualifying Transaction”); or

(iv) the consummation of a sale of 50% or more of the Company’s assets (other than to an affiliate of the Company); or
(v) the Company’s stockholders approve a plan of complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Control will not be deemed to occur solely because any person acquires beneficial ownership
of more than 30% of the Company Voting Securities as a result of the acquisition of Company Voting Securities by the Company which reduces
the number of Company Voting Securities outstanding; provided that if after such acquisition by the Company such person becomes the
beneficial owner of additional Company Voting Securities that increases the percentage of outstanding Company Voting Securities beneficially
owned by such person, a Change in Control will then occur.

(f) “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
(9) “Company” means Jacobs Solutions Inc.
(h) “‘Date of Termination” means (i) the effective date on which the Participant's employment by the Company terminates as

specified in a prior written notice by the Company or the Participant, as the case may be, to the other, delivered pursuant to Section 11 or (ii) if the
Participant’s employment by the Company terminates by reason of death, the date of death of the Participant.

(i) “Disability” means termination of the Participant’s employment by the Company due to the Participant’s long term disability under
the terms of the long term disability plan of the Company, in effect on the day in question, whether or not the Participant is covered by such plan.

0 “Good Reason” means, with respect to any Participant, the occurrence of any of the following events without the Participant’s
written consent:

(i) a material reduction and adverse change in the position, duties or responsibilities of the Participant from those in effect
immediately prior to such change;

(i) a reduction by the Company in the Participant’s rate of annual base salary or material reduction in annual target bonus
opportunity, as in effect on the Effective Date or as the same may be increased from time to time thereafter (other than a reduction of less
than 10% that is applicable to all employees generally);

(iii) a relocation of the Participant’'s primary work location to a distance of more than fifty (50) miles from its location as of
immediately prior to such change; or

(iv) a material breach by the Company (or a successor) of this Plan or any employment agreement between the Company and
the Participant.
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provided, however, that such event will not constitute Good Reason under this Plan unless (1) the Participant provides notice to the
Company within thirty (30) days following the initial existence of an event constituting Good Reason, (2) the Company does not remedy such
event (if remediation is possible) within thirty (30) days following the Company’s receipt of notice of such event, and (3) the Participant separates
from service with the Company within ninety (90) days following the initial existence of such an event constituting Good Reason.

(k) “Qualifying_Termination” means a termination of the Participant’'s employment with the Company (i) by the Company other than
for Cause or (ii) during the two (2) year period following a Change in Control, by the Participant for Good Reason. Termination of the Participant’s
employment on account of death, Disability, by the Company for Cause, by the Participant other than for Good Reason or by the Participant for
Good Reason outside of the two (2) year period following a Change in Control shall not be treated as a Qualifying Termination. Notwithstanding
the preceding sentence, the death of the Participant after notice of termination other than for Cause in accordance with subsection (i) of the first
sentence herein, or after notice of termination for Good Reason in accordance with subsection (ii) of the first sentence herein, has been validly
provided shall be deemed to be a Qualifying Termination.

() “Subsidiary” means any corporation or other entity in which the Company has a direct or indirect ownership interest of 50% or
more of the total combined voting power of the then outstanding securities or interests of such corporation or other entity entitled to vote generally
in the election of directors (or members of any similar governing body) or in which the Company has the right to receive 50% or more of the
distribution of profits or 50% of the assets or liquidation or dissolution.

(m) “Section 409A” means Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the final Treasury Regulations
issued thereunder.

(n) “Severance Multiple” means, for each Participant, the multiple set forth in the applicable table on Exhibit A hereto corresponding
to such Participant’s participation level as determined by the Committee and communicated to the Participant by the Company.

(o) “Target Annual Incentive Award” means a Participant’s target Annual Incentive Award for the fiscal year in which the
Participant’'s Date of Termination occurs (or, if greater, the Participant’s target Annual Incentive Award immediately preceding the Change in
Control); provided, however, that in the event no target Annual Incentive Award has been established for the Participant for either the fiscal year
of termination or the period immediately preceding the Change in Control, “Target Annual Incentive Award” shall mean the average Annual
Incentive Award paid to the Participant for the three most recently completed fiscal years before the year of termination.
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EXHIBIT A

SEVERANCE MULTIPLES

Table 1 — Two Year Period Post-Change in Control Qualifying Termination

Severance Multiple
Participation Level
articipation Love Base Salary Annual Incentive
Chief Executive Officer Level 2 2
Executive Level (non-CEO) 1 1

Table 2 - Non-Change in Control Qualifying Termination

Severance Multiple

Participation Level Base Salary plus Target Annual Incentive

Award

Chief Executive Officer Level

1.5

Executive Level (non-CEO)

1




Exhibit 21

JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC.
LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following table sets forth all subsidiaries of the Company but may not include those subsidiaries that, when considered in the aggregate, would
not constitute a significant subsidiary.

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., a corporation of Delaware.................ccocceviiniiiiiininnnn, 100.00%
Jacobs Government Services Company, a corporation of California 100.00%
Blacklynx, Inc., a corporation of Delaware...............c.oviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 100.00%
Knack Works, Inc., a corporation of Virginia..............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiinis 100.00%
Mainstem LLC, a limited liability company of Maryland.................ccooiiiiiiinninne 100.00%
Jacobs Engineering Inc., a corporation of Delaware 100.00%
Jacobs Engineering and Construction (Thailand) Limited, a corporation of Thailand.... 99.98%
Jacobs Group Investments Australia s Pty Ltd., a corporation of Australia................. 100.00%
Jacobs Australia Holdings Company Pty Ltd., a corporation of Australia 100.00%
Sinclair Knight Merz Management Pty Ltd., a corporation of Australia 100.00%
Jacobs Group Australia Holdings Ltd., a corporation of Australia 100.00%
Jacobs Group (Australia) Pty Ltd., a corporation of Australia 100.00%
Aquenta Consulting Pty Ltd., a corporation of Australia.................... 100.00%
Jacobs E&C Australia Pty Ltd., a corporation of Australia 100.00%
Jacobs Project Management Australia Pty Ltd., a corporation of Australia 100.00%
Jacobs Architecture (Australia) Pty Ltd., a corporation of Australia 100.00%
Jacobs (Thailand) Co., Ltd., a corporation of Thailand 49.00%
Jacobs Projects (Philippines) Inc., a corporation of the Philippines 100.00%
Sinclair Knight Merz (Ireland) Ltd., a corporation of the Republic of Ireland.. 100.00%
Jacobs (NZ) Holdings Limited, a corporation of New Zealand 100.00%
Jacobs New Zealand Limited, a corporation of New Zealand........... 100.00%
PT Jacobs Group Indonesia, a corporation of Indonesia 99.50%
Sinclair Knight Merz (Kenya) Limited, a corporation of Kenya.......... 100.00%
Sinclair Knight Merz International Holdings LLC, a limited liability company of 100.00%
DeIAWAIE. .. ..
Jacobs Engineering Group Malaysia Sdn Bhd, a corporation of Malaysia... 100.00%
Perunding Mahir Bersatu Sdn Bhd, a corporation of Malaysia... .. 100.00%
Jacobs Engineering Services Sdn Bhd, a corporation of Malaysia... 100.00%
Jacobs Consulting Services Sdn Bhd, a corporation of Malaysia... 100.00%
Sinclair Knight Merz (Hong Kong) Limited, a corporation of Hong Kong ... 100.00%
Sinclair Knight Merz International (Hong Kong) Ltd, a corporation of Hong Kong 100.00%
Jacobs Korea Limited, a Republic of Korea corporation................cc.cooiiiiiiiiinanne. 100.00%
CODE International Assurance Ltd., a corporation of Nevada 100.00%
CODE Il International Assurance Ltd., a corporation of Vermont............................. 100.00%
Jacobs NL Holdings B.V., a corporation of the Netherlands..........................ooeeni. 100.00%
Jacobs Europe Holdco Limited, a corporation of England and Wales 100.00%
Jacobs Belgium SRL, a corporation of Belgium...............coocoiiiiiiiiinn 100.00%
Jacobs NL B.V., a corporation of the Netherlands.................................... 100.00%




Jacobs Solutions Hellas S.A., a Societas Europaea of Greece..............

100.00%

Jacobs Services Suomi Oy, a limited liability company of Finland................ 100.00%
Jacobs Danmark ApS, a Denmark corporation................coovviiiiiiiininn 100.00%
Jacobs UK Holdings Limited, a corporation of England and Wales 100.00%
Jacobs Switzerland GmbH, a corporation of Switzerland 100.00%
Jacobs U.K. Limited, a corporation of England and Wales 100.00%
Jacobs Solutions India Private Ltd., a corporation of India 100.00%
Jacobs GMBH, a corporation of Germany..............c..ccoevueeenenn. 100.00%
Jacobs One Limited, a corporation of Scotland 100.00%
Jacobs China Limited, a Hong Kong corporation 100.00%
BEAR Scotland Limited, a corporation of Scotland 25.00%
Growing Concern Scotland Limited, a corporation of 100.00%
England and Wales...........ccoiuiiiiiiiiiiieee,
Ringway Jacobs Limited, a corporation of England and Wales 50.00%
JacobsGIBB Limited, a corporation of England and Wales 100.00%
Jacobs Engineering Ireland Limited, a corporation of the Republic of Ireland 100.00%
Jacobs ltalia, SpA, a corporation of Italy 100.00%
Jacobs International Limited, a corporation of the Republic of Ireland 100.00%
Jacobs Brazil Limited Inc. a corporation of Texas 100.00%
JEG Acquisition Company Limited, a corporation of England and Wales 100.00%
Defence Contractor Management and Operations Limited, a corporation of England 24.50%
andWales...............oooeiiin.
Jacobs Puerto Rico Inc., a corporation of Puerto Rico 100.00%
Jacobs Holdings Singapore Pte. Limited, a corporation of Singapore 100.00%
Jacobs International Consultants Pte. Ltd. a corporation of Singapore................ 100.00%
Jacobs Canada Holding Company, a corporation of California............................... 100.00%
Jacobs Consultancy Canada Inc., a corporation of Canada..................c..ccoeeeenee 100.00%
Jacobs Advisers, Inc., a corporation of California 100.00%
Jacobs Civil Consultants Inc., a corporation of New York 100.00%
Jacobs Engineering New York Inc., a corporation of New York 100.00%
Iffland Kavanagh Waterbury, P.L.L.C., a limited liability company of New York 100.00%
Jacobs Project Management Co., a corporation Delaware 100.00%
JE Associates, Inc., a corporation of Missouri 100.00%
LeighFisher Inc., a corporation of Delaware 100.00%
LeighFisher Canada Inc., a corporation of Canada 100.00%
LeighFisher Ltd., a corporation of England and Wales 100.00%
KlingStubbins Inc., a corporation of Delaware 100.00%
Sverdrup Asia Limited, a corporation of India 100.00%
Streetlight Data, Inc., a corporation of Delaware..............cocoiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee 100.00%
CH2M HILL Companies, Ltd., a corporation of Delaware 100.00%
CH2M HILL, Inc., a corporation of Florida 100.00%
Halcrow, Inc., a corporation of Delaware...............cccoeviiiiiiiiiiiiiineene 100.00%
CH2M HILL Constructors, Inc., a corporation of Delaware..............c..ccooviiiiiiiiininens. 100.00%
CH2M Facility Support Services, LLC, a limited liability company of Delaware... 100.00%
CH2M HILL International, Ltd., a corporation of Delaware 100.00%
CH2M HILL (India) Private Limited, a corporation of India.......................... 90.00%
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CH2M HILL International Engineering, Inc., a corporation of Delaware........ 100.00%
CH2M HILL One Limited, a corporation of England and Wales.................... 100.00%
CH2M HILL Holdings Limited, a corporation of England and Wales............... 100.00%
CH2M HILL Europe Limited, a corporation of England and Wales........... 100.00%
Halcrow Group Limited, a corporation of England and 100.00%
WaIS.....ceiiie e
Halcrow Consulting Limited, a corporation of England 100.00%
aNd Wales. ...
Halcrow International Limited, a corporation of England 100.00%
aNd Wales........ooouiiiiii
Halcrow Consulting India Pvt Limited, a corporation of India.... 62.94%
CH2M HILL Netherlands Holding B.V., a corporation of the 100.00%
Netherlands. ...
CH2M HILL Canada Limited, a corporation of Canada............... 100.00%
CH2M HILL International B.V., a corporation of the Netherlands.. 100.00%
CH2M HILL Arabia Co. Ltd., a limited liability company of Saudi 90.00%
Arabia. .. ..o
CH2M Saudi Limited, a limited liability company of Saudi 75.00%
Arabia. ..o
CH2M HILL Singapore Pte. Ltd., a corporation of Singapore............... 100.00%
CH2M HILL United Kingdom, a corporation of England and Wales......... 100.00%
Jacobs Sverige Aktiebolag, a corporation of Sweden.................. 100.00%
CH2M Polska Services sp. z 0.0., a corporation of Poland.................. 99.00%
CH2M HILL International Services, Inc., a corporation of Oregon......................... 100.00%
Operations Management International, Inc., a corporation of California................... 100.00%
CH2M HILL Global, Inc., a corporation of Delaware 100.00%
CH2M HILL Engineers, Inc., a corporation of Delaware 100.00%
Jacobs Solutions Puerto Rico, Inc., a corporation of Delaware................... 100.00%
CH2M HILL Constructors International, Inc., a corporation of Delaware................... 100.00%
PA Consulting Group Limited, a corporation of England and Wales......................cocoeenee. 65.00%




Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:

(1)  Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-269605) of Jacobs Solutions Inc.

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-264663) pertaining to Jacobs Solutions Inc. (StreetLight) 2011 Stock
Plan, as amended and restated,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-195708, 333-187677, 333-107344, 333-123448, 333-157014, and
333-38974) pertaining to the Jacobs Solutions Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated,

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-38984 and 333-209860) pertaining to the Jacobs Solutions Inc. 1999
Outside Director Stock Plan, as amended and restated,

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-157015, 333-216176, 333-01317, 333-72977 and 333-60296)
pertaining to the Jacobs Solutions Inc. 1989 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended and restated, and

(6) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-222084) pertaining to the CH2M HILL Companies, Ltd. Amended and
Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended.

of our reports dated November 20, 2025, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Jacobs Solutions Inc. and the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Jacobs Solutions Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for
the year ended September 26, 2025, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Dallas, Texas
November 20, 2025



Exhibit 2.5

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (this “Amendment”), dated as of August 26, 2024, by and among
Jacobs Solutions Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), Amazon Holdco Inc., a Delaware corporation and wholly owned Subsidiary of the
Company (“SpinCo”), Amentum Parent Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Merger Partner”), and Amentum Joint Venture LP, a
Delaware limited partnership and the sole equityholder of Merger Partner (“Merger Partner Equityholder™).

WHEREAS, as of November 20, 2023, the Company, SpinCo, Merger Partner and Merger Partner Equityholder entered into that certain
Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the parties agree that time is of the essence to consummate the transaction set forth in the Merger Agreement;

WHEREAS, following discussions regarding certain aspects of the operating profits calculation, the parties have agreed to utilize the
Aggregate Operating Profit for the full fiscal year in accordance with the procedures set forth in Annex I to the Merger Agreement as amended and
restated hereby, regardless of whether the transaction is consummated prior to September 27, 2024;

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to effect the Closing on September 27, 2024, subject to the satisfaction or, to the extent permitted
by applicable Law, waiver of the conditions set forth in Article VIII of the Merger Agreement on or prior to such date, and believe that September 27,
2024 is a reasonably achievable date to effect the Closing; and

WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment and pursuant to Section 10.06(b) of the Merger Agreement,
the Company, SpinCo, Merger Partner and Merger Partner Equityholder desire to amend the Merger Agreement as set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of

which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amendment. Effective as of the date of this Amendment, Annex I to the Merger Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety in the
form set forth as Exhibit A hereto.

2. Covenants.

2.2 The parties hereto shall use their respective best efforts to effect the Closing on September 27, 2024, subject to the satisfaction or, to the extent
permitted by applicable Law, waiver of the conditions set forth in Article VIII of the Merger Agreement on or prior to such date. In furtherance
thereof, each party shall use its best efforts to satisfy all of the conditions set forth in Article VIII of the Merger Agreement as soon as possible
after the date hereof, including, but not limited to:

(a) responding to all IRS requests for additional information within one Business Day (and Merger Partner shall respond to all proposed
responses drafted by the Company within one Business Day);

(b) providing responses on a draft IRS Ruling within one Business Day;
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©

(d)
(©

®

(@

submitting a supplemental submission to the Office of the Chief Accountant of the SEC (the “OCA”) regarding factual updates pertinent
to the accounting acquiror analysis for pro forma financials no later than the morning of August 26, 2024, responding to all requests for
additional information from the OCA within two Business Days (and Merger Partner shall respond to all proposed responses drafted by
the Company within one Business Day) and holding a call with the OCA on a priority basis at the OCA’s first availability;

filing an amendment to the Form 10 addressing all prior SEC comments and necessary factual updates no later than August 26, 2024;

responding to all comments from the SEC regarding the Form 10 (including applicable changes to the Form 10) within two Business
Days (and Merger Partner shall use its best efforts to respond to all proposed responses and draft Form 10 amendments prepared by the
Company within one Business Day of receipt of such responses or drafts);

negotiating in good faith to agree upon the final form of all Transaction Documents in accordance with the terms of the Merger
Agreement by no later than the date on which the Company board of directors declares the Distribution; and

delivering to its external counsel signature pages to each Transaction Document to which it is a party (which delivery shall be confirmed,
promptly following receipt of such signature pages, by such external counsel to external counsel of the applicable other party) to be held
in escrow until such party confirms the release of such signature pages, in each case by no later than the date on which the Company
board of directors declares the Distribution, so long as, on or prior to such date, (i) the OCA has confirmed in writing or formally on a
joint call with external counsel from both parties in attendance that the OCA does not object to the parties’ conclusion that Merger
Partner is the accounting acquirer in the Merger, (ii) the Company’s external counsel has confirmed to Merger Partner’s external counsel
in writing that the SEC has confirmed that it has no further comments to the Form 10, (iii) the Company intends to cause SpinCo to
submit a written request to the SEC, no later than one Business Day after the date of such date, requesting acceleration of the SEC’s
declaration of effectiveness of the Form 10 and (iv) all of the conditions set forth in Article VIII of the Merger Agreement have been
satisfied, or to the extent permitted by applicable Law, waived, including, without limitation, that the Company shall have received the
IRS Ruling, and such IRS Ruling shall continue to be valid and in full force and effect, but excluding those conditions, including the
Separation, that are to be satisfied at or immediately prior to the Closing, but subject to such conditions being capable of being satisfied
on or prior to the Closing.

Miscellaneous.

Capitalized terms used herein but not otherwise defined shall have the meanings set forth in the Merger Agreement.

All of the provisions of this Amendment shall be effective as of the date of this Amendment. Except as otherwise specifically amended, modified
or supplemented by this Amendment, all terms of the Merger Agreement shall remain unchanged and continue in full force and effect until the
expiration or earlier termination of the Merger Agreement unless the same be otherwise sooner amended. From and after the date hereof, each
reference in the Merger Agreement to “this
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Agreement,” “hereof,” “hereunder” or words of like import, and all references to the Merger Agreement and all agreements, instruments,
documents, notes, certificates and other writings of every kind or nature that refer to the Merger Agreement will be deemed to mean the Merger
Agreement as modified by this Amendment, whether or not this Amendment is expressly referenced.

Article X (Miscellaneous) of the Merger Agreement is incorporated herein mutatis mutandis by reference.

[Signature Pages Follow)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company, SpinCo, Merger Partner and Merger Partner Equityholder have caused this Amendment to be duly
executed by their respective authorized officers as of the day and year first above written.

JACOBS SOLUTIONS INC.

By: /s/ Robert V. Pragada
Name: Bob Pragada
Title: Chief Executive Officer

AMAZON HOLDCO INC.

By: /s/ Robert V. Pragada
Name: Bob Pragada
Title: Chief Executive Officer

[Signature Page to Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger)



AMENTUM PARENT HOLDINGS LLC

By: AMENTUM JOINT VENTURE LP,
its sole member

By: /s/ Russell Triedman
Name: Russell Triedman
Title: Authorized Signatory

By: /s/ Benjamin Dickson
Name: Benjamin Dickson
Title: Authorized Signatory

AMENTUM JOINT VENTURE LP

By: AMENTUM JOINT VENTURE GP LLC,
its general partner

By: /s/ Russell Triedman
Name: Russell Triedman
Title: Executive Manager

By: /s/ Benjamin Dickson
Name: Benjamin Dickson
Title: Executive Manager

[Signature Page to Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger)



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Bob Pragada, certify that:

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Jacobs Solutions Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/Robert V. Pragada

Robert V. Pragada
Chief Executive Officer

November 20, 2025



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Venk Nathamuni, certify that:

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Jacobs Solutions Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/VVenk Nathamuni
Venk Nathamuni
Chief Financial Officer

November 20, 2025



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Jacobs Solutions Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended September 26, 2025 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Bob Pragada, Chief Executive Officer of the Company (principal
executive officer), certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: (1) the
Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) the information contained in the
Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/Robert V. Pragada
Robert V. Pragada
Chief Executive Officer
November 20, 2025

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Jacobs Solutions Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended September 26, 2025 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Venk Nathamuni, Chief Financial Officer of the Company
(principal financial officer), certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) the information contained in
the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/Venk Nathamuni
Venk Nathamuni
Chief Financial Officer
November 20, 2025

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



